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FinaNnciaL HIGHLIGHTS

(In millions, except per share amounts)

Revenues

Earnings from operations

Income (loss) from continuing operations
Adjusted EBITDA"

Income (loss) from continuing operations per share:
Basic
Diluted

Working capital

Property and equipment, net

Total assets '

Long-term debt, net of current portion

Stockholders® equity

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

$ 24954 § 2,0333 § 1,7122 § 1,565.8 §$ 1,180.0

544.9 325.2 249.0 218.4 147.7
2953 -128.3 27.6 48.0 (12.1)
791.8 556.8 491.1 474.2 3546
1.81 0.84 0.20 0.35 {0.15)
1.71 0.80 0.20 0.35 {0.15)
2931 213.8 130.5 70.4 136.6

4,000.1  3,181.7  3281.8  3,463.3  3,492.3
5097.5  4,086.5 40420 43771 44000
1,294.7  1,187.3 16859  1,805.1 1,873.9
2,6339 22594  1,716.3 1,688.7  1,677.1

" Adjusted EBITDA as defined consists of net income (loss) before interest expense (net), income taxes, depreciation and amortization, impairment
charges, (gain) loss on sale of assets, refinancing charges, minority interest, pooling and merger costs, and {income) loss from discontinued operations,
Please refer to “Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures” on the last page of this Annual Report,
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

-IN 2006, WE ACHIEVED
RECORD FINANCIAL RESULTS
WHILE TAKING| SIGNIFICANT

STEPS TOWARD OUR STRATEGIC

L]
LLouvis A. RasriNo I
President and Chief Executive Ofﬁ.‘v:ier

l

FOCUS IN THE|HIGH SPECIFICATION OFFSHORE FLOATER SECTOR,;

he offshore coniract drilling industry continued
I to experience strong business fundamentals

during 2006, with resilient demand from our
customers translating into unprecedented rig dayrates
throughout most offshiore drilling regtons. In what many
believe is the best busiriess environment in more than
30 years, worldwide e)lploratlon and production spend-
ing increased 26% in 2006 according to a recent survey
conducted by Cmgroulp, following an estimated 19%
increase in 2005, Unh. ation of the industry’s drillships
and semisubmersibles (together referred to as floaters)
and jackup rigs reached 93% in 2006 compared to 90%
in 2005. Crude oil and natural gas prices remained near
" historically high levels durmg the year, supporting explo-
ration and production |dnllmg programs in established
regions such as the U.5. Gulf of Mexico, Brazil, the
North Sea and West Afrlca, as well as several emerging
regions, including the Fastern Mediterranean, the Black
Sea, Pakistan and Eastern Canada. In addition, increased
involvemnent by nauon.'al oil companies such as Petrobras
of Brazil, Oil and Natural Gas Company (ONGC) of
India and China Nauonal Offshore Qil Corporation
{CNOOC} has conmbuted to the burgeoning demand
for offshore rigs, especllally those with deepwater drilling
capabilities. The high level of drilling activity resulted in
exceptional contracting opportunities for our fleet of
mobile offshore drilling rigs and allowed us to close the
year with a best-ever revenue backlog of approximately
$5.8 billion, up from $2.8 billion at the end of 2005.

!

. ' . +
Financial Overview |

Qur accomplishments in 2006 were numerous and

. I
included record financial results, a strengthened finan-

cial position, a strategic acquisition, progress toward the
divestiture of non-strategic assets and exceptlonal safety
performance. Each of these accomplishments represents
meaningful strides toward our goal of becoming a pre-
mier, world-class offshore drilling compafly

The Company set a number of records i m 2006 per-
taining to financial results, including record revenues,
income from continuing operations, cash flow from
operations and earnings per share. Revenues for the year
totaled $2,495 million, a 23% increase compared to
revenues of $2,033 mllllon in 2005. Income from con-
tinuing operations improved to $295 mllhon, more
than twice the level reported in 2005, while earnings
per diluted share grew to $1.71, compared to $0.80 in
2005. Cash flow from operations grew to $612 million,
from $322 million in 2005.

The strong financial performance was ewdent in each
of our business segments, but was most pronounced
in the Offshore business segment. In this segment, com-
prising 42 mobile offshore drilling units and 16 tender-
assisted, barge and platform rigs, revenues rotaled
$1,589 million, up 27% from $1,256 mllllon in 2005,
and reflected significant improvement in dayrates
throughout our fleet. This was especmllyltrue for the
Company’s jackup rigs, which saw average daily revenue
for the year lmprove to $79,100, up 70% from $46,400

/£
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in 2005, despite weakening U.S. Gulf of Mexico jackup
rig dayrates beginning in June 2006, Average daily rev-
enue for our midwater semisubmersibles improved to
$102,500, up 23% from $83,400 in 2005. As customers
further define their global exploration and development
activity, rigs are being contracted art attractive dayrates
for longer durations, placing a number of our high speci-
fication floating rigs under contract beyond 2010. In
‘November 2006, we announced contract awards from
BP and Petrobras totaling 23 rig years for five of our
semisubmersibles, with possible aggregate revenues of
approximately $2 billion over the contract period,
excluding revenues from performance bonus opportuni-

ties. The awards include a three-year contract extension .

for the deepwater semisubmersible Pride North America
beginning in early 2008 at a dayrate of $443,000 for the
initial two years of the contract, compared to a current
contract dayrate of $188,000. Also included are con-
tracts for the deepwater semisubmersibles Pride Brazil
and Pride Carlos Walter and midwater semisubmersibles
Pride South Atlantic and Pride South America, all at
significantly improved contract dayrates. We expect to
secure additional long-term contracts, especially for our
deepwater floater fleet, as our customers obtain grearer
clarity in their drilling plans and move to secure addi-
tional rig availability for longer terms.

Our record financial performance in 2006 was
achieved despite an active year for shipyard projects
representing approximately 1,700 days of out-of-service
time. During the year, we commenced 13 projects for
special periodic surveys, life enhancements and mainte-
nance, and completed ten of these projects involving
five semisubmersibles and five jackup rigs. Capital
expenditures during the year were $356 million, up
from $157 million in 20035.

In 2007, we expect ro initiate 14 shipyard projects.
However, due to improved engineering and technical

2006 REVENUES BY BUSINESS SEGMENT
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planning and execution, our out-of-service days are
expected to decline to 1,100, These projects, which will -
account for the majority of the $400 million in expected
capital expenditures in 2007, will help our fleet to meet
the increasing demands of our industry while reducing
the risk of operational downtime, By the close of 2007,
over half of our mobile offshore drilling fleet will have
undergone a special periodic survey and/or life enhance-
ment since the beginning of 2006. Therefore we expect
shipyard activity levels and capital expenditures in 2008 *
to decrease significantly. :

In our Latin Amernica Land business segment, which

~ spans six countries and includes 206 drilling and

workover rigs, revenues in 2006 improved to $608 mil-
lion, up 23% from 2003. The segment has experienced
a 15% compound average growth rate in revenues
since 2003. Revenues per day for the land drilling and
workover rig fleets improved to $15,300 and $6,100 in
2006, compared to $12,600 and $4,900, respectively,
in 2005. In Latin America, we possess a strong business
franchise and significant infrastructure, and we have
developed an understanding over the years of the needs

and plans of our customers, including major, independent

and state-owned petroleum companies. With the majority
of the segment’s business in Argentina, Venezuela and
Colombia, three Latin American countries with growing
energy needs, future business opportunities continue to
improve as these countries work to reverse declining
production profiles. Capacity requirements in these
countries, as well as expanding needs in countries like
Peru and Brazil, represent significant opportunities for
revenue and margin growth in the future.

Our E&P Services business segment in Latin America
provides pressure pumping services to complete and stim-
ulate new and existing oil and gas wells; directional and
underbalanced drilling services; and integrated services,
providing tailored solutions to clients’ needs in all stages

2006 OFFSHORE SEGMENT REVENUES BY ASSET TyPE
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of the life cycle of a wel|. Revenues from this segment
totaled $196 million in 2006, a 4% improvement from
2005. Further integratitl)n of our land drilling and
workover rig operationls. with the E&P Services seg-
ment should drive futurt segment revenue growth and
operational efficiencies.

Refocusing the Company
During 2006, we contin:
ued to make progress in
the growth and transfor:
mation of Pride from a
highly diversified fleet
composed of offshore and
land drilling and work- |
over rigs to a focused off-
shore driller with increas-
ing strategic presence in
deepwater floaters and
premium jackup rigs.
In November 2006, we
acquired our partner’s
interest in the joint
venture companies that
owned the two deepwater,
dynamically positioned
semisubmersibles Pride
Rio de Janeiro and Pride
Portland, increasing our,
ownership in the two rigs
from 30% to 100%. This
transaction followed the
December 2005 acquisi-!
tion of an additional 40%
interest in our joint ven-
ture with Sonangol, the
national oil company of,
Angola, increasing our
ownership in the two deepwater dynamically positioned
drillships Pride Africa and Pride Angola to 91% from
51%. The two transactions represent an investment

of approximately $700|million in cash and debt over
the past 15 months for wh1ch we added approximately
2.5 dynamically posmoned deepwater assets to our
owned fleet. Our offshaore drilling fleet now consists ]
of eight deepwater rigs, lincluding the industry’s second
largest fleet of dynamically positioned rigs.

. In addition to our own deepwater fleet, the Company
manages the drilling ol:lerations on five highly-sophisti-
cated deepwater structures (one ultra-deepwater semi-
submersible, two spars and two tension leg platforms)

safety performance.

Continucus on-the-job safety traming bas been instruntental
N

in Pride International achieving consecutive years of record

i
|
L
i
).

for two major integrated energy compames n the U.s.
Gulf of Mexico and Angola. Our broad and successful
deepwater operations positions us as an mdustry leader
in deepwater drilling and provides a competitive advan-
tage as we pursue further deepwater growth opportunities.
Since the beginning of 2004, debt reduction and bal-
ance sheet improvement have been high prli)rmes for
the Company, and we
© successtully strengthened
our capital structure by
the end of 2005. In late
2005 and 2006, we uti-
lized our 1mpr0ved finan-
cial ﬂex1b1llty and strong
operating cash flows to
grow the Colfnpany, as
discussed ab%;l)ve Debt-to-
cap1tahzat10n at the end
of 2006 stood at 34%, a
modest reductlon during
the year, but|d0wn sub-

- stantially from 50% at
the end of 2004 even
after taking i mto account
the purchase]of our joint
venture partners’ equiry
in the deepwater drillships
and Semlsubmer51bles
and the resultmg consoli-
dation of ex15t1ng joint
venture debt]

Divestiture of

: Non-Strateginlc Assets

We also made progress

toward the possible

divestiture of our Latin

America Land and
E&P Services business segments. In ]anuaryHZOO?, we
announced the addition of an executive leadership team
possessing public market readiness and capgble of lead-
ing these businesses on a stand-alone basis. The appoint-
ments of a Chief Executive Officer, Chief (Dperatmg _
Officer and Chief Financial Officer for thqbusmess seg-
ments is evidence of our commitment to cqmplete the
divestiture of the businesses as soon as possible, exposing
unrealized value in our Company and prov1dmg for
a greater focus on our core offshore busmess

Equally significant was the fact that 2006 was another

vear of excellent safety performance by out worldwide
operations, following a record performancc! in 2005.
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‘A total recordable incidence rate (TRIR} of 0.94 per

200,000 man hours worked was the best ever for our
Company and is evidence of our commitment to con-
tinuously improve this vital area. An incident-free
workplace is our goal. In 2007, we are increasing our
safety training efforts as we attempt to actract, train
and retain the best personnel in an increasingly con-
strained labor market.

In addition to our constant
focus on safety, we are committed
to a culture that demands that all
business activities are conducted
with the highest ethics and
integrity. Likewise, all of our
operations are conducted with
the objective of protecting the
environment in which we all live,

STRATEGIC PRIORITY.

-
Outlook and Opportunities

We are proud of cur accomplishments in 2006. However,
we will continue to focus our attention on the significant
opportunities presented by an expected healthy business
environment in 2007 and beyond. We are confident

this environment will help speed the transition of the
Company into a world-class offshore drilling contractor
with an increased focus on technically advanced deep-
water floaters and premium jackup rigs.

A recent survey of 2007 exploration and production
customer spending plans conducted by Citigroup indi-
cates an expected 7% increase from the vigorous spending
during 2006. The offshore drilling industry is expected to
remain robust for the fleet of floating rigs and interna-
tional jackup rigs. Customers remain interested in ~
contracting deepwater rigs at attractive dayrates for
multi-year durations as they expand drilling efforts in
the established deepwater basins of the U.S. Gulf of
Mexico, Brazil and West Africa and plan for drilling
programs in many of the emerging and frontier locations
such as the Southern Gulf of Mexico, East Africa and

Asia. Pricing weakness in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico jackup’

rig sector since mid-2006 is expected to persist through
the first half of 2007, but could dissipate in late 2007 as
the jackup rig supply in this region continues to decline
due to the mobilization of units to international locations.
At present, the marketed supply of jackup rigs in the
U.S. Gulf of Mexico stands at 68 and has declined from
a marketed supply of 107 rigs at the beginning of 2003.
For 2007, the potential divestiture of our Latin

America Land and E&P Services business segments is

“our highest strategic priority. As we evaluate strategies

for monetizing those business segments, along with the

& PRIDE INTERNATIONAL

FOR 2007, THE POTENTIAL
DIVESTITURE OF OUR

LATIN AMERICA LAND

AND E&P SERVICES BUSINESS
SEGMENTS IS OUR HIGHEST

opportunistic divestiture of other non-strategic assets
such as our fleet of platform rigs, tender-assisted units
and drilling barges, we expect to continue to pursue
other value-adding growth opportunities that increase
our ownership in deepwater floaters and premium jackup
rigs. With robust demand for deepwater rigs expected to
continue into the next decade, an environment of numer-
ous opportunities exists fo poten-
tially add technically advanced
offshore rigs to our flee.

From 2007 through 2009, based
on current market conditions, we
expect numerous contract rollovers
at increasing dayrates to generate
substantially higher cash flow for
our Company. We plan to utilize
these cash flows to fund invest-
ments in our existing fleet, as well
as for growth opportunities. We
may also consider share repurchases and dividends -
should we conclude that cash generation exceeds the
likely opportunities of value adding investment,

We will also focus on strong operational execution,
given the record dayrates that many of our rigs are
receiving and the increased opportunity cost of out-of-
service time. Finally, we will continue to identify and
implement process and infrastructure improvements in
an effort to minimize costs and improve the efficiency
and effectiveness of our operations.

The long-term-success of Pride International is in the
hands of our 14,000 employees located in more than
25 countries around the world. Over the past three years,
we have assembled one of the industry’s best teams of
professionals and industry experts that have been respon-
sible for achieving our recent successes. This team is capa-
ble of leading the Company through the significant chal-
lenges and opportunities in 2007 and beyond as we tran-
sition to an “offshore-only” asset focus, thereby offering
our shareholders enhanced investment value and our cus-
tomers greater operational expertise and asset capability,

-T wish to thank all of our employees for their dedica-
tion and commitment in 2006, and we look forward to
continued growth in 2007 and beyond.

Ve A

Lowuis A. RasriNo
President and Chief Executive Officer
March 2007

~
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SAFETY AND PERSONNEL
DEVELOPMENT:

TRAINING THE NEXT GENERATION
OF MANAGERS .

W

ride International’s safery performanfce remains

one of the best in the industry. Following a

record year in 2005 with a total recordable inci-
dence rate (TRIR, defined as the ratio of the number
of injuries per 200,000 man hours worked) of 1.07,
the Company completed 2006 with a bestiever 0.94
TRIR. Contributing to this excellent perfonfmance isa
quality and safety management system that emphasizes
training and observation programs to assure safe work
procedures, regular safety audits, and Othé:r procedures
to help ensure personnel think safety befofe proceeding
with a job task.

In addition, the Company’s Rig Intensive Develop-
ment Program is preparing the next generation of rig-
based supervisors and managers. The program utilizes
hands-on experience and competency-baséd training
to accelerate the development of qualifiedlcandidares
to first-level rig supervisory positions in an efficient
and flexible manner.

n

TorTar. RECORDABLE INCIDENCE RATE

B IADC Complete QO 1ADC Comparative Regions O Pride
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PART 1

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
!

in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, “we,"” the “Company’ and "Pride’” are references to Pride Internallonal Inc. and its
subsidiaries, unless the contexl clearly indicates otherwise. Pride International, Inc. is a Delaware corporation) Ywith its principal
executive offices located at 5847 San Felipe, Suite 3300, Houston, Texas 77057. Pride’s telephone number at such address is
(713} 789-1400 or (800) 645- 2067, :

We are a leading international provider of contract drilling and related services to oil and natural gas companies worldwide,
operating offshore and on land As of February 28, 2007, we owned a global fleet of 272 rigs, consisting of two deepwater dnllshlps
12 semisubmersible rigs, 28 Jackup rigs, 16 tender-assisted, barge and platform rigs and 214 land-based drilling and workover rigs.

Our operations are conducted in many of the most active oil and natural gas basins of the world, including South _America, the Gulf
of Mexico, the Mediterranean! Sea, West Africa, the Middle East and Asia Pacific. The significant diversity of our rig fleet and areas
of operation enables us to pro'vide a broad range of services and to take advantage of market upturns while reducing our exposure to
sharp downturns in any panimiilar market sector or geographic region, |

i

We provide contract dnllmg services to oil and natural gas exploration and production companies through the use of mobile
offshore drilling rigs in U.S. dl‘ld international waters, as well as land-based drilling and workover rigs in international land markets.
We provide the rigs and dnllmg crews and are responsible for the payment of operating and maintenance expenses. In addition, we
also provide rig managemem services on a variety of rigs, consisting of technical drilling assistance, personnel repair and
maintenance services and drilling operation management services.

|

Segment Information '
In the third quarter of 2006| we reorganized our operations into three principal reportable segments: Offshore, which includes all of
our offshore drilling fleet and 'operations; Latin America Land, which includes our land-based drilling and workover services in Latin

| ‘
America; and E&P Services, vlfhlch includes our exploration and production services business in Latin America. '

We incorporate by referencie in response to this item the segment information for the last three years set forth in “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Segment Review” in ltem 7 of this annual report and the
information for the last three |fiscal years with respect to revenues, earnings from operations, total assets, capital expenditures and
depreciation and amortization' attributable to our segments and revenues and long-lived assets by geographic areas of operations in
Note 14 of our Notes to ConsAlidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this annual report. We also incorporate by reference
in response to this item the mformatlon with respect to acquisitions and dispositions of assets set forth in “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condmon and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources™ in Item 7 and in Notes 2 and 12 of
our Notes to Consolidated F 1n.1nc1a] Statements included in Item 8 of this annual report. :

|

Rig Fleet !
Offshore Rigs | '
The table below presents information about our offshore rig fleet as of February 28, 2007:

Water Depth  Drilling Depth

Built/ Rated Rating
Rig Name 1 Rig Type/Design Upgraded {In feet) (In feet) Location Status
Drillships — 2 !
Pride Africa(l) Gusto 10,000 1999 10,000 30,000  Angola Working
Pride Angola(l) Gusto 10,000 1999 10,000 30,000  Angola Working
Semisubmersible Rigs — : _ ,
12 |
Pride Brazil Megathyst 2001 5,000 25,000 Brazil ', Working
Pride Carlos Walter Megathyst 2000 5,000 25,000 Braazil . Working
Pride North America Bingo 8000 1999 7,500 25,000  Egypt " Working
Pride North Sea(2) A'i{er H-3 1975/2001 1,000 25,000  Tunisia Working

t



Pride Portland

Pride Rio de Janeiro
Pride South America
Pride South Atlantic
Pride South Pacific
Pride South Seas
Pride Venezuela
Pride Mexico
Jackup Rigs — 28
Pride Cabinda(l)
Pride Hawaii

Pride Montana

Pride North Dakota
Pride Pennsylvania
Pride Alabama

Pride Arkansas

Pride California
Pride Colorado

Pride Louisiana
Pride Nebraska
Pride Nevada

Pride South Carolina -
Pride Tennessee
Pride Texas

Pride Wisconsin
Pride Alaska

Pride Arizena

Pride Florida

Pride Georgia

Pride Kansas

Pride Michigan
Pride Mississippi
Pride Missouri

Pride New Mexico
Pride Oklahoma
Pride Utah

Pride Wyoming
Tender-Assisted Rigs —
3

Pride Ivory Coast(3)
Barracuda

Alligator

Barge Rigs — 3
Bintang Kalimantan .
Pride |

Pride 11

Platform Rigs — 10
Rig 1501E

Rig 1502E

Rig 1503E

Rig 1002E

Rig 1003E

Rig 1005E

Rig 1006E

Rig 651E Workover
Rig 210 Workover
Rig 14 Workover
Managed Rigs — 5(4)
Semisubmersible Rig
Thunder Horse

Amethyst 2 Class
Amethyst 2 Class
Amethyst

F&G Enhanced Pacesetter
Sonat Offshore /Aker
Aker H-3 ‘
F&G Enhanced Pacesetter
Neptune Pentagon

Independent leg, cantilever
Independent leg, cantilever
Independent leg, cantilever
Independent leg, cantilever
Independent leg, cantilever
Mat-supported, cantilever
Mat-supported, cantilever
Mat-supported, slot
Mat-supported, cantilever
Mat-supported, slot
Mat-supported, cantilever
Mat-supported, cantilever
Mat-supported, cantilever
Independent leg, cantilever
Mat-supported, cantilever
Independent leg, slot
Mat-supported, cantilever
Mat-supported, slot
Mat-supported, cantilever
Mat-supported, slot
Mat-supported, cantilever
Mat-supported, slot
Mat-supported, cantilever
Mat-supported, cantilever
Mat-supported, cantilever
Mat-supported, slot
Mat-supported, cantilever
Mat-supported, stot

Self-erecting barge tender rig
Self-erecting barge tender rig
Self-erecting barge tender rig

Submersible swamp barge
Cantilever inland barge
Cantilever inland barge

Self-Erecting Modular Rig
Self-Erecting Modular Rig
Self-Erecting Modular Rig
Self-Erecting Modular Rig
Self-Erecting Modular Rig
Self-Erecting Modular Rig
Self-Erecting Modular Rig
Self-Erecting Modular Rig
Self-Erecting Modular Rig

Self-Erecting Light Mechanical Rig

Moored Semisubmersible Drilling Rig

2004
2004
1987/1996
1982
1974/1999
1977/1997
1982/2001
1973/1995

1983
1975/1997
1980/2001

- 1981/2002

1973/1998

1982

1982
1975/2002

1982
1981/2002
1981/2002
1981/2002
1980/2002
1981/2007
1974/1999
1976/2002
1982/2002
1981/1996

1981
1981/1995
1976/1999
1975/2002
1981/2002

1981

1982
1975/2002
1978/2002

1976

1994
1982/2002
1982/2004

1983
1994
1994

1996
1998
1997/2003
1596
1996
1998
2001
1995
1996
1994

2004

5,700
5,700
4,000
1,500
6,500
1,000
1,500
2,650

300
300
270
250
300
200
250
250
200
250
200
200
200
300
300
300
250
250
200
250
250
250
200
250

200 .

250
80
250

650
330
450

21
125
125

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A

25,000
25,000
12,000
25,000
25,000
20,000
25,000
25,000

25,000
21,000
20,000
30,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
25,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
25,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
15,000
20,000

20,000
20,000
20,000

20,000
15,000
15,000

15,000
15,000
20,000
10,000
10,000
10,000
10,000
15,000
15,000
10,000

25,000

Brazil
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil
Angola
S Africa
Angola
Mexico

Angola
Singapore
Saudi Arabia
Saudi Arabia
India
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
USA
USA
USA
USA
Usa
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA

Ivory Coast
Congo
Angola

Cameroon
Venezuela
Venezuela

USA
USA
USA
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
USA
USA
USA
USA

USA

Working
Working
Working
Working
Working
Working
Working

~ Working

" Working

Shipyard
Working
Working
Working
Working
Working
Working
Working
Waorking
Working
Working
Working
Working
Working
Shipyard

. Working

Working
Working
Working
Working
Working
Working
Working
Shipyard
Working
Working
Working

Working
Working
Working

Available
Working
Working

Working
Working
Available
Working
Working
Working
Working
Available
Available
Available

Working




Platform Rigs : : i

Kizomba A Tension Leg Platform Rig 2003 N/A 20,000 Angola Working
Kizomba B 'Iensmn Leg Platform Rig 2004 N/A 20,000 Angola Working
Holstein l\’loored Spar Platform Rig 2004 N/A 20,000  USA , Working
Mad Dog Moored Spar Platform Rig . 2004 N/A 25,000  USA Working

{1} Owned by a joint venture in which we have a 91% interest; managed by Pride.
(2) Also known as the Sea Explorer.
(3) Also known as the Al Baraka L. p

(4) Managed by us, but owned by others. "

q
Drillships. The Pride Africa and Pride Angola are deepwater, self-propelled drillships that can be positioned over a drill site
through the use of a eomputer-controlled thruster (dynamic posmomng) system. Drillships are suitable for deepwaler drilling in
remote locations because of their mobility and large load-carrying capacity. Generally, these drillships operate with crews of
approximately 100 persons. I-
Semisubmersible Rigs. Our semisubmersible rigs are floating platforms that, by means of a water ballasting system, can be
submerged to a predetermmed depth so that a substantial portion of the lower hulls, or pontoons, is below the water surface during
drilling operations. The rig isi“semisubmerged,” remaining afloat in a position, off the sea bottom, where the lower hull is about 60 to
80 feet below the water line and the upper deck protrudes well above the surface. This type of rig maintains its posmon over the well
through the use of either arl anchoring system or a computer-controlled thruster system similar to that usedi by our drillships.
Semisubmersible rigs generally operate with crews of 60 to 75 persons. I
Jackup Rigs. The jackup ngs we operate are mobile, self-elevating drrllmg platforms equipped with legs that’ are lowered to the
ocean floor until a foundanon is established to support the drilling platform. The rig legs may have a lower hull or mat attached to the
bottom to provide a more stable foundation in soft bottom areas. Independent leg rigs are better suited for harsher,drilling conditions
or uneven seabed condmonsi Jackup rigs are generally subject to a maximum water depth of approxrmately 200 to 300 feet. The
length of the rig’s legs and thF operating environment determine the water depth limit of a particular rig. A cantilever jackup rig has a
feature that allows the dnllmv platform to be extended out from the hull, enabling the rig to perform drilling or workover operations
over a pre-existing platform or structure. Slot-type jackup rigs are configured for drilling-operations to take place through a slot in the
hull. Slot-type rigs are usuall; y used for exploratory drilling because their configuration makes them difficult to posmon over existing
platforms or structures. Jackups generally operate with crews of 15 10 40 persons. ;
I
Tender-Assisted Rigs. Our tender-assisted rigs are generally barges moored alongside a platform and contammg crew quarters,
mud tanks, mud pumps and! power generation systems. The only equipment transferred to the platform for dnllmg or workover
operations is the derrick equrpment set consisting of the substructure, drilifloor, derrick and drawworks. As a result, tender-assisted
rigs allow smaller, less costly platforms to be used for development projects. Self-erecting tender-assisted rigs carry their own derrick
equipment and have a crane capable of erecting the derrick on the platform, thereby eliminating the cost assoc1ated with a separate
derrick barge and related equipment, Tender-assisted rigs generally operate with crews of 15 to 25 persons. .f
Barge Rigs. We own two|lake barge rigs on Lake Maracaibo, Venezuela and one swamp barge in West Africa. Lake barges are
designed to work in a floating mode with a cantilever feature and a mooring system that enables the rig to operate in waters up to
150 feet deep. Swamp barge Irigs generally operate in marshy areas or in water depths of less than 25 feet. This type of rig is held on
location by submerging the hull onto the sea floor before commencement of work. Barge rigs generally operate with crews of 15 to 25
persons. !
: it
Platform Rigs. Our platform rigs generally consist of drilling equipment and machinery arranged in modular packages that are
transported to, assembled ancl installed on fixed offshore platforms owned by the customer. Fixed offshore platforms are steel, tower-
like structures that stand on lhe ocean floor, with the top portion, or platform, above the water level, providing the foundation upon
which the platform rig is plac ed. Our platform rigs can be used to provide drilling, workover and horizontal reentry services using top
drives, enhanced pumps and SOl]dS contrel equipment for drilling fluids. The crew operating on a platform rig can vary significantly
depending upon the size of the platform and the nature of the operations being performed.
||
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Managed Rigs. We perform rig management services on a variety of rigs owned by others, consisting of providing technical
drilling assistance, personnel, repair and maintenance services, and drilling operation management services.

Contract Labor. We provide contract labor services to two offshore rigs owned and managed by others. We provide the labor on a
cost plus or fixed fee basis and do not have any responsibility for the drilling program of the rig owner.

Land-based Rigs

The table below presents information about our !and-based rig fleet as of February 28, 2007:

Drilling Workover Total

Latin America

Argentina 47 104 151
Venezuela 7 20 27
COLOMIBIA. ettt et e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e et e eane e e eeerrteaaererraeeeteserrteanreanarerann 14 7 21
B iVIa . et e e e et e e e eaeaerea e are vt eat et e e te s et e e aee st er et ar e e reeeartesararennteen 4 2 6
MexiCo ..o — 1 1

Total Latin America........... eteeeteietertrirt s brvaeaateeateiate s e aasaan nresehe s R b oo bt oetd et e 1t 4antAEeEAe e Ee e R b e eb bt ea b eaatsat 4t betteaateaanenn 72 134 206
Other International Chad ' 3. 2 5
Other ..o 3 — _3

Total Other International 6 2 _8
TIOALL 1ttt ettt b e aeae et d ke r S h ek b e s st bt s e e R es e en s e et et e e tesenas I8 136 214

A land-based drilling rig consists of engines, drawworks, a mast, substructure, pumps to circulate the drilling fiuid, blowout
preventers, drill string and related equipment. The intended well depth and the drilling site conditions are the principal factors that
determine the size and type of rig most suitable for a particular drilling job, Qur land-based fleet also includes a class of rigs known as
workover rigs that are designed to perform maintenance and repair or modification to existing wells, which are referred to as
workovers. Maintenance and repair services are required on producing oil and natural gas wells to ensure efficient, continuous
operation. These services consist of mechanical repairs necessary to maintain or improve production from the well, such as repairing
parted sucker rods, replacing defective downhole pumps in an oil well or replacing defective tubing in a natural gas well, Workover
services include the opening of new producing zones in an existing well, recompletion of a well in which production has declined,
drilling out plugs and packers and the conversion of a producing well to an injection well during enhanced recovery operations. All of
our land-based rigs can be readily moved between well sites and between geographic areas of operations. Most of our land-based
drilling and [and-based workover/well service rigs operate under short-term or well-to-well contracts.

Customers

We provide contract drilling and related services to a customer base that includes large multinational oil and natural gas companies,
government-owned oil and natural gas companies and independent oil and natural gas producers. For the year ended December 31,
2006, we had one customer, Petroleo Brasilerio S.A. {“Petrobras™), that accounted for 16,7% of our consolidated revenues. The loss of
this significant customer could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. No other customer accounted for 10% or
more of our 2006 consolidated revenues.

Drilling Contracts

Our drilling contracts are awarded through competitive bidding or on a negotiated basis. The contract terms and rates vary
depending on competitive conditions, geographical area, geological formation to be drilled, equipment and services to be supplied, on-
site drilling conditions and anticipated duration of the work to be performed.

01l and natural gas well drilling contracts are carried out on a dayrate, footage or turnkey basis. Under dayrate contracts, we charge
the customer a fixed amount per day regardless of the number of days needed to drill the well. In addition, dayrate contracts usually
provide for a reduced dayrate {or lump sum amount) for mobilizing the rig to the well location or when drilling operations are
interrupted or restricted by equipment breakdowns, adverse weather conditions or other conditions beyond our control. Substantially
all of our contracts with major customers are on a dayrate basis. A dayrate drilling contract generally covers either the drilling of a
single well or group of wells or has a stated term, These contracts may generally be terminated by the customer in the event the
drilling unit is destroyed or lost or if drilling operations are suspended for a period of time as a result of a breakdown of equipment or,
in some cases, due to other events beyond the control of either party. In addition, drilling contracts with certain customers are
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cancelable, without cause, upon little or no prior notice and without penalty or early termination payments. In some instances, the
dayrate contract term may be|extended by the customer exercising options for the drilling of additional wells or for an additional
length of time at fixed or mutually agreed terms, mcludmg dayrales i

Other contracts provide for payment on a footage basis, whereby we are paid a fixed amount for each foot drilled regardless of the
time required or the problems encountered in drilling the well. We may also enter into turnkey contracts, whereby e agree to drill a
well to a specific depth for a fixed price and to bear some of the well equipment costs. Compared with dayrate contracts footage and
turnkey contracts involve a hlgher degree of risk to us.

'.

Our customers may have the right to terminate, or may seek to renegonale existing contracts if we experience downtime or
operational problems above a l.ontractual limit, if the rig is a total loss or in other specified circumstances. A customer is more likely
to seek to cancel or renegotlate its contract during petiods of depressed market conditions. We could be required to pay penalties if
some of our contracts with our customers are canceled due to downtime or operational problems. Suspension of dnllmg contracts
results in the reduction in or loss of dayrates for the period of the suspension. If our customers cancel some of our sngmﬁcam contracts
and we are unable to secure new contracts on substantially similar terms, or if contracts are suspended for an extended period of time,
it could adversely affect our consolidated financial statements. '

Competition - "

The contract drilling industry is highly competmve Demand for contract drilling and related services is 1nﬂuence|d by a number of
factors, including the current ind expected prices of oil and natural gas and the expendltures of oil and natural gas companies for
exploration and development 'pf oil and natural gas. In addition, demand for drilling services remains dependen; on a variety of
political and economic factors beyond our control, including worldwide demand for oil and natural gas, the ability of the Organization
of Petroleum Exporting Countries (“OPEC”) to set and maintain production levels and pricing, the level of production of non-OPEC
countries and the policies of the various governments regarding exploration and development of their oil and natural gas reserves.

i

Drilling contracts are gener'llly awarded on a competitive bid or negotiated basis. Pricing is often the primary factor in determining
which qualified contractor is Iawarded a job. Rig availability and each contractor’s safety performance record and reput;atlon for
quality also can be key factoru in the determination. Operators also may consider crew experience, rig location and effi iciency. We
believe that the market for dnl]mg contracts will continue to be highly competitive for the foreseeable future. Certain'competitors may
have greater financial resourc:s than we do, which may better enable them to withstand periods of low utlllzanon compete more
effectively on the basis of pnce build new rigs or acquire existing rigs. ”

Our competition ranges from large international companies ofTenng a wide range of drilling and other oilfield services to smaller,
locally owned compames W-L believe we are competitive in terms of safety, pricing, performance, equnpmenl availability of
equlpment to meet customer needs and availability of experienced, skilled personnel, however, industry-wide shortages of supplies,
services, skilted personnel andteqmpmem necessary to conduct our business can occur. Competition for offshore rigs is usually on a
global basis, as these rigs are highly mobile and may be moved, at a cost that is sometimes substantial, from one region to another in
response to demand. Competiti'on for land rigs is generally on a regional basis. i

Seasonality ;
Our rigs in the Gulf of Mexxco are subject to severe weather during certain periods of the year, particularly humcane season, which
extends from June through November. In addition, our land rig in Kazakhstan is operatmg on an artificial island injthe Caspian Sea.
Because winter ice condmons| hinder access and resupply, the rig may be placed in a non-operating standby mode during winter
months at a reduced dayrate. Otherwise, our business activities are not significantly affected by seasonal fluctuations! Most of our rigs
outside the Gulf of Mexico and‘ Kazakhstan are located in geographical areas that are not subject to severe weather changes that would
halt operations for prolonged periods.
b
Insurance f
]

QOur operations are subject 0 hazards inherent in the drilling of oil and natural gas wells, including blowouts and'wel! fires, which
could cause personal injury, suspend drilling operanons or seriously damage or destroy the equipment involved. Offshore drilling
operations are also subject to hazards particular to marine operations including capsizing, grounding, cotlision and loss or damage
from severe weather. We haw' insurance in place covermg certain exposures, including physical damage to our drilling rigs and
personal injury claims by our drlllmg crews. Our marine package policy provides coverage for damage to our ngs and loss of hire




insurance for certain assets with higher dayrates. In addition, we maintain insurance coverage for cargo, control of well, auto liability,
non-owned aviation and similar potential liabilities. Due to losses sustained by the offshore drilling industry as a result of the
hurricanes in the Gulf of Mexico in 2004 and 2005, our insurance costs increased significantly as our policies renewed in July 2006,
Underwriters have also imposed an aggregate limit of approximately $85.0 million for damage due to named wind storms in the
LS. Gulf of Mexico, with a $10.0 million deductible per named wind storm.

Environmental and Other Regulatory Matters

Our operations include activities that are subject to numerous intemational, federal, state and local laws and regulations, including
the U.S. Oil Pollution Act of 1990, the U.S. Outer Continental Shelf Lands Act, the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act and the International Convention for the Prevention of Pollution from Ships, governing the discharge
of materials into the environment or otherwise relating to environmental protection. Numerous governmental agencies issue
regulations to implement and enforce such laws, which often require difficult and costly compliance measures that carry substantial
administrative, civil and criminal penalties or may result in injunctive relief for failure to comply. Changes in environmental laws and
regulations occur frequently, and any changes that result in more stringent and costly compliance could adversely affect our
consolidated financial statements. While we believe that we are in substantial compliance with the current laws and regulations, there
is no assurance that compliance can be maintained in the future. We do not presently anticipate that compliance with currently
applicable environmental laws and regulations will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements during
2007,

Hurricanes Katrina and Rita damaged a number of the industry’s rigs in the Gulf of Mexico fleet, and rigs that were moved off
location by the storms damaged platforms, pipelines, wellheads and other drilling rigs. In May 2006, the Minerals Management
Service of the U.S. Department of the Interior (*“MMS”) issued interim guidelines for jackup rig fitness requirements for the 2006
hurricane season, effectively imposing new requirements on the offshore oil and natural gas industry in an attempt to increase the
likelihood of survival of jackup rigs and other offshore drilling units during a hurricane. These MMS interim guidelines, which
expired on November 30, 2006, resulted in our jackup rigs operating in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico being required to operate with a
higher air gap during the 2006 hurricane season, effectively reducing the water depth in which they can operate. The guidelines also
provided for enhanced information and data requirements from oil and natural gas companies operating properties in the U.S. Gulf of
Mexico. The MMS may issue similar guidelines for future hurricane seasons and may take other steps that could increase the cost of
operations or reduce the area of operations for our jackup rigs, thus reducing their marketability. Implementation of new MMS
guidelines or regulations may subject us o increased costs or limit the operational capabilities of our rigs and could materially and
adversely affect our operations and financial condition.

Employees

As of December 31, 2006, we employed approximately 14,300 personnel and had approximately 1,000 contractors working for us.
Approximately 1,800 of our employees and contractors were located in the United States and 13,500 were located abroad. Hourly rig
crews constitute the vast majority of our employees. None of our U.S. employees are represented by a collective bargaining
agreement. Many of our international employees are subject to industry-wide labor contracts within their respective countries. We
believe that our relations with our employees are good. '

Available Information

Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K, and any amendments to these
filings, are available free of charge through our internet website at www.prideinternational.com as soon as reasonably practicable after
these reports have been electronically filed with, or furnished to, the Securities and Exchange Commission. These repons also are
available at the SEC’s internet website at www.sec.gov. Information contained on or accessible from our website is not incorporated
by reference into this annual report on Form 10-K and should not be considered part of this report or any other filing that we make
with the SEC.

We have filed the required certifications of our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer under Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 as exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 to this annual report. In 2006, we submitted to the New York Stock Exchange
the chief executive officer certification required by Section 303A.12(a) of the NYSE’s Listed Company Manual.




ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS ,

A material or extended dectir'ne in expenditures by oil and natural gas companies due to a decline or volatility in oil and natural
gas prices, a decrease in delmand for oil and natural gas or other factors may reduce demand for our servicesiand substantially
reduce our profitability or resalt in our incarring losses. r

|l

The profitability of our operations depends upon conditions in the oil and natural gas industry and, specifically, the level of
exploration, development and ‘production activity by oil and natural gas companies. Oil and natural gas prices and market expectations
regarding potential changes iln these prices significantly affect this level of activity. However, higher commodity prices do not
necessarily translate into increased drilling activity since our customers’.expectations of future commodity prices typically drive
demand for our rigs. Oil andinatural gas prices are volatile. Commodity prices are directly influenced by many factors beyond our
control, including: : . : [
B
I
[
r
» the cost of exploring for, developing, producing and delivering oil and natural gas; E!
¢

li
(|

the demand for oi] and natural gas;

+ advances in exploration, development and production technology;

+ government regulations;

i

+ local and international political, economic and weather conditions; .

» the ability of OPEC to set and maintain proauction levels and prices;
+ the level of production b?r non-OPEC countries; . ' {
« demestic and foreign taxl policies; |
« the development and exploitation of alternative fuels; i

« the policies of various governments regarding exploration and development of their oil and natural gas reserves; and
1
+ the worldwide military|and political environment and uncertainty or instability resulting from an escalation or additional
outbreak of armed hostilities or other crises in the Middle East and other oil and natural gas producing regions.;
I

Continued hostilities in the Middle East and the occurrence or threat of terrorist attacks against the United States or other countries
could cause a downturn in the economies of the United States and those of other countries. A lower level of econdmic activity could
result in a decline in energy" consurnption, which could cause our revenues and margins to decline and limitﬁour future growth
prospects. More specifically, these risks could lead to increased volatility in prices for oil and natural gas and could affect the markets
for our drilling services. In addition, these risks could increase instability in the financial and insurance markets':and make it more
difficult for us to access ca]')ital and to obtain insurance coverages that we consider adequate or are otherwisp required by our
contracts. )

)

Depending on the market prices of oil and natura! gas, and even during periods of high commodity prices, companies exploring for
and producing oil and naturdl gas may cancel or curtail their drilling programs, or reduce their levels of capital expenditures for
exploration and production fora variety of reasons, including their lack of success in exploration efforts. Such a réduction in demand
may decrease daily rates and|utilization of our rigs. Any significant decrease in daily rates or utilization of our rigs, particularly our
high-specification drillships, semisubmersible rigs or jackup rigs, could materially reduce our revenues and profitability.

An oversupply of comparable or higher specification rigs in the markets in which we compete could depress the demand and
contract prices for our rigs \and materially reduce our revenues and profitability. i
!

Demand and contract pricelzs customers pay for our rigs also are affected by the total supply of comparable rigs available for service
in the markets in which we compete. During prior periods of high utilization and dayrates, industry participants have increased the
supply of rigs by ordering the construction of new units. This has often created an oversupply of drilling units and has caused a decline




in utilization and dayrates when the rigs enter the market, sometimes for extended periods of time as rigs have been absorbed into the
active fleet. Orders for construction of approximately 65 jackup rigs have been announced with delivery dates ranging from 2007 to
2010. Most of these units are cantilevered units and are considered to be premium units. In the deepwater sector, there have been
announcements of approximately 45 new semisubmersible rigs and drillships and the upgrade of approximately five other
semisubmersibles to ultra-deepwater units, with delivery forecast to occur from 2007 through 2010. A number of the contracts for
units currently under construction provide for options for the construction of additional units, and we believe further new construction
announcements are likely for all classes of rigs pursuant to the exercise of one or more of these options and otherwise. In addition, our
competitors’ “cold-stacked” (i.e., minimally crewed with little or no scheduled maintenance being performed) rigs may re-enter the
market. The entry into service of newly constructed, upgraded or reactivated units will increase marketed supply and could curtail a
further strengthening of dayrates, or reduce them, in the affected markets as rigs are absorbed into the active fleet. Any further
increase in construction of new drilling units may exacerbate the negative impacts on utilization and dayrates. In addition, the new
construction of high specification rigs, as well as changes in our competitors® drilling rig fleets, could require us to make material
additional capital investments to keep our rig fleet competitive. '

+

QOur industry is highly competitive and cyclical, with intense price competition,

Our industry is highly competitive. Qur contracts are traditionally awarded on a competitive bid basis. Pricing is often the primary
factor in determining which qualified contractor is awarded a job. Rig availability and each contractor’s safety performance record and
reputation for quality aiso can be key factors in the determination. Some of our competitors in the drilling industry are larger than we
are and have more diverse fleets, or fleets with generally higher specifications, and greater resources than we have. Some of these
competitors also are incorporated in tax-haven countries outside the United States, which provides them with significant tax
advantages that are not available to us as a U.S. company and which materially impairs our ability to compete with them for many
projects that would be beneficial to our company. In addition, recent mergers within the oil and natural gas industry have reduced the
number of available customers and suppliers, resulting in increased price competition and fewer alternatives for sourcing of key
supplies. We may not be able to maintain our competitive position, and we believe that competition for contracts will continue to be
intense in the foreseeable future. Our inability to compete successfully may reduce our revenues and profitability.

Historically, the offshore service industry has been highly cyclical, with periods of high demand, limited rig supply and high
dayrates often followed by periods of low demand, excess rig supply and low dayrates. Periods of low demand and excess rig supply
intensify the competition in the industry and often result in rigs, particularly lower specification rigs like a large portion of our fleet,
being idle for long periods of time. We may be required to idle rigs or enter into lower dayrate contracts in response to market
conditions in the future. Prolonged periods of low utilization and dayrates could result in the recognition of impairment charges on
certain of our rigs if future cash flow estimates, based upon information available to management at the time, indicate that the carrying
value of these rigs may not be recoverable.

Failure to attract and retain skilled personnel could hurt our operations.

We require highly skilled personnel to operate and provide technical services and support for our business. Competition for the
skilled and other labor required for our operations intensifies as the number of rigs activated or added to worldwide fleets or under
construction increases. In periods of high utilization, such as the current period, we have found it more difficult to find and retain
qualified individuals. We have experienced tightening in the relevant labor markets since 2005 and have recently sustained the loss of
experienced personnel to our customers and competitors. Qur labor costs increased significantly in 2005 and 2006, and we expect this
trend to continue in 2007. The shortages of qualified personnel or the inability to obtain and retain qualified personnel could
negatively affect the quality and timeliness of our work. We have intensified our recruitment and training programs in an effort to
meet our anticipated personnel needs. These efforts may be unsuccessful, and competition for skilled personnel could materially
impact our business by limiting or affecting the quality and safety of our operations or further increasing our costs.

Qur international operations involve additional risks not generally associated with domestic operations, which may hurt our
operations materially.

In 2006, we derived 81.2% of our revenues from countries outside the United States. Our operations in these areas are subject to the
following risks, among others:

« foreign currency fluctuations and devaluation;

* restrictions on cuirency repatriation;




. politi‘cal, social and economic instability, tvar and civil disturbances; ' . i
* seizure, exl)ropriation or nationalization of assets; . : ‘ !
* significant govemmcntal inﬂuence over Arnany aspects of local economies; ‘ i
. unexcected changes in regulatory requirements; . , - S 1|

« work stoppages; _ ' A - . ll ' '
+ damage to our equipment or violence directed at our employees; . £

« imposition of trade barriers; C ll

= wage and price controls; . : . |

» uncertainty or instabilili:y resulting from hostilities or other crises in the Middle East, West Africa, Latin' America or other
!

geographic areas in which we operate; and |

+ acts of terrorism. . : : il
We attemnpt to limit the risks of currency fluctuation and restrictions on currency repatriation where p0551ble bylobtammg contracts
providing for payment in ; dollars or freely convertible foreign currency. To the extent p0551ble we seek to limit our exposure to
local currencies by matchmg the acceptance of local currencies to our expense requirements in those currencies. “Although we have
done this in the past, we mav not be able to take these actions in the future, thereby exposing us to foreign currency fluctuations that
could cause our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows to deteriorate materially.
' ll
In 2006, we derived 6.3% of our revenues from operations in Venezuela which has been experiencing polmcal economic and
social turmoil, including Iabc:rr strikes and demonstrations. The implications and results of the political, economic a|l|1d social instability
in Venezuela are uncertain af this time, but the instability could have an adverse effect on our business. The Venezuelan government
frequently intervenes in the Venezuelan economy and occasionally makes significant changes in policy. Recently‘, the government’s
actions to control inflation and implement other policies have involved wage and price controls, currency dévaluations, capital
controls and limits on lmports among other things. Several measures imposed by the Venezuelan govemmt—:ml such as exchange
controls and currency transfe'r restrictions, limit our abtllty to convert the local currency into U.S. dollars and transfer excess funds out
of Venezuela. Although Ol.ll current drilling contracts in-Venezuela call for-a significant portion of our dayrates to be paid in
U.S. dollars, changes in cx1st1ng regulations or the interpretation or enforcement of those regulations could further restrict our ability
to receive U.S. dollar paym!ents The exchange controls could also result in an artificially high value being placed on the local
currency, which could affectour operatmg costs, revenues and financial results. "
1
Our international operatmns are also subject to other rlsks including foreign monetary and tax policies and nullification or
modification of contracts. Addmonally, our ablhty to compete in international contract drilling markets may bel limited by foreign
governmental regulations that favor or require the awarding of contracts to local contractors or by regulanons requiring foreign
contractors to employ cmzens of, or purchase supplies from, a particular jurisdiction. Furthermore, our- foreign subsndtanes may face
governmentally imposed resfrictions from time to time on their ability to transfer funds to us. ”

We are conducting an investigation into allegations of improper payments to foreign government off icials, as well as
corresponding accounting entries and internal control issues. The outcome and impact of this investigation are unknown at this
time. ||

During the course of an 1ntemal audit and investigation relating to certain of our Latin American operations, olur management and
internal audit department ret‘ewed allegations of improper payments to foreign government officials. In February, 2006, shortly after
and as a result of certain statements that were made by an employee during the investigation, the Audit Committee of our Board of
Directors assumed direct l‘eSpOl’lSlb]llty over the investigation and retained independent outside counsel to investigate the allegations,

as well as corresponding accounting entries and internal control issues, and to advise the Audit Committee. l|

I |




The investigation, which is continuing, has found evidence suggesting that payments, which may violate the U.S. Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act, were made to government officials in Latin America aggregating less than $1 million. The evidence to date regarding
these payments suggests that payments were made beginning in early 2003 through 2005 (a) to vendors with the intent that they would
be transferred to government officials for the purpose of extending drilling contracts for two jackup rigs and one semisubmersible rig
operating offshore Venezuela; and (b) to one or more government officials, or to vendors with the intent that they would be transferred
to government officials, for the purpose of collecting payment for work completed in connection with offshore drilling contracts in
Venezuela. In addition, the evidence suggests that other payments were made beginning in 2003 through early 2006 (a) to one or more
government officials in Mexico in connection with the clearing of a jackup rig and equipment through customs or the movement of
personnel through immigration; and (b) with respect to the potentially improper entertainment of government officials in Mexico.

The Audit Committee, through independent outside counsel, has undertaken a review of our compliance with the FCPA in certain
of our other international operations. This review has found evidence suggesting that in 2004 and 2005 payments may have been made
to government officials in Saudi Arabia and Kazakhstan, aggregating less than $175,000, in connection with clearing rigs or
equipment through customs or reselving outstanding customs issues in those countries. The investigation of the matters related to
Saudi Arabia and Kazakhstan and the Audit Committee’s compliance review are ongoing. Accordingly, there can be no assurances
that evidence of additional potential FCPA violations may not be uncovered in Saudi Arabia, Kazakhstan or other countries.

Our management and the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors believe it likely that members of our senior operations
management either were aware, or should have been aware, that improper payments to foreign government officials were made or
proposed to be made. Our former Chief Operating Officer resigned as Chief Operating Officer effective on May 31, 2006 and has
elected to retire from the company, although he will remain an employee, but not an officer, during the pendency of the investigation
to assist us with the investigation and to be avaiiable for consultation and to answer questions relating to our business. His retirement
benefits will be subject to the determination by our Audit Committee or our Board of Directors that it does not have cause (as defined
in his retirement agreement with us) to terminate his employment. On December 1, 2006, our Vice President — Western Hemisphere
Operations resigned. On December 2, 2006, our former Country Manager in Venezuela and Mexico was terminated. We have placed
another member of our senior operations management on administrative leave pending the outcome of the investigation,

We voluntarily disclosed information relating to the initial allegations and other information found in the investigation and
compliance review to the U.S. Department of Justice and the Securities and Exchange Commission and are cooperating with these
authorities as the investigation and compliance reviews continue and as they review the matter. If violations of the FCPA occurred, we
could be subject to fines, civil and criminal penalties, equitable remedies, including profit disgorgemeunt, and injunctive relief. Civil
penalties under the antibribery provisions of the FCPA could range up to $10,000 per violation, with a criminal fine up to the greater
of $2 million per violation or twice the gross pecuniary gain to us or twice the gross pecuniary loss to others, if larger. Civil penalties
under the accounting provisions of the FCPA can range up to $500,000 and a company that knowingly commits a violation can be
fined up to $25 million. In addition, both the SEC and the DOIJ could assert that conduct extending over a period of time may
constitute multiple violations for purposes of assessing the penalty amounts. Often, dispositions for these types of matters result in
modifications to business practices and compliance programs and possibly a monitor being appointed to review future business and
practices with the goal of ensuring compliance with the FCPA.

We could also face fines, sanctions and other penalties from authorities in the relevant foreign jurisdictions, including prohibition of
our participating in or curtailment of business operations in those jurisdictions. Qur customers in those jurisdictions could seek to
impose penalties or take other actions adverse to our interests. In addition, disclosure of the subject matter of the investigation could
adversely affect our reputation and our ability to obtain new business or retain existing business from our current clients and potential
clients, to attract and retain employees and to access the capital markets. No amounts have been accrued related to any potential fines,
sanctions or other penalties. .

We cannot currently predict what, if any, actions may be taken by the DOJ, the SEC, the applicable government or other authorities
or our customers or the effect the actions may have on our results of operations, financial condition or cash flows, on our consolidated
financial statements or on our business in the countries at issue and other jurisdictions.

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, our operations in Venezuela provided revenues of approximately
$156.9 million, $172.6 million, and $167.1 million, or approximately 6.3%, 8.5% and 9.8% of our total consolidated revenues,
respectively. Our Venezuela operations provided earnings (loss) from operations of approximately $6.9 million, $16.8 million, and
$(6.7) million or approximately 1.3%, 5.2% and (2.7)% of our total consolidated earnings from operations for 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, we had accounts receivable from Petroleos de Venezuela, S.A. totaling
$27.6 million and $33.4 million, respectively.




P . .. .
If we are unable to obtain new or favorable contracts for rigs whoese contracls are expiring, our revenies and profitability could
be materially reduced. ;

'

. u
We have a number of contracts that will expire in 2007 and 2008. Our ability to renew these contracts or obtain new contracts and
the terms of any such contracts will depend on market conditions. We may be unable to renew our expiring contracts or obtain new
contracts for the rigs, and the dayrates under any new contracts may be substantially below the existing dayrates, which could
materially reduce our revenue; and profitability. . .
Our customers may seek to cancel or renegotiate some of our drilling contracts during periods of depressed market conditions or
if we experience downtime, bpemrionai difficulties, or safety related issues. :

Substantially all our contracts with major customers are dayrate contracts, where we charge a fixed charge per day regardless of the
number of days needed to drill the well. During depressed market conditions, a customer may no longer need a rig that is currently
under contract or may be able to obtain a comparable rig at a lower daily rate. As a result, customers may seek to renegotiate the terms
of their existing drilling contracts or avoid their obligations under those contracts. In addition, our customers may have the right to
terminate, or may seek to rencgotiate, existing contracts if we experience downtime, operational problems above the contractual limit
or safety-related issues, if the!rig is a total loss or in other specified circumstances. Some of our contracts with our customers include
terms allowing them to termijnate contracts without cause, with little or no prior notice and without penalty orqearly termination
payments. In addition, we could be required to pay penalties, which could be material, if some of our contracts with our customers are
terminated due to downtime or operational problems. Some of our other contracts with customers may be cancelable at the option of
the customer upon payment c:)t" a penalty, which may not fully compensate us for the loss of the contract. Early termination of a
contract may result in a rig being idle for an extended period of time. The likelihood that a customer may seek to terminate a contract
is increased during periods ofimarket weakness. If our customers cancel some of our significant contracts and we are unable to secure
new contracts on substamially| similar terms, our revenues and profitability could be materially reduced. “

[
Our jackup rigs and some of our lower specification semisubmersible rigs are at a relative disadvantage to higher specification
jackup and semisubmersible rigs. These higher specification rigs may be more likely to obtain contracts than our lower
specification rigs, particulm:'ly during market downturns. '

Many of our competitors ﬂave jackup fleets with generally higher specification rigs than those in our jackup fleet, and our fleet
includes a number of older, lower specification semisubmersible rigs. In addition, the announced construction of new rigs includes
approximately 110 jackup rig:';, semisubmersible rigs and ultra-deepwater drillships. Particularly during market downturns when there
is decreased rig demand, high'er specification rigs may be more likely to obtain contracts than lower specification rigs. In the past, our
lower specification rigs have been stacked earlier in the cycle of decreased rig demand than many of our competitors’ higher
specification rigs and have been reactivated later in the cycle, which has adversely impacted our business and could be repeated in the
future. In addition, higher spr':ciﬁcation rigs may be more adaptable to different operating conditions and have greater flexibility to
move to areas of demand in response to changes in market conditions. Furthermore, in recent years, an increasing amount of
exploration and production e)':penditures have been concentrated in deeper water drilling programs and deeper formations, including
deep natural gas prospects, rec‘]uiring higher specification rigs. This trend is expected to continue and could result in a material decline
in demand for the lower specification rigs in our fleet.

Our ability to move some of our rigs to other regions is limited, : ”

Most jackup and submersitle rigs can be moved from one region to another, and in this sense the contract drilling market is a global
market. The supply and demand balance for jackup and semisubmersible rigs may vary somewhat from region to region, because the
cost 1o move a rig is signiﬁc'am, there is limited availability of rig-moving vessels and some rigs are designed to work in specific
regions. However, signiﬁcant! variations between regions tend not to exist on a long-term basis due to the ability to move rigs. Our
mat-supported jackup rigs are less capable of managing variable sea floor conditions found in areas outside the Gulf of Mexico. As a

result, our ability to move these rigs to other regions in response to changes in market conditions is limited.

|
f
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We rely heavily on a small number of customers and the loss of a significant customer could have a malermf adverse impact on
our financial resullts.

Qur contract drilling business is subject to the usual risks associated with having a limited number of customers for our services.
For the year ended December 31, 2006, Petrobras provided 16.7% of our consolidated revenues. Qur two next largest customers, none
of which individually represented more than 10% of revenues, accounted in the aggregate for 16.3% of our 2006 consolidated
revenues. For the year ended December 31, 2005, Petrobras and Petroleos Mexicanos S.A. (“PEMEX"™) accounted for 14.4% and
10.7%, respectively, of consolidated revenues. Our two next largest customers, neither of which individually represented more than
10% of revenues, accounted in the aggregate for 13.9% of our 2005 consolidated revenues. Qur results of operations could be
materially adversely affected if any of our major customers terminates its contracts with us, fails to renew its existing contracts or
refuses to award new contracts to us.

Our debt levels and debt agreement restrictions may limit our hqmd:ty and flexibility in obrammg additional financing and in
pursuing other business opportunities.

As of December 31, 2006, we had $1,386.6 million in long-term debt. Our current indebtedness may have several important effects
on our future operations, including:

* a portion of our cash flow from operanons will be dedicated to the payment of interest and principal on such debt and will not be
avallable for other purposes;

* covenants contained in our debt arrangements require us to meet certain financial tests, which may affect our flexibility in
planning for, and reacting to, changes in our business and may limit our ability to dispose of assets or place restrictions on the
use of proceeds from such dispositions, withstand current or future economic or industry downtumns and compete with others in
our industry for strategic opportunities; and

« our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, general corporate and other
purposes may be limited.

Qur ability to meet our debt service obligations and to reduce our total indebtedness will be dependent upon our future
performance, which will be subject to general economic conditions, industry cycles and financial, business and other factors affecting
our operations, many of which are beyond our control.

We are subject to a number of operating hazards, including those specific to marine operations. We may not have insurance to
cover all these hazards.

Our operations are subject to hazards customary in the drilling industry, such as blowouts, reservoir damage, loss of production,
loss of well control, lost or stuck drill strings, equipment defects, punchthroughs, craterings, fires, explosions and poilution. Contract
drilting and well servicing require the use of heavy equipment and exposure to hazardous conditions, which may subject us to liability
claims by employees, customers and third parties. These hazards can cause personal injury or loss of life, severe damage to or
destruction of property and equipment, pollution or environmental damage and suspension of operations. Our offshore fleet is also
subject to hazards inherent in marine operations, either while on site or during mobilization, such as capsizing, sinking, grounding,
collision and damage from severe weather. Operations may also be suspended because of machinery breakdowns, abnormal drilling
conditions, failure of subcontractors to perform or supply goods or services, or personnel shortages. We customan]y provide contract
indemnity to our customers for:

+ claims that could be asserted by us relating to damage to or loss of our equipment, including rigs;
* claims that could be asserted by us or our employees relating to personal injury or loss of life; and
+ legal and financial consequences of spills of industrial waste and other liquids, but only to the extent (1) that the waste or other

liquids were in our control at the time of the spill, (2) that our level of culpability is greater than mere negligence or (3) of
specified monetary limits.




Certain areas in and near the Gulf of Mexico are subject to hurricanes and other extreme weather conditions on a relatively frequent
basis. Our drilling rigs in theI Gulf of Mexico may be located in areas that could cause them to be susceptible to damage or total loss
by these storms. In addition, damage caused by high winds and turbulent seas to our rigs, our shorebases and our corporate
infrastructure could potential ly cause us to curtail operations for significant periods of time until the damages can bé repaired.

:

We maintain insurance for injuries to our employees, damage to or loss of our equipment and other insurance coverage for normal
business risks, including g'eneral liability insurance. Any insurance protection may not be sufficient or effective under all
circumstances or against all hazards to which we may be subject. For example, pollution, reservoir damage and environmental risks
generally are not fully insurzftble. Except for a portion of our deepwater fleet, we generally do not maintain business interruption or
loss of hire insurance. In addition, some of our primary insurance policies have substantial per occurrence or annual deductibles and/or
self-insured aggregate amounts,

As a result of a number of catastrophic events in our industry over the last few years, such as the hurricanes in the Gulf of Mexico
in 2004 and 2005, insurance|underwriters have increased insurance premiums for many of the coverages historicaily maintained and
have issued general notices of cancellation and significant changes for a wide variety of insurance coverages. The oil and natural gas
industry in the Gulf of MII.XICO suffered extensive damage from those hurricanes. As a result, our insurance costs increased
significantly as our policies renewed in July 2006. In addition, underwriters have also imposed an aggregate limit of approximately
$85.0 million for damage due to named wind storms in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico, with a $10.0 million deductible per named wind
storm. A number of our customers that produce oil and natural gas in the Gulf of Mexico have maintained business interruption
insurance for their productlon This insurance may cease to be available in the future, which could adversely impact our customers’
business prospects in the Gulf of Mexico and reduce demand for our services.

The occurrence of a significant event against which we are not fully insured, or of a number of lesser events against which we are
insured but are subject to SLEbstantial deductibles, aggregate limits, and/or self-insured amounts, could materially increase our costs
and impair our profitability .md financial condition. We.may not be able to maintain adequate insurance at rates or on terms that we
consider reasonable or acceptable or be able to obtain insurance against certain risks.

Rig upgrade, refurbishment, repair and construction projects are subject to risks, including delays and cast overruns, which
could have an adverse tmpact on our available cash resources and results of operations.

l
We make significant upgrade refurbishment and repair expenditures for our fleet from time to time, particutarly in light of the
aging nature of our rigs. Some of these expenditures are unplanned. In addition, depending on available opportunities, we may
construct rigs for our fleet 1n| the future. All of these projects are subject to the risks of delay or cost overruns, including costs or delays
resulting from the followmg I
» unexpectedly long delivery times for or shortages of key equipment and materials;
= shortages of skilled labor and other shipyard personnel necessary to perform the work; |
» reliance on third-party equipment vendors;
« unforeseen increases inT the cost of equipment, labor and raw materials, particularly steel;
. L.
» unforeseen design or engineering problems; b
* unanticipated actual or-purported change orders;
|

» disputes with shipyards: and suppliers;

* work stoppages;

» financial or other dlfﬁcultles at shipyards; '
+ adverse weather condilions; and

* inability to obtain required permits or approvals.
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Significant cost overruns or delays could materially affect our financial condition and results of operations.. Additionally, capital
expenditures for rig upgrade, refurbishment and construction projects could materially exceed our planned capital expenditures.
Moreover, our rigs undergoing upgrade, refurbishment and repair may not eam a dayrate during the period they are out of service.

We may not be able to maintain or replace our rigs as they age.
The capital associated with the repair and maintenance of our fleet increases with age. We may not be able to maintain our fleet by
extending the economic life of existing rigs, and our financial resources may not be sufficient to enable us to make expenditures
necessary for these purposes or to acquire or build replacement rigs. ‘

We are subject to numerous governmental laws and regulations, including those that may impose significant costs and liability on
us for environmental and natural resource damages.

Many aspects of our operations are affected by governmental laws and regulations that may- relate directly or indirectly to the
contract drilling and well servicing industries, including those requiring us to control the discharge of oil and other contaminants into
the environment or otherwise relating to environmental protection. Our operations and activities in the United States are subject to
numerous environmental laws and regulations, including the Qil Pollution Act of 1990, the Outer Continental Shelf Lands Act, the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act and the International Convention for the Prevention of
Pollution from Ships. Additionally, other countries where we operate have environmental laws and regulations covering the discharge
of oil and other contaminants and protection of the environment in connection with operations. Failure to comply with these laws and
regulations may result in the assessment of administrative, civil and even criminal penalties, the imposition of remedial obligations,
the denial or revocation of permits or other authorizations and the issuance of injunctions that may limit or prohibit our operations.
Laws and regulations protecting the environment have become more stringent in recent years and may in certain circumstances imposé
strict liability, rendering us liable for environmental and natural resource damages without regard to negligence or fault on our part.
These laws and regulations may expose us to liability for the conduct of, or conditions caused by, others or for-acts that were in
compliance with all applicable laws at the time the acts were performed. The application of these requirements, the modification of
existing laws or regulations or the adoption of new laws or regulations curtailing exploratory or development drilling for oil and
natural gas could materially limit future contract drilling opportunities or materially increase our costs or both.-In addition, we may be
required to make significant capital expenditures to comply with laws and regulations or materially increase our costs or both.

Our ability to operate our rigs in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico could be restricted or made more costly by government regulation.

Hurricanes Katrina and Rita in 2005 caused damage to a number of rigs in the Gulf of Mexico fleet, and rigs that were moved off
location by the storms damaged platforms, pipelines, wellheads and other drilling rigs. In May 2006, the MMS issued interim
guidelines for jackup rig fitness requirements for the 2006 hurricane season, etfectively imposing new requirements on the offshore oil
and natural gas industry in an attempt to increase the likelihood of survival of jackup rigs and other offshore drilling units during a
hurricane. These MMS interim guidelines, which expired on November 30, 2006, resulted in our jackup rigs operating in the U.S. Gulf
of Mexico being required to operate with a higher air gap during the 2006 hurricane season, effectively reducing the water depth in
which they can operate. The guidelines also provided for enhanced information and data requirements from oil and natural gas
companies operating properties in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico. The MMS may issue similar guidelines for future hurricane seasons and
_may take other steps that could increase the cost of operations or reduce the area of operations for our jackup rigs, thus reducing their
marketability. lmplementation of new MMS guidelines or regulations may subiject us to increased costs and limit the operationat
capabilities of our rigs.

A change in tax laws of any country in which we operate could result in a higher tax expense or a higher effective tax rate on our
worldwide earnings.

We conduct our worldwide operations through various subsidiaries. Tax laws and regulations are highly complex and subject to
interpretation. Consequently, we are subject to changing tax laws, treaties and regulations in and between countries in which we
operate, including treaties between the United States and other nations. Qur income tax expense is based upoen our interpretation of the
tax laws in effect in various countries at the time that the expense was incurred. A change in these tax laws, treaties or regulations,
including those in and involving the United States, ot in the interpretation thereof] could result in a materially hxgher tax expense or a
higher effective tax rate on our worldwide earnings.




~ i
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As required by law, we fi la|= periodic tax returns that are subject to review and examination by various revenue agenmes within the
jurisdictions in which we operale We are currently comestmg several tax assessments that could be material and may contest future
assessments where we believe the assessments are in error. We cannot predict or provide assurance as to the ultimate outcome of
existing or future tax assessments.

Many of our contracts with our customers for our offshore rigs are long-term fived dayrate contracts. Increases in our costs,
which are unpredictable and Sluctuate based on events outside our control, could adversely impact our pmf ftability on those
contracis.

A number of our contracts with our customers for our offshore rigs are on a long-term fixed dayrate basis. Generally, costs increase
as the business environment 10r drilling services improves and demand for oilfield equipment and skilled labor increases. Long-term
fixed dayrate contracts limit ()ur ability to adjust dayrates in response to increased costs. As a result, substantial increase in our costs
associated with these contracts would adversely impact our profitability and this impact could be material.

Our long-term fixed dayrate contracts may limir our ability to benefit from increasing dayrates in an improving market.

In periods of rising demand for offshore rigs, a drilling contractor generally would prefer to enter into well-to-well or other shorter
term contracts that would a]low the contractor to proﬁt from increasing dayrates, while customers with reasonably definite drilling
programs would typically pre-fer longer term contracts in order to maintain dayrates at a consistent level. Conversely, in periods of
decreasing demand for offshore rigs, a drilling contractor generally would prefer longer term contracts to preserve dayrates and
utilization, while customers 'generally would prefer well-to-well contracts or other shorter term contracts that would allow the
customer to benefit from the decreasing dayrates, As a result of a number of our contracts for offshore rigs being ona long-term fixed
dayrate basis, our inability to fully benefit from i mcrcasmg dayrates in an improving market may limit our proﬁtablllty

Unionization efforts and labor regulations in certain countries in which we operate could materially i mcrease our costs or limit
our flexibility.

U
Certain of our employees i in international markets are represented by labor unions and work under collective bargaining or similar
agreements, which are sub_]ect to periodic renegotiation. Efforts have been made from time to time to unionize other portions of our
workforce. In addition, we ha've been subjected to strikes or work stoppages in certain countries. Additional unionization eff‘ons new
collective bargaining agreemefnts or work stoppages could materially increase our costs or limit our flexibility.

Certain legal obligations require us to contribute certain amounts to retirement funds and pension plans and restrict our ability to
dismniss employees. Future regulations or court interpretations established in the countries in which we conduct our operations could
increase our costs and materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operation.

We may incur substantial c:lrsts associated with workforce reductions.

In many of the countries m which we operate, our workforce has certain compensation and other rights relating to involuntary
terminations arising from our various collective bargaining agreements and from statutory requirements of thosé countries. If we
choose to cease operations in one of those countries or if market conditions reduce the demand for our drilling services in such a
country, we could incur costs |'whlch may be material, associated with workforce reductions. :

Public health threats could thav.e a material adverse effect on our operations and our financial results.

Public health threats, such Jas the bird flu, Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS), and other highly communicable diseases,
outbreaks of which have alre‘lldy occurred in various parts of the world in which we operate, could adversely impact our operations,
the operations of our clients and the global economy, including the worldwide demand for oil and natural gas and the level of demand
for our services. Any quaramme of personnel or inability to access our offices or rigs could adversely affect our operations. Travel
restrictions or operational prob]ems in any part of the world in which we operate, or any reduction in the demand for drilling services
caused by public health threat’ in the future, may materially impact operations and adversely affect our financial results.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS '
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our property consists primarily of mobile offshore and tand-based drilling rigs, well servicing rigs and ancillary equipment, most of
which we own, We operate some rigs under joint venture arrangements, management agreements and lease agreements. Some of our
rigs are pledged to collateralize our secured credit facilities. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources” in Item 7 of this annual report. We also own and operate transport and
heavy duty trucks and other ancillary equipment. :

We own office and operating facilities in Houma, Louisiana and in Algeria, Angola, Argentina, Brazil, Colombia, France, Peru and
Venezuela. Additionally, we lease office and operating facilities in Houston, Texas and in several international locations.

We incorporate by reference in response to this item the information set forth in Item 1 and Item 7 of this annual report and the
information set forth in Notes 3 and 5 of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this annual report.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
FCPA Investigation

We incorporate by reference in response to this item the information set forth in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations — FCPA Investigation” in Item 7 of this annual report.

Other Legal Proceedings

In August 2004, we were notified that certain of our subsidiaries have been named, along with other defendants, in several
complaints that have been filed in the Circuit Courts of the State of Mississippi by several hundred individuals that allege that they
were employed by some of the named defendants between approximately 1965 and 1986. Additional suits have been filed since
August 2004. The complaints allege that certain drilling contractors used products containing asbestos in offshore drilling operations,
land-based drilling operations and in drilling structures, drilling rigs, vessels and other equipment. The plaintiffs assert claims based
on, among other things, negligence and strict liability and claims under the Jones Act. The complaints name as defendants numerous
other companies that are not affiliated with us, including companies that allegedly manufactured drilling related products containing
asbestos that are the subject of the complaints. The plaintiffs seek, among other things, an award of unspecified compensatory and
punitive damages. Eight individuals of the many plaintiffs in these suits have been identified as allegedly having worked for us or one
of our affiliates or predecessors. Currently, discovery and investigation is ongoing to determine whether these individuals were
employed in our offshore operations during the alleged period of exposure. We intend to defend ourselves vigorously and, based on
the information available to us at this time, we do not expect the outcome of these lawsuits to have a material adverse effect on our
financial position, results of operations or cash flows; however, there can be no assurance as to the ultimate outcome of these lawsuits.

Paul A. Bragg, our former President and Chief Executive Officer, filed suit against us in State District Court of Harris County,
Texas in early October 2005 seeking a declaratory judgment that the non-competition provisions of his employment agreement are
unlawful and unenforceable. Shortly thereafter, Mr. Bragg filed a second lawsuit against us alleging that we breached written and oral
employment agreements with him and seeking damages aggregating more than $17.0 million. The suits were consolidated.

We filed counterclaims against Mr. Bragg related to his non-competition claim seeking a declaratory judgment that the non-
competition provisions of his employment agreement are enforceable and restitution of certain amounts paid to Mr. Bragg should
there be a finding that the non-competition provisions of his employment agreement are unenforceable. On February 1, 2007, the trial
court granted Mr. Bragg’s motion to dismiss, without prejudice, his declaratory judgment claim related to his covenant not to compete.
We, in turn, are seeking to dismiss, without prejudice, our counterclaims in connection with Mr. Bragg’s covenant not to compete
declaratory judgment claim.

We filed counterclaims against Mr. Bragg related to his claims for breach of contract claiming, among other things, (i) breach of

fiduciary duty seeking disgorgement of certain amounts previously paid to Mr. Bragg stemming from actions that may have been
taken by Mr. Bragg relating to his employment compensation claims, (ii) declaratory judgment that we did not breach his contract and
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(iii) breach of contract. On Oc:tober 25, 2006, the trial court granted summary judgment in our favor dismissing Mr. Bragg’s claims for
damages related to an alleged breach of written and oral employment agreements. On December 20, 2006, the trial court granted
summary judgment against uslon our counterclaim for breach of fiduciary duty. We subsequently filed a notice of a!‘ppeal with respect
to the trial court’s dismissal of our counterclaim for breach of fiduciary duty. We are seeking to dismiss, w1lhout prejudice, our
remaining counterclaims, and we have obtamed a tolling agreement allowing us to resuscitate these counterclaims at a later date if we
so choose. . !
b
Currently, the only matterloutstandmg before the trial court is Mr. Bragg’s motion for reconsideration of the trial court’s order
dismissing his breach of contract claims. We intend to defend ourseives vigorously and, based on the information available to us at
this time, we do not expect thv outcome of this lawsuit to have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations
or cash flows; however, there can be no assurance as to the ultimate outcome of this lawsuit.

We are routinely involved!in other litigation, claims and disputes incidental to our business, which at times involve claims for
significant monetary amounts! some of which would not be covered by insurance. In the opinion of management, none of the existing
litigation will have a matenal adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. However, a substantial
settlement payment or _]udgment in excess of our accruals could have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows. | : )

|
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

I
None. |

Executive Officers of Registrant

We have presented below mformaucm about our executive officers as of February 28, 2007. Officers are appomted annually by the
Board of Directors and serve until their successors are chosen or until their resignation or removal. !

Name | . Age Position .

Louis A. Raspino ................... ettt e e 54 President, Chief Executive Officer ;

Rodney W. Eads ................... ettt et e e e e 55 Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer

Brian C. Voegele.................... T, 47 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Lonnie D. Bane........ccooevennn et eeerreeater e a e aatttaeeinreen 48 Senior Vice President, Human Resources '

W. Gregory Looser ............... et 37 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Kevin C. Robert..................... et rveeeererensnrs e s et s saaasnsasnees 48 Senior Vice President, Marketing and Business Development

K. George Wasaff............... Do 53 Chief Executive Officer for Latin America Land and E&P Services

Louis A. Raspino was name d President, Chief Executive Officer and a Director of Pride in June 2005. He joined Prlde in December
2003 as Executive Vice Pre‘.ldent and Chief Financial Officer. From July 2001 until December 2003, he served as Senior Vice
President, Finance and Chief|Financial Officer of Grant Prideco, Inc. From December 2000 until March 2001, hé was employed as
Executive Vice President, Chlef Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer of JRL Enterprises, Inc. From February 1999 until
December 2000, he served a; Vice President of Finance for Halliburton Company. From October 1997 until July 1998, he was a
Senior Vice President at Burlmgton Resources, Inc. From 1978 until its merger with Burlington Resources, Inc. in 1997, he held a
variety of increasingly resp01151ble positions at Louisiana Land and Exploration Company, most recently as Senior Vice President,
Finance and Administration and Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Raspino also is a Director of Dresser-Rand Group Inc..

Rodney W. Eads was named Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer in September 2006. Since 1997, he served as Senior
Vice President, Worldwide Operations for Diamond Offshore, where he was responsible for their offshore dritling fleet. From 1980
through 1997 he served in several executive and operations management positions with Exxon Corporation, primarily in international
assignments and including Dnl]mg Manager, Exxon Company International. Prior to joining Exxon, Mr. Eads served as a Senior
Drilling Engineer for ARAMCO and a Petroleumn Engineer with Cities Services Corporation. ‘

Brian C. Voegele joined Prlde in December 2005 and became Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer in January 2006.
From June 2005 through No;vember 2005, he served as Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary of
Offshore Logistics, Inc. From July 1989 until January 2003, he held various senior management positions at Transocean Inc.
Mr. Voegele began his careerlat Arthur Young & Co., where he ultimately served as Tax Manager.




Lonnie D, Bane was named Senior Vice President, Human Resources in January 2005. He previously served as Vice President,
Human Resources since June 2004. From July 2000 until May 2003, he served as Senior Vice President, Human Resources of
America West Atrlines, Inc. From July 1998 until July 2000, he held various-senior management positions, including Senior Vice
President, Human Resources at Corporate Express, Inc. From February 1996 until July 1998, Mr. Bane served as Senior Vice
President, Human Resources for CEMEX, S.A. de C.V. From 1994 until 1996, he was a Vice President, Human Resources at Allied
Signal Corporation. From 1987 until 1994, he held various management positions at Mobil Qil Corporation.

W. Gregory Looser was named Senior. Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary in January 2005, He previously served as
Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary since December 2003. He joined Pride in May 1999 as Assistant General Counsel.
Prior to that time, Mr. Looser was with the law firm of Bracewell & Guiliani, L.L.P. in Houston, Texas.

Kevin C. Robert was named Vice President, Marketing in March 2005 and became Senior Vice President, Marketing and Business
Development in May 2006. Prior to joining Pride, from June 2002 to February 2003, Mr. Robert worked for Samsung Heavy
Industries as the Vice President, EPIC Contracts. From January 2001 through September 2001, Mr. Robert was employed by Marine
Drilling Companies, Inc. as the Vice President, Marketing. When Pride acquired Marine in September 2001, he became our Director
~of Business Development, where he served until June 2002. From November 1997 through December 2000, Mr. Robert was
Managing Member of Maverick Offshore L.L..C. From January 1981 to November 1997, Mr. Robert was employed by Conoco inc.

K. George Wasaff was named Chief Executive Officer for Latin America Land and E&P Services in January 2007. Since 2005,
Mr. Wasaff has been employed by Ashmore Energy International as Executive Vice President responsible for worldwide operations
and Senior Vice President of Operations and Administration of Prisma Energy. Mr. Wasaff was previously employed by Enron Corp.
from 1986 to 2005 in a variety of roles, including Senior Vice President, Wholesale Operations of South America, Vice Chainman and
Chief Executive Officer of Transportadora de Gas del Sur S.A., Country Manager and Vice President, Mexico and, most recently,
Managing Director, Corporate Services and member of the Management Committee. Prior to that, Mr. Wasaff was a marketing
manager for El Paso Natural Gas Company. ’

PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbo! “PDE.” As of February 27, 2007, there were
approximately 1,200 stockholders of record. The following table presents the range of high and low sales prices of our common stock
on the NYSE for the periods shown:

Price
High Low

2005 )

© FIrStQUARTEL ..ot T OOV OR USSR $ 2749 % 1939
Second QUAarter...........coovvciicieiceieeeee e e eeeeaeeeereeeeettisetieceestereerrerinereretetaateanteaneeaneaeerreerrearrers 2629  20.02
Third Quarter ... et rh et e et ee R e Ah e e e £ e b h bt et ea e ke At ke et eet et et eR L e na e e E AN S r e e e rae ke eh e et et e et en e s e neneenrenrean 2899 2326
FOUITH QUATTET ..ottt e et et et e s e e s beeatenseateeveseteeetesabesntesntsshesmternssatesresrasntasasesnssnsssessne 3235 2468
2006
[ T T ¢ ST U OO OO U U U OO %3692 % 2389
SECOTA QUATET.....cve ettt et te et s e et e e sese s s e st e sea e st e seesete e eme et e e eb st e sesme et e nbeseensnbeseanesbsabassasnaras 3696 27.81
THITA QUAMTET 1..veesissceerrecesesreaenisrses et rerrsrer et esessasesessasesesesesseasasssnsesessaresasessssessasesassssesensasssasessesessssssesessssnsossens 3182 2530
FOUMR QUATTET ... crrtr et e e rrr e ersees e e st e s ee s e srer rre s e e re s ves b e et e et e e eesaensaeenneenbaasbansbasssansesssarnserns - 3380 240

We have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock since becoming a publicly held corporation in September 1988. We do
not currently intend to pay any cash dividends on our common stock. In addition, our ability to pay cash dividends is restricted by our
existing financing arrangements.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

None.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities !
I

None. '

Ii

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA : . * "

We have derived the following selected consolidated financial information as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, from our audited consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this annual report.
We have derived the selected consolidated financial information as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, and for the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002 from consolidated financial information included our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005. The selected consolidated financial information below should be read together with “Managemem s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in Item 7 of this annual report and our audited consolidated financial

a
H

staternents and related notes iticluded in Item 8 of this annual report. I
. i
Year Ended December 31: "
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(In millions, except per share amounts)
Statement of Operations Data: )
Revenues.........ocoevveerevcecenead L ettt $ 24954 % 2,0333 § 1,712.2 % 15658 § 1,180.0
Operating costs, excluding dépreciation and amortization..................... 1,579.2 1,388.3 1,146.8 1,039.8 760.1
Depreciation and AIMOTHZATON «..oooeoeveoeeeeeeeeee e r s 269.9 2572 263.3 2509 231.5
General and administrative, excluding depreciation and amortization .. 128.9 97.7 74.8 'i 563 41.1
Impairment charges..........c... oo 39 1.0 .249 — —
* (Gain) loss on sale of assets, Y SO OO OO (3i.9) (36.1) (48.6) L 0.4 (0.4)
Earnings from operations.....! e 5449 325.2 2490 218 4 147.7
Interest EXPENSE...ocouvrcreniraens Dbt reene {78.4) (88.1) (103.3) (1 16.0) (124.0)
Refinancing (charges) CTEAIE Dot — — (36.3) '! (6.4) (1.2)
IDHETESL ICOME oerrrvverereessss e ereree 4.8 2.1 39 32 2.1
Other income (expense), net(1)......ococeieriiii, 4.5 9.5 0.5 1 5.3 (24.3)
Income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority, "
IBETESE..o.ovvvvvcovoenee s sessssee beeeceesss et snsnsee e 475.8 248.7 113.8 104.5 03 .
TOICOME LAXES wevreoree e reseeeeedeneser e eeeeeee e stses s saen s (176.4) (100.7) (61.7) (34.0) (3.4)
Minority mterest....................|......................- ........................................... 4.1 (19.7) (24.5) (22.5) {16.0)
Income (loss) from contmumg OPELALIONS 1.vevecseeene e § 2953 § 1283 § 276 § '48 0% (81
Income (loss) from contmumg operations per sha.re ‘ )
BaSiC...oiceieicieee i eree s s e e $ 1.81 § 084 § 020 3§ | 035 § (015
Dlluted.................................! ................................................................. $ 171 % 080 % 020 % 035 % (0.15)
Shares used in per share calenlations: ,
BASIC. c.oviiieiiceeec et sees et e e en s 162.8 152.5 135.8 ‘l 34.7 133.3
Dilated......cooveeieeeeeeee, D ettt 176.5 172.6 1373 “154.7 1333
December 31, :
2006 2005 2004 12003 2002
(In millions) i,
Balance Sheet Data; . 3
WOTKING CAPAL. ..o $ 2931 % 2138% 1305% L 7043 1366
Property and equipment, TEE oot en e 4,000.1 3,181.7 3,281.8 34633 33,4923
Total assets.......... eerenesenee Dbt - 50975 40865 40420 43771  4,400.0
Long-term debt, net of current POTLION ..ottt e reen 1,294.7 1,187.3 1,685.9 Il ,805.1 1,873.9
Stockholders® equity ............ L et 2,633.9 22594  1,7163 l_l 6887  1,677.1

(1) Other income (expense) net for 2002 includes $24.0 million related to realized and unrealized losses on the fair values of

interest rate swap and L.ap agreements.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS ’

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations should be read in conjunction with
“Financial Statement and Supplementary Data” in Item 8 of this annual report. The following discussion and analysis contains
forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in
these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including those set forth under *Risk Factors” in Item 1A and
elsewhere in this annual report. See “Forward-Looking Statements” below,

Overview and Recent Developments

We provide contract drilling and related services to oil and natural gas companies worldwide, operating both offshore and on land.
As of February 28, 2007, we owned a global fleet of 272 rigs, consisting of two deepwater drillships, 12 semisubmersible rigs, 28
jackup rigs, 16 tender-assisted, barge and platform rigs and 214 land-based drilling and workover rigs. Our customers include the
major integrated oil and natural gas companies, independent oil and natural gas companies and state-owned national oil companies.
Our competitors range from large international companies offering a wide range of drilling and other oilfield services to smaller,
locally owned companies.

In September 2006, we reorganized our operations into three principal reportable segments: Offshore, Latin America Land, and
E&P Services. The realignment of our reportable segments was attributable to implementation of a better methodology to manage our
business and organizational changes, including the hiring of a Chief Operating Officer responsible for all of our offshore drilling fleet.
Our Offshore segment includes all of our oftshore drilling fleet and operations. Our Latin America Land segment includes all of our
land-based drilling and workover services in Latin America. Our E&P Services segment includes our exploration and production
services business in Latin America. All prior year information has been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation of
these three segments. See Note 14 of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Itemn 8 of this annual report.

In November 2006, we acquired from our joint venture partner its 70% interest in a joint venture company the principal assets of
which are two deepwater semi-submersible drilling rigs, the Pride Portland and the Pride Rio de Janeiro. The acquisition increased
our ownership interest in the joint venture company and the rigs from 30% to 100%. Consideration consisted of $215 million in cash,
assumed debt valued at $284 million, and earn-out payments, if any, to be made during the six-year period (subject to certain
extensions for non-operating periods) following the expiration of the existing drilling contracts for the rigs Such eam-out payments
will equal 30% of the amount, if any, by which the standard operating dayrate, excluding bonuses, for a rig (less adjustments to reflect
certain capital additions and certain increases in operating costs) exceeds $294,975 (or, in the case of Petrobras, which currently
contracts with a 15% bonus oppertunity, $256,500). Due to the termination of lease agreements between us and the joinl venture
company and because the related operating contracts for the Pride Portland and the Pride Rio de Janeiro at the time of acquisition
were unfavorable compared with current market rates, we recorded a non-cash deferred contract liability of $191.6 million to record
the difference between stated values of the non-cancelable contracts and the current fair value of contracts with similar terms. The
deferred contract liability will be amortized to revenues over the remaining lives of the contracts of approximately four years.

We funded the purchase price with cash on hand and borrowings under our senior secured revolving credit facility. As a result of
the transaction, the joint venture company, which was accounted for as an equity investment, is now consolidated in our financial
statements, resulting in the recording of approximately $284 million of debt, net of fair value discount, of the joint venture company to
our consolidated balance sheet. The debt, which is guaranteed by the U.S. Maritime Administration, is more fully described under
“Liquidity and Capital Resources — Other Outstanding Debt.”

In a related transaction, we cancelled future obligations under certain existing agency relationships related to five offshore rigs we
operate in Brazil, including the Pride Portiand and the Pride Rio de Janeiro. For this cancellation, we paid $15 million in cash, which
we expensed during the fourth quarter 2006.

- In November 2006, we agreed to contract terms for four of our rigs operating offshore Brazil: the Pride Brazil, the Pride Carlos
Walter, the Pride South Atiantic, and the Pride South America. Expected aggregate dayrate revenues under these contracts total
approximately $2.1 billion, with approximately $200 million of additional performance bonus opportunities. We expect to commence
operations under the new five-year contracts after the current contract commitment for each rig is complete, beginning with the Pride
South America during the second quarter 2007, followed by the Pride South Atlantic in the second quarter 2008 and the Pride Brazil
and the Pride Carlos Walter in the third quarter 2008. Each of these contracts includes cost escalation provisions that commenced
upon the contract award. We also agreed to a three year contract for the Pride North America that includes a dayrate in the mid-
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$440,000s, with the third year adjusted up or down by-a maximum of 10%, according to an index of average contract dayrates for
similar rigs durmg the fourth|quarter 2009. This contract, which is expected to begm durlng the first quarter of 2008 includes cost
escalation provisions that commenced upon signing. - ]I

FCPA Investigation ' . - C ||

During the course of an 1ntemal audit and investigation relating to certain of our Latin American operations, our management and
internal audit department received allegations of i improper payments to foreign government officials. In February 2006 shortly after
and as a result of certain statements that wére made by an employee during the investigation, the Audit Commtttee of our Board of
Directors assumed direct respon51b1hty over the investigation and retained independent outside counsel to 1nvest1gate the allegations,
as well as corresponding accohntmg entries and internal control issues, and to advise the Audit Commlttee ||

The investigation, which i is continuing, has found evidence suggestmg that payments, which may violate the U. S Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act, were made to govemment officials in Latin America aggregating less than $! million. The ewdence 1o date regarding
these payments suggests that ;lnayments were made beginning in early 2003 through 2005 (a) to vendors with the mtent that they would
be transferred to government officials for the purpose of extending drilling contracts for two jackup rigs and one semlsubmemble rig
operating offshore Venezuela; Jand (b} to one or more government officials, or to vendors with the intent that they would be transferred
to government officials, for the purpose of collecting payment for work completed in connection with: offshore drlllmg contracts in
Venezuela. In addition, the eVIdence suggests that other payments were made begtnnmg in 2003 through early 2006: (a) to one or more
government officials in. Mexu.o in connection with the clearing of a jackup rig and equipment through customs or' the movement of
personnel through 1mm1grat1011 -and (b} with respect to the potentially improper entertainment of government 0fﬁc1als in Mexico.

!

The Audit Committee, through independent outside counsel, has undertaken a review of our compliance with the FCPA in certain
of our other international operations. This review has found evidence suggesting that in 2004 and 2005 payments may have been made
to government officials in Saudi- Arabia and Kazakhstan, aggregating less than $175,000, in connection w1th clearing rigs or
equipment through customs olr resolving outstanding customs’ issues in those countries. The investigation of the | matters related to
Saudi Arabia and Kazakhstan and the Audit Committee’s compliance review are ongoing. Accordingly, there can’ 'be no assurances
that evidence of additional potenttal FCPA violations may not be uncovered in Saudi Arabia, Kazakhstan or other countries.

Our management and the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors believe it likely that members of our; semor operations
management either were awa're or should have been aware, that improper payments to foreign government ofﬁc1als were made or
proposed to be made. Our former Chief Operating Officer resigned as Chief Operating Officer effective on MayI 31, 2006 and has
elected to retire.from the company, although he will remain an employee, but not an officer, during the pendency of the investigation
to assist us with the mvestlgatton and to be available for consultation and to answer questions relating to our busme'ss His retirement
benefits will be subject to the detemnnatmn by our Audit Committee or our Board of Directors that it does not have' cause (as defined
in his retirement agreement with us) to terminate his employment. On December 1, 2006, our Vice President — Western Hemisphere
Operations resigned. On December 2, 2006, our former Country Manager in Venezuela and Mexico was terminated. We have placed
another member of our senior Ioperations management on administrative leave pending the outcome of the investigatlion.

We voluntarily disclosed information relating to the 1mt1a1 allegations and other information found in thelctnvestlgauon and
compliance review to the U.S. Department of Justice and the Securities and Exchange Commission and are cooperating with these
authorities as the mvestlgatlon and compliance reviews continue and as they review the matter. If violations of the FICPA occurred, we
could be subject to fines, cml and criminal penalties, equitable remedies, including profit disgorgement, and mjunctwe relief. Civil
penalties under the antlbrlberjr provisions of the FCPA could range up to $10,000 per violation, with a criminal ﬁne up to the greater
of $2 million per violation or [tw1ce the gross pecuniary gain to us or twice the gross pecuniary loss to others, if larger Civil penalties
under the accounting prov1s1ons of the FCPA can range up to $500,000 and a company that knowingly commits- a viplation can be
fined up to $25 million., In addltlon both the SEC and the DOQJ could assert that conduct extending over a perlod of time may
constitute multiple violations (for purposes of assessing the penalty amounts. Often, dispositions for these types of matters result in
modifications to business pratl‘tlces and compliance programs and possibly a monitor being appointed to review future business and
practices with the goal of ensuring compliance with the FCPA.
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We could also face fines, sanctions and other penalties from authorities in the relevant foreign jurisdictions, including prohibition of
our participating in or curtailment of business operations in those jurisdictions. Our customers in those jurisdictions could seek to
impose penalties or take other actions adverse to our interests. In addition, disclosure of the subject matter of the investigation could
adversely affect our reputation and our ability to obtain new business or retain existing business from our current clients and potential
clients, to attract and retain employees and to access the capital markets. No amounts have been accrued related to any potential fines,
sanctions or other penalties,

We have taken and will continue to take disciplinary actions where appropriate and various other corrective action to reinforce our
commitment to conducting our business ethically and legally and to instill in our employees our expectation that they uphold the
highest levels of honesty, integrity, ethical standards and compliance with the law. These actions continue a process we had previously
commenced. Since late 2003, we have created and filled a legal and ethical compliance function under the supervision of our Senior
Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary. We have established an antibribery compliance committee and enhanced our
antibribery compliance procedures. We also have developed in-person and online training programs to provide annual instruction on
our Code of Business Conduct and Ethical Practices, the FCPA, antitrust iaw and other key policies as part of our commitment to
educate our international workforce.

In 2006, we also (1) continued to enhance our training of management, including our operations managers, to emphasize further the
importance of setting the proper tone within their organization to instill an attitude of integrity and control awareness and the use of a
thorough and proper analysis of proposed transactions; (2) determined that our bonus-eligible employees complete in-person and
online training on the FCPA and our Code of Business Conduct and Ethical Practices as a prerequisite to receiving their bonuses for
2006; (3) required our management, including our operations managers, to reconfirm that they are not aware of any violations of law
and confirm with greater specificity that they are not aware of any improper payments to foreign government officials made by us or
on our behalf or any other violation of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethical Practices and to recertify their commitment to the
Code; (4) established an executive compliance committee, consisting of our executive officers and other management-level employees
who are responsible for supervising our antibribery compliance committee, our internal controls steering committee and our
compliance efforts in general; and (5) established a separate position of, and appointed, a chief compliance officer.

We cannot currently predict what, if any, actions may be taken by the DOJ, the SEC, the applicable government or other authorities
or our customers or the effect the actions may have on our results of operations, financial condition or cash flows, on our consolidated
financial statements or on our business in the countries at issue and other jurisdictions,

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, our operations in Venezuela provided revenues of approximately
$156.9 million, $172.6 million, and $167.1 million, or approximately 6.3%, 8.5% and 9.8% of our total consolidated revenues,
respectively. Qur Venezuela operations provided earnings (loss) from operations of approximately $6.9 million, $16.8 million, and
$(6.7) million or approximately 1.3%, 5.2% and (2.7)% of our total consolidated earnings from operations for 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, we had accounts receivable from Petréleos de Venezuela, S.A. totaling
$27.6 million and $33.4 million, respecllve]y

Business Environment

We provide contract drilling services to major integrated, government-owned and independent oil and natural gas companies
throughout the world. Qur offshore drilling fleet competes on a global basis, as offshore rigs generally are highly mobile and may be
moved from one region to another in response to demand. Our land-based fleet generatly competes on a regional basis. While the cost
of moving a rig and the availability of rig-moving vessels may cause the supply and demand balance to vary somewhat between
regions, significant variations between regions do not tend to persist long-term because of rig mobility. Pricing is often the primary
factor in determining which qualified contractor is awarded a job. Rig availability and each contractor’s safety performance record and
reputation for quality also can be key factors in the determination. Substantially all of our drilling contracts with major customers are
on a dayrate basis, where we charge the customer a fixed amount per day regardless of the number of days needed to drill the well. We
provide the rigs and drilling crews and are respensible for the payment of operating and maintenance expenses. Qur customer bears
the economic risk relative to the success of the wells,

The markets for our driiling, workover and related E&P services are highly cyclical. Our operating results are significantly
impacted by the level of energy industry spending for the exploration and development of oil and natural gas reserves. Oil and nratural
gas companies’ exploration and development drilling programs drive the demand for drilling and related services. These drilling
programs are affected by oil and natural gas companies’ expectations about oil and natural gas prices, anticipated production levels,
demand for crude oil and natural gas products, government regulations and many other factors. Oil and natural gas prices are volatile,
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which has historically led to|significant fluctuations in expenditures by our customers for oil and natural gas d;f’illing and related
services. Variations in markell: conditions during the cycle impact us in different ways depending primarily on theI: length of drilling
contracts in different regions. Contracts in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico, for example, tend to be short-term, so a deterioration or
improvement in market conditions tends to impact our operations quickly. Contracts in international offshore markets tend to be
longer term due to rig availlability, mobilization costs and technical requirements. Accordingly, short-term changes in market
conditions in these markets may have little or no short-term impact on our revenues and cash flows from those opérations unless the
market changes occur during i1 period when we are attempting to renew a number of those contracts. | '
. h
. ' . . . oo
Our revenues depend principally upon the number of our available rigs, the number of days these rigs are utilized and the contract
day rates received. The numbu:r of days our rigs are utilized and the contract day rates received are largely dependent upon the balance
of supply and demand for dlrilling and related services in the different geographic regions in which we operate. The number of
available rigs may increase ot decrease as a result of the acquisition, relocation or disposal of rigs, the construction of new rigs and the
number of rigs being upgradtlzd' or repaired or undergoing periodic surveys or routine maintenance at any time. In order to improve
utilization or realize higher contract day rates, we may mobilize our rigs from one geographic region to another for which we may
receive a mobilization fee. Mobilization fees are deferred and recognized as revenue over the term of the contract.
L
Changes in earnings from| operations are primarily affected by revenues, cost of labor and utilization of our’ drilling fleet. For
instance, if a rig is expected to be idle for an extended period of time, we may reduce the size of the rig’s crew and'take steps to “cold
stack” the rig, which reduces expenses and partially offsets the impact on operating income associated with the loss';of revenues.
! .

Qur operations and activitiles are subject to numerous environmental laws and regulations, including the US. Oil Pollution Act of
1990, the U.S. QOuter Continelntal Shelf Lands Act, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation an:(|i Liability Act and
the International Convention for the Prevention of Pollution from Ships. Additionally, other countries where we operate have similar

laws and regulations covering the discharge of oil and other contaminants in connection with drilling operations.

Business Outlook |
i

Expectations about future [oil prices have historically been a key driver for drilling demand; however, the availability of quality
drilling prospects, exploration success, relative production costs, the stage of reservoir development and political and regulatory
environments also affect out customers’ drilling programs. We expect global demand for contract drilling services to continue to
increase, driven by increasing'; worldwide energy demand and demand for oil and natural gas and an increased focus by oil and natural
gas companies on offshore prospects. ::

Our deepwater fleet, which consists of our drillships and our semisubmersibles operating in water depths greai:ter than 4,500 feet,
currently operates in West Africa, Brazil and Egypt, and is fully contracted through June 2009, with most of our {leet contracted into
2010. In November 2006, we were awarded five-year contract extensions beginning in 2008 for the Pride Brazii and Pride Carlos
Walter and a three-year contl:'act extension for the Pride North America, each at substantially higher dayrates. We have contracted the
Pride South Pacific under a two-year contract at a dayrate three times the prior contract rate beginning in March 2007. The balance of
our deepwater fleet is contratted through 2007 and our average dayrate is not expected to change materially, other than as a result of
cost escalation protection, until contract rollovers occur. We believe that long-term market conditions for deepwater drilling services
are favorable and that demand for deepwater rigs will continue to exceed supply for the next several years. We believe that favorable
commodity prices for oil, g';eo]ogical successes in exploratory markets and, in general, more favorable political conditions will
continue to encourage the development of new projects by exploration and production companies on a number of niajor discoveries. In
addition, we believe that the Eneed for deepwater rigs will continue to grow for existing offshore development projécts in West Africa,
the Gulf of Mexice and Brazil. . i

. 1

Prospects for our midwatzr fleet, which consists of our semisubmersibles operating in water depths from 1,000 feet to 4,500 feet
and which currently operatefs in West Africa, Brazil, the Mediterranean Sea and Mexico, continue to be robust ‘with approximately
83% of our fleet contracted through the end of 2007. At present, increasing demand and limited availability of rigé continues to drive
dayrates higher. Contracts for midwater rigs tend to be shorter in duration than deepwater rigs with one to three,years as the typical
length. We believe increasin'g demand, a limited ability to increase rig supply in the short term and excess demand for rigs will result
in favorable market conditio:ns through 2008, We contracted the Pride South America at a substantially higher dayrate for a five-year
term that began in February 2007. The Pride South Seas and Pride South Atlantic will rollover to new contracts at higher dayrates in
2007, We expect our averag‘e dayrates for our midwater fleet to continue to improve due to repricing of our fleet in 2007 and 2008.
During 2007, three of our rigs are scheduled to be out-of-service for scheduled regulatory inspection and maintenarice.

it
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We expect the outlook for the international jackup market to continue to remain strong due to the current jackup rig supply
shortage. Demand for jackup rigs in international markets continues to be strong and average dayrates remain high with longer term
contracts. However, we continue to monitor the potential effect of the addition of approximately 65 newbuild jackups to the global
market, which have scheduled delivery dates from 2007 through 2010. The addition of rig capacity to the market could have an
adverse impact on our utilization and dayrates, particularly in international markets. The dayrate environment in the U.8. Gulf of
Mexico has been under pressure from lower demand and uncertain natural gas prices due to high storage levels. We anticipate that the
market may strengthen in the second half of 2007 as several rigs owned by our competiters are expected to leave the Gulf of Mexico
for international markets and the demand for additional rigs by PEMEX and other international clients is expected to increase.
Improvement in dayrates in 2007 will largely depend upon natural gas prices and any impact of the 2007 hurricane season on our
customers’ drilling programs. The Pride Tennessee completed its shipyard upgrade in February 2007 and is contracted through July
2009. We have 12 rigs currently scheduled for maintenance and upgrade projects in 2007, as compared to 10 rigs that were out of
service for maintenance and upgrade projects in 2006. Following the completion of these projects, we expect the number of projects to
decline significantly in 2008. The ability to complete the projects on a timely basis could have a significant impact on 2007 results.

We experienced high levels of activity for our Latin America Land and E&P Services operations, which resulted in higher pricing
and utilization. The market outlook for Argentina and Colombia remains favorable as economic growth has stimulated demand for oil
and natural gas. We currently believe that market conditions in Venezuela will permit us to recover the additional cost associated with
recently enacted social programs and do not believe our operations will be materially impacted.

In October 2006, we experienced a two-day strike against our Latin America Land operation in northern Argentina, which
temporarily idled approximately 70 of our rigs. During the fourth quarter 2006, our operations in Argentina experienced additional
work stoppages on both local and national levels organized by the unions in protest of various labor and tax laws. The issues were
resolved with the unions in December 2006. We believe our relationships with the unions are good and we are not currently aware of
any threatened or pending work stoppages. However, industry conditions and changes in the political environments in which we
operate have, from time to time, resulted in work stoppages. Such work stoppages may occur in the future and may have a significant
impact on our future operations or financial position,

We are actively pursuing options for maximizing the value of our Latin America Land and E&P Services operations. All options
are being considered, including sales to strategic buyers and capital market alternatives. We may ultimately decide to pursue a course
of action other than a disposition of these operations; however, if we do pursue a disposition, we may be unable to complete a
transaction on terms we find acceptable or at all.

Increased activity in the oilfield services industry is increasing competition for experienced oilfield workers resulting in higher
labor costs and training costs. The increased activity has also increased demand for oilfield equipment and spare parts and coupled
with the consolidation of equipment suppliers, has resulted in longer order lead times to obtain critical spares and higher repair and
maintenance costs and increased out-of-service time for repair and upgrade projects. A number of our rigs will be in the shipyard or
undergoing repairs during 2007 and may be subject to repair delays. In addition, as a result of the significant insurance losses incurred
by the drilling industry during the 2004 and 2005 hurricane seasons, our insurance costs increased significantly when our policies
renewed in July 2006. Qur insurance underwriters have also imposed an aggregate limit of approximately $85.0 million for damage
due to named wind storms in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico, with a $10.0 million deductible per named wind storm. However, due to higher
dayrates, we expect our growth in revenues to continue to outpace our cost increases throughout 2007,

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosures about contingent assets and liabilities. We base these
estimates and assumptions on historical experience and on various other information and assumptions that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Estimates and assumptions about future events and their effects cannot be perceived with
certainty and, accordingly, these estimates may change as additional information is obtained, as more experience is acquired, as our
operating environment changes and as new events occur.

Qur critical accounting estimates are important to the portrayal of both our financial condition and results of operations and require
us to make difficult, subjective or complex assumptions or estimates about matters that are uncertain. We would report different
amounts in our consolidated financial statements, which could be material, if we used different assumptions or estimates. We have
discussed the development and selection of our critical accounting estimates with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors and
the Audit Committee has reviewed the disclosure presented below. During the past three fiscal years, we have not made any material




I
changes in accounting methodology used to establish the critical accounting estimates for property and equipment, income taxes and
contingent liabilities discussed below; however, as previously disclosed, we made a material change in accounting methodology used
to establish the critical accounting estimates for certain interest rate swap and cap agreements. X

+

We believe that the foliowipg are the critical accounting estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.
In addition, there are other items within our consolidated financial statements that require estimation.
!
Property and Equipment )

Property and equipment comprise a significant amount of our total assets. We determine the carrying value of these assets based on

property and equipment policies that incorporate our estimates, assumptions and judgments relative to the carrying value, remaining
useful lives and salvage value of our rigs. "

.‘

We depreciate our property and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The assumptions and
judgments we use in determining the estimated useful lives of our rigs reflect both historical experience and expectations regarding
future operations, utilization and performance. The use of different estimates, assumptions and judgments in the establishment of
estimated useful lives, especi:illly those involving our rigs, would likely result in materially different net book values of our property
and equipment and results of (')perations. 3

Useful lives of rigs and related equipment are difficult to estimate due to a variety of factors, including technological advances that
impact the methods or cost of it and natura! gas exploration and development, changes in market or economic conditions and changes
in laws or regulations affectinlg the drilling industry. We evaluate the remaining useful lives of our rigs when certain events occur that
directly impact our assessment of the remaining useful lives of the rig and include changes in operating condition, functional
capability and market and economic factors. We also consider major capital upgrades required to perform certain contracts and the
long-term impact of those upg'rades on the future marketability when assessing the useful lives of individual rigs.

!

We review our property and equipment for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate thé carrying value of
such assets or assel groups mz'ny not be recoverable. Indicators of possible impairment include extended periods of idle time and/or an
inability to contract specific assets Of groups of assets, such as a specific type of drilling rig, or assets in a specific geographical
region. However, the drilling,| workover and related service industries in which we operate are highly cyclical and it is not unusual to
find that assets that were idl¢, under-utilized or contracted at sub-economic rates for significant periods of time resume activity at
economic rates when market 'conditions improve. Additionally, most of our assets are mobile, and we may mobilize rigs from one

market to another to improve utilization or realize higher dayrates.

Asset impairment evaluaticns are based on estimated future undiscounted cash flows of the assets being evaluated to determine the
recoverability of carrying amounts. In general, analyses are based on expected costs, utilization and dayrates for the estimated
remaining useful lives of the' asset or group of assets being assessed. An impairment loss is recorded in the period in which it is
determined that the aggregate carrying amount is not recoverable.

i

Asset impairment evaluaticns are, by nature, highly subjective. They involve expectations about future cash flows generated by our
assets, and reflect managemer'u’s assumptions and judgments regarding future industry conditions and their effect on future utilization
levels, dayrates and costs. Thfe use of different estimates and assumptions could result in materially different carrying values of our
assets and could materially affect our results of operations. ’

Income Taxes

Our income tax expense isI based on our income, statutory tax rates and tax planning opportunities available to us in the various
jurisdictions in which we ope'-.rate. We provide for income taxes based on the tax laws and rates in effect in the countries in which
operations are conducted and lincome is earned. The income tax rates and methods of computing taxable income vary substantially in
each jurisdiction, Our income|tax expense is expected to fluctuate from year to year as our operations are conducted in different taxing
jurisdictions and the amount of pre-tax income fluctuates. : ‘

The determination and evaluation of our annual income tax provision involves the interpretation of tax laws in various jurisdictions
in which we operate and reqlllires significant judgment and the use of estimates and assumptions regarding significant future events
such as the amount, timing and character of income, deductions and tax credits. Changes in tax laws, regulations, agreements, treaties,
foreign currency exchange restrictions or our levels of operations or profitability in each jurisdiction may impact our tax liability in
any given year. While our amfmal tax provision is based on the information available to us at the time, a number of years may elapse
before the ultimate tax ]iabilitiles in certain tax jurisdictions are determined. ‘
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Current income tax expense reflects an estimate of our income tax liability for the current year, withholding taxes, changes in prior
year tax estimates as returns are filed, or from tax audit adjustments. Our deferred tax expense or benefit represents the change in the
balance of deferred tax assets or liabilities as reflected on the balance sheet. Valuation allowances are determined to reduce deferred
tax assets when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. To determine the
amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities, as well as of the valuation allowances, we must make estimates and certain assumptions
regarding future taxable income, including where the rigs are expected to be deployed, as well as other assumptions related to our
future tax position. A change in such estimates and assumptions, along with any changes in tax laws, could require us to adjust the
deferred tax assets, liabilities, or valuation allowances as discussed below.

As of December 31, 2006, we have U.S. net operating loss (“NOL") carryforwards. Due to our acquisition of Marine Drilling
Companies in September 2001, certain NOL carryforwards are subject to limitations under Sections 382 and 383 of the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code. The U.S. NOL carryforwards could expire starting in 2020 through 2024. We have foreign NOL carryforwards and we
have recognized a valuation allowance on substantiaily all of these foreign NOL carryforwards. Certain foreign NOL carryforwards do
not expire and some could expire starting in 2007 through 2016.

We have not provided for U.S. deferred taxes on the unremitted earnings of our foreign controlled subsidiaries that are permanently
reinvested. If a distribution is made to us from the unremitted earnings of these subsidiaries, we could be required to record additional
taxes. Because we cannot predict when, if at all, we will make a distribution of these unremitied earnings, we are unable to make a
determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred tax liability.

As required by law, we file periodic tax returns that are subject to review and examination by various tax authorities within the
jurisdictions in which we operate. We are currently contesting several tax assessments and may contest future assessments where we
believe the assessments are in error. We cannot predict or provide assurance as to the ultimate outcome of existing or future tax
assessments; however, we believe the ultimate resolution of outstanding tax assessments will not have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial statements.

In July 2006, we received tax assessments from the Mexican government related to our operations for the tax years 2002 and 2003.
These assessments contest our right to claim certain deductions in our tax returns for those years. We anticipate that the Mexican
government will make additional assessments contesting similar deductions for other tax years. While we intend to contest these
assessments vigorously, we cannot predict or provide assurance as to the ultimate outcome, which may take several years. However,
we do not believe that the ultimate outcome of these assessments will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements,
As required by local statutory requirements, we have provided standby letters of credit, which totaled $41.3 million as of
December 31, 2006, to contest these assessments.

We do not believe that it is possible to reasonably estimate the potential impact of changes to the assumptions and estimates
identified because the resulting change to our tax liability, if any, is dependent on numerous factors which cannot be reasonably
estimated. These include, among other things, the amount and nature of additional taxes potentially asserted by local tax authorities;
the willingness of local tax authorities to negotiate a fair settlement through an administrative process; the impartiality of the local
courts; and the potential for changes in the tax paid to one country to either produce, or fail to produce, an offsetting tax change in
other countries. Qur experience has been that the estimates and assumptions we have used to provide for future tax assessments have
been appropriate; however, past experience is only a guide and the tax resulting from the resolution of current and potential future tax
controversies may have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

We establish reserves for estimated loss contingencies when we believe a loss is probable and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. Our contingent liability reserves relate primarily to litigation, personal injury claims and potential tax
assessments (see “Income Taxes™ above). Revisions to contingent liability reserves are reflected in income in the period in which
different facts or information become known or circumstances change that affect our previous assumptions with respect to the
likelihood or amount of loss. Reserves for contingent liabilities are based upon our assumptions and estimates regarding the probable
outcome of the matter. Should the outcome differ from our assumptions and estimates or other events result in a material adjustment to
the accrued estimated reserves, revisions to the estimated reserves for contingent liabilities would be required and would be
recognized in the period the new information becomes known.
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Accounting for Interest Rate Swap and Cap Agreements h

A
We currently use derivatives in the normal course of business to manage our exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. We have not
designated our interest rate s‘l,vap and cap agreements as hedging instruments in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS™) No. 133,!Accoumfng for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. Accordingly, we musf‘determine the fair
value of these agreements and record any changes to the fair value in our consolidated statements of operations. The determination of
the fair value is complex and requires significant judgments and estimates, including the methodology of building a forward yield
curve, the basis of discountin'g projected future cash flows and varying conventions in contract terms. The use of 'different estimates

and assumptions could result in materially different fair values and could materially affect our results of operations. I

|

Segment Review 14
L

In September 2006, based upon changes within our management organization, we changed the composition of our segments o
three principal reportable seg';ments: Offshore, which comprises our offshore drilling activity, currently in Africa, the Mediterranean
Sea, the Middle East, Southeast Asia, South America and the Gulf of Mexico; Latin America Land, which comprj'ses our land-based
drilling and workover services in Latin America, currently in Argentina, Venezuela, Colombia, Bolivia, and Mexico; and E&P
Services, which includes ex;'nloration and production services in Latin America. “Other” includes revenues and cost for land-based
drilling and workover operatibns outside of Latin America (currently Chad, Kazakhstan and Pakistan), labor contrag:lts and engineering

and management consulting services,
v

h
The fellowing table presents selected consolidated financial information by reporting segment: it
! 2006 1005 2004
. {In millions)
Revenues: ' '
TS ROTE oot e e e et et ia e sttt emeeeeteeaeem et ek e sk b es e sa e e e en e seearbadsbe b a st R e e $ 1,589.8 § 112559 § 1,069.1
Latin America Land ............ 0SSOSO OO U STUOTOTOTOR 608.3 1495 2 389.8
E&P SErvices ......ouwveeernnrens OO OUOTOs ST YOO USSR RTON 195.6 188.1 155.3
(071 SO e e 1017, ;941 98.0
COorporate ......ooeeneeniininninnad D ettt e et ee ettt et st ar AR bbb — v — —
L) S Lot eees e e R Rt $ 24954 $ 20333 8§ 17122
Eamings from operations: _ i
OFFSROTE ... reerea s et oo s b e $ 5043 $ 2962 § 2918
Latin America Land............. e SOOI 112.9 . 65.1 5.8
E&P SEIVICES 1rvvvvvvrereeeeeeereeo ke 268 206 14.9
OURET +...ovvveeeveee et 26 250 1.5
COTPOTALE vvvvverrarrevesssessseeesbevesssos s eessserss st s baas Rk (121.7) (817} (75.0)
TOA cooreoevereeeeeeeeeeeeeserees bt e esanesssas s sk bRt § 5449 $§_ 3252 $§ 2490
Offshore | : ‘ |

We have provided below additional information based on the service capabilities of our offshore fleet. We corllisider our drillships
and our semisubmersible rigs:: operating in water depths greater than 4,500 feet as deepwater and our semisubmersible rigs operating in
water depths from 1,000 feel to 4,500 feet as midwater. Our jackups operate in water depths up to 300 feet. As of February 28, 2007,
our Offshore segment comp'rised two deepwater drillships, 12 semisubmersible rigs, 28 jackup rigs, 10 platform rigs, three tender-
assisted rigs, thiree barge rig's, and five deepwater rigs managed for other parties. The following table summariz;l;s our revenue and

earnings from operations by type of offshore rig in our fleet: b
2006 . 2005 2004
. (In millions)
Revenues:. 1 . ‘ l; ’ .

DIEEPWRLET ........eooeeeeeecvessssesiresntes e st e s ce b e e e RS e § 4798 $u 3595 5% 3156
Midwater......o.ccorveereeericaennes b et R ettt 1813 # 153.0 1243
JACKUDS. oo Do oot ea et te s s es e e s R e R es e 6810 I 4474 398.3
6111 S et ee et R 247.7 _Y 296.0 230.9
A1) SO D e e ea s e oAb $ 1,589.8 $1,255.9 $ 1,060.1

Earnings from operations: I
DIEEPWALET ..o ceeeeeeecec e e e $  129.1 S"- 1029 § 1193

- I

l
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MIWELET Lottt a et b st r e neaes 30.1 9.7 6.8

JBCKUDS eveeeeeeeeeeoesese oo oo e oo s e eeseesesesese e ee e s se oo 3345 1501 1449
OHEE oo oo evsses e eeoesessee e e s e oot 10.6 33.5 20.8
TIOAL .. iiee ettt e e et e e bt b ee e s eEEas e s b et e s et e e ean e s bt e ettt e tennneeeeatneeeent s e s tsaenrrnnennn § 5043 % 20625 2918

The following table summarizes our average daily revenues and percentage utilization by type of offshore rig in our fleet:

2006 2005 2004
Average Daily Average Daily Average Daily
Revenues(l)  Utilization(2} _ Revenues{l) Utilization(2) _Revenues(l) Utilization(2)
DeepWater.......cccoeevireeceeirreser e $ 180,400 91% $ 167,600 84% $ 156,600 92%
MIAWALET ...eeeiiiricr ettt $ 102,500 84% $ 83,400 84% $ 73,200 77%
JACKUPS. ..ot $ 79,100 85% $ 46,400 92% $ 40,000 84%

Other(3).miimiiiii s $ 44800 64% $ 42,800 82% $ 34,400 79%

(1) Average daily revenues are based on total revenues for each type of rig divided by actual days worked by all rigs of that type.
Average daily revenues will differ from average contract dayrate due to billing adjustments for any non-productive time,
mobilization fees, demobilization fees, performance bonuses and charges to the customer for ancillary services.

{2) Utlization is calculated as the total days worked divided by the total days in the period.

(3} Excludes rigs managed by us but owned by others.
Deepwater

Revenues increased $120.3 million, or 33%, for the year ended December 31, 2006 over the comparable period in 2005. The
increase is due to a 24% increase in actual days worked in 2006 as compared to 2005 primarily due to a full year of operations in 2006
and $8.0 million related to the amortization of deferred contract liabilities for the Pride Portland and the Pride Rio de Janeiro,
increased dayrates for the Pride North America, and contractual rate escalations. Average daily revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2006 increased 8% over the comparable period in 2005 due to contracted dayrate increases for the Pride North America
and moderate contractual dayrate escalations in 2006 for several of our deepwater rigs. Earings from operations increased
$26.2 million, or 25%, for the year ended December 31, 2006 over the comparable period in 2005 due to an increase in revenues
partially offset by charges in 2006 for settlement of agency relationships on four of the rigs. The Pride South Pacific, working
offshore West Africa, is to begin a new contract at substantially higher rates following the completion of its current contract currently
scheduled for April 2007. After completion of repairs to the subsea control system, the Pride North America began operating offshore
Egypt in late April 2006 under a contract that expires in January 2008. In October 2006, the Pride North America sustained crane
damage as a result of new equipment failure; repairs were completed during the fourth quarter of 2006. The Pride Carlos Walter was
in the shipyard for its special periodic survey in the fourth quarter of 2006. In November 2006, the Pride Brazil and Pride Carlos
Walter were awarded contract extensions beginning in mid-2008 through 2013 at dayrates approximately 80% higher than current
rates. Utilization remains high, as our deepwater fleet is fully contracted through June 2009. Much of our deepwater fleet is contracted
until mid-2019; as a resuit, we would benefit from increasing dayrates for deepwater rigs only when our fleet is able to rollover to new
contract terms.

Revenues increased $43.9 million, or 14%, for the year ended December 31, 2005 over the comparable period in 2004. The increase
is due to $47.6 million of revenue from the Pride Poritland and the Pride Rio de Janeiro, which commenced operations in April 2005
and October 2005, respectively. Revenues and utilization were impacted by special periodic surveys in 2005 for the Pride Angola and
Pride South Pacific, lower dayrates for the Pride North America in 2005 and its mobilization in the fourth quarter of 2005. Average
daily revenues for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased 7% over the comparable period in 2004 primarily due to contracted
dayrate increases for the Pride South Pacific. Earnings from operations decreased $16.4 million, or 14%, for the year ended
December 31, 2005 over the comparable period in 2004 due to lower revenues for the Pride North America and a 9% increase in year-
over-year operating costs. '

Midwater
Revenues increased $28.3 million, or 18%, for the year ended December 31, 2006 over the comparable period in 2005. The increase

is due to higher dayrates for several rigs partially offset by a 4% decline in actual days worked. Average daily revenue for the year
ended December 31, 2006 increased 23% over 2005 as a result of the Pride Venezuela rolling over to a market rate contract, contract
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escalations and performance bonuses earned. Earnings from operations increased $20.4 million, or 210%, f(jr the year ended
December 31, 2006 over the|comparable period in 2005 primarily due to higher dayrates and lower mobi!izatidn and repairs and
maintenance costs for the Pride Venezuela. The Pride South America began working under a new contract m February 2007 at
substantially higher dayrate:s| The Pride South Seas, which was operating offshore South Africa under a contract that expired in
February 2007, is being moblilzed to Namibia for work under a contract with an initial term expiring in July 2007 at substantially
increased dayrates. After conllpletlon of its special periodic survey, the Pride North Sea began working in April 2006 on a series of
contracts, with options, in the Mediterranean Sea, which are expected to be completed by mid-to-late 2007. The Pride Venezuela
completed its special penoduI survey and upgrades in September 2006 and was mobilized to West Africa for an 18 month contract,
with a six month option, at substantially higher dayrates. The Pride South Atlantic completed its life enhancemem project and is
working through February 2008 under contracts with various customers at substantially higher dayrates than in 2005.

Revenues increased $28.7 million, or 23%, for the year ended December 31, 2005 over the comparable period in 2004. The increase
is due primarily to increased|utilization of the Pride Venezuela partially offset by a decrease in utilization of the"Pride South Seas.
Average daily revenues for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased 14% over the comparable period in 2004 pnmarlly due to the
contracted dayrate increases for the Pride South Seas and Pride South Atlantic. Eamings from operations increaséd $2.9 million, or
43%, for the year ended December 31, 2005 over the comparable period in 2004 due to higher average daily revenues and utilization.

[
Jackups : r

Revenues increased $233. 6m11110n or 52%, for the year ended December 31, 2006 over the comparable period in 2005. The
increase is due to higher dayrates partially offset by a decline in utilization. Average daily revenue for our jackup fleet for year ended
December 31, 2006 mcrease-:l 70% over 2005. Earnings from operatlons increased $184.4 million, or 123%, for the year ended
December 31, 2006 over the Ieomparab]e period in 2005 due to the increase in average daily revenue. Our jackup fleet has benefited
from escalating dayrates due to strong worldwide drilling demand. Contracts for our U.S. Gulf of Mexico fleet tend to be for shorter
periods as compared to mterrllat:onal jackup contracts and, in certain cases, are indexed to market. The Pride Hawaii began working
under a contract with significantly higher dayrates in November 2006. After completing contracts in Southeast Asia that expired in
January 2007 and its special |')eri0dic survey, the rig is to be mobilized to India to operate under a contract that expires in April 2010.
The Pride California and Przde Nevada completed their life enhancement projects and began working under contracts in September
2006 and October 2006, respectlvely, at substantially higher rates. [n November 2006, the Pride Oklahoma’ completed its life
enhancement project and cornmenced a two well contract with an option for an additional well. The Pride Arkansas completed its
maintenance projects and beg'an a two-year contract with a dayrate similar to its previous contract. The Pride New Mex:co entered the
shipyard near the end of the thlrd quarter, is currently undergoing survey and assessment and is expected to remain in the shipyard
until the second quarter of 2007. A total of 12 jackups are scheduled for planned maintenance and regulatory mspectlon projects in
2007.

Revenues increased $49.1 m1lhon or 12%, for the year ended December 31, 2005 over the comparable period in 2004 The increase
is due primarily to increased dayrates and utilization for our fleet in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico, partially offset by the loss of revenues
from rigs sold in 2004 and ”005 principally the Pride West Virginia and Pride Ohio. Average daily revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2005 mcreased 16% over the comparable period in 2004 due to contracted dayrate increases in the U 8. Gulf of Mexico
fleet and the Pride Caly’orma and Pride Texas in Mexico; international fleet dayrates remained flat. Eammgs from operations
increased $5.2 million, or 4/:., for the year ended December 31, 2005 over the comparable period in 2004 primarily due to higher
average daily revenues and u‘}clhzatlon for the U.S. Gulf of Mexico fleet partially offset by the loss of earnings frorin rigs sold in 2005
and 2004, I

i
Other Offshore ’

Revenues decreased $48.3|million, or 16%, for the year ended December 31, 2006 over the comparable period in 2005. Revenues
decreased due to the termmanon of management agreements for GP19 and GP20 in 2006 and the sale of two tender barges in 2005.
Average daily revenue for our tender-assisted barges and other offshore assets for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased 5%
over 2005. The increase in ('werage daily revenue is primarily due to the contracting of the Barracuda. Earnmgs from operations
decreased $22.9 million, or 68%, due to the sale of the tender barges in 2005 and lower utilization of the Bintang Kalimantan. The
Alligator, Pride Ivory Coast |and Barracuda are currently working in West Africa under contracts that explre in June 2007, August
2007 and December 2007, reapectlvely The Bintang Kalimantan completed its contract in March 2006 and is Current]y stacked. The
Pride I and Pride II lake barges in Venezuela are operating ‘on a well-to-well basis. Platform rigs 1002E, 1003E and 1005E are
operating in Mexico under colntracts that expire in mid-2007. Two of our platform rigs are working in the U.5. Gulf of Mexico under
short-term or well-to-well contracts. We also provide drilling management services for five deepwater platform drilling rigs,
consisting of two tension leg |platforms two spar units and a semisubmersible rig, under management contracts that expire from 2008
to 2010.




Revenues increased $65.1 million, or 28%, for the year ended December 31, 2005 over the comparable period in 2004. The increase
is due primarily to $47.8 million in increased revenues from (1) additional management contract revenues, including the Kizomba B
contract commencing in 2005, the Holstein and Mad Dog contracts commencing in 2004 and the Thunderhorse contract commencing
in 2005, and (2) higher utilization of the Pride Ivory Coast, which was idle in 2004. Average daily revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2005 increased 24% over the comparable period in 2004 primarily due to the 2005 sales of the tender barges, which had
lower than average dayrates. Earnings from operations increased $12.7 million, or 61%, for the year ended December 31, 2005 over
the comparable period in 2004 due to earnings from the new management contracts, a $3.8 million gain on asset sales in 2005 and a
$3.5 million impairment charge in 2004.

Latin America Land

As of February 28, 2007, our Latin America Land segment comprised 206 land drilling and workover rigs, of which 94% were
contracted. The following table summarizes our average daily revenues and the number of days worked by type rig in our Latin
America Land fleet:

2006 2008 2004
Average Daily Days Average Daily Days Average Daily Days
Revenues(l)  Worked(2) _Revenues(l) Worked(?) _Revenues{l} Worked{2)
DAilINg. oo $ 15300 22350 % 12,600 22,360 $ 9,900 20,244

WOTKOVET .o § 6,100 43886 $ 4,900 43,705 $ 4300 44,052

(1) Average daily revenues are based on total revenues for each type of rig divided by actual days worked by all rigs of that type.

(2) Days worked is calculated as the total days worked by all rigs of each type during the period.

Revenues increased $113.1 million; or 23%, for the year ended December 31, 2006 over the comparable period in 2005. Average
daily revenues for our Latin America Land drilting fleet for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased by approximately 21% over
2005. The increase in revenues and average daily revenues is due to strong dayrate increases in Argentina, Colombia and Venezuela
and the disposition of the drilling rigs in Brazil in March 2006, which operated at substantially lower daily rates. The average daily
revenue for the 2006 period was negatively impacted by three of our drilling rigs in Bolivia being idled following the government’s
decision to nationalize the country’s oil and natural gas reserves. We currently anticipate that these rigs will return to work by the end
of the first quarter of 2007. In September 2006, we completed the mobilization of a land rig in Kazakhstan to Colombia, where it
began a three-year contract in the fourth quarter 2006. The contract is at a rate substantially above our current average daily rate in
Latin America, and we recovered the costs of mobilizing the rig in a lump-sum payment from our customer. Average daily revenue for
our Latin America Land workover fleet for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased by approximately 24% over 2005. The
increase is due to strong daily rate increases in Argentina and Colombia with moderate daily rate increases in Venezuela. The number
of days worked and the average daily revenue fluctuate for the workover rigs from period to period based on the location and nature of
the wells being worked.

Earnings from operations for our Latin America Land segment increased $47.8 million, or 73%, for the year ended December 31,
2006 over the comparable period in 2005 primarily due to higher dayrates earned in Argentina and Colombia partially offset by higher
operating costs in Venezuela.

Revenues increased $105.4 million, or 27%, for the year ended December 31, 2005 over the comparable period in 2004. Average
daily revenues for our Latin America Land drilling fleet for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased by approximately 27% over
2004. The increase in revenues is due to increased utilization in Colombia and an increase in dayrates in Argentina, which resulted in
higher average daily revenues. Average daily revenue for our Latin America Land workover fleet for the vear ended December 31,
2005 increased by approximately 14% over 2004. The increase is due to higher dayrates in Argentina and Colombia. The decline in
days worked from 2004 to 2005 is attributable to lower utilization in Venezuela partially offset by higher utilization in Colombia,

Earnings from operations for our Latin America Land segment increased $59.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from
$5.8 million over the comparable period in 2004 primarily due to higher dayrates earned in Argentina and an overall increase in
business activity in Colombia. In addition, we recorded a $16.8 million charge in 2004 for the impairment of certain rigs and
equipment,

32




E&P Services

We currently provide E&II’ services in Argentina, Bolivia, Brazil, Ecuador, Peru and Venezuela, consisting pr1mar11y of pressure
pumping services, integrated services and other exploration and productlon services. “

Revenue of our E&P Semces segmem for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased $7.5 million, or 4%, over 2005 primarily
due to increased revenue from pressure pumping and integrated services in Argentina and directional drilling in Bra21l partially offset
by downtime resulting from r%loblllzmg equipment between markets, In the first quarter 2006, we moved our E&P Semces equipment
located in Colombia to Ven:zuela and Argentina to concentrate on areas with higher margin business. Earnings from operations
increased $6.2 million, or 30%, for the year ended December 31, 2006 over the comparable period in 2005 prlmarlly due to increased
revenues in Argentina. : :,

Revenue of our E&P Semces segment for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased $32.8 million, or 21%, over 2004 primarily
due to increased revenue from pressure pumping and integrated services in Argentina and directional drilling in Braznl Earnings from
operations increased $5.7 m:lhon or 38%, for the year ended December 31, 2005 over the comparable peried in 2004 primarily due to
increased revenues in Argentma and Brazil. : |i

Discontinued Operations i:

The operations of the Technical Services group were concentrated on completing the final of four rigs pursuam to fixed-fee
contracts to design, engineer! manage construction of and commission specialized drilling rigs for two of our sngnlﬁcant customers.
The first rig was completed and delivered in 2003, and the other three rigs were completed and delivered in 2004. I‘

i

We experienced significant cost overruns on these projects, and the total costs on each of the four projects substantially exceeded
contract revenues. We do not*currently intend to enter into additional business of this nature. Accordingly, we have reported our fixed-
fee rig construction business as discontinued operations in our results of operations. See Note 12 of our Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 3 of this annual report for additional information regarding discontinued operations.

Results of Operations ;
i

The discussion below relstmg to significant line items represents our analysis of significant changes or everits that impact the
comparability of reported amounls Where appropriate, we have identified specific events and changes that affect comparability or
trends and, where possible and practical, have quantified the impact of such items. Except to the extent that differences between
operating segments are material to an understanding of our business taken as a whole, the discussion below is based on our
consolidated financial results! ;

||
The following table presents selected consolidated financial information: I

1§
2006 2005 2004

(In ml]hons)
REVENUES ..o rennaeresereenreens b § 24954 $ 20333 § 1,712.2
Operating costs, excluding depreciation and AMOTZAON ..............ov..orrveereeerersieeeereeressene s 1,579.2 1,388.3 1,146.8
Depreciation and amMOTTIZAON ......c....vveeeviirieer e et sssssase st sesaessrassssassas 269.9 2572 2653
General and administrative, e'xcluding depreciation and amortization .............occeeevveeerceeninnreneas 128.9 1977 74.8
Impairment Charges. ... e 39 1.0 249
GAIN ON SALES OF ASSELS, NEL o.hevreveirreeeeeeeeeeeseeeeseeeeeseseeaeseeses e s s et e e et eeeeeeeeseetesmsemssesrasesesasens (31.4) 1{36.1) (48.6)
Earnings from operations......|.......cco.ccoovv.ns et eseeereanieteeateieasteitabaheebabe b eh s et e es e renRn e e e besntate 5449 3252 249.0
Interest eXpense.........occveveeene. D ettt vt ——aeans (78.4) (88 1) (103.3)
Reﬁnancing charges.............. D ettt — P (36.3)
Interest income.........coeceuene. D e e e en e 4.8 a2 39
Other income (expense), net et 4.5 L 9.5 0.5
Income from continuing operations before income taxes and MINOTIty INLETESt ...........ccoccoovvervens ‘ 475.8 248.7 113.8
INCOme taxes.......coooveeerenn.... D e s e (176.4)  (100.7) (61.7)
Minority interest ......c..ccceeee. D ettt e b ne ettt aeans (4.1) 1(19.7) (24.5)
INCOME frOM CONTINUING OPEIALIONS ........v.eveveevssrereeseessressssessessssessessssssssesssssssssssessssssessssnsssreesenss $ 2953 % 1283 § 276
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Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2005

Revenues. Revenues for 2006 increased $462.1 million, or 22.7%, compared with 2005. Offshore revenues increased
$333.9 million due to overall higher average daily revenues, particularly with respect to our U.S. Gulf of Mexico jackup fleet, higher
dayrates for the Pride North America and $49.7 million of additional revenues from the Pride Portiand and the Pride Rio de Janeiro,
which commenced operations during the third and second quarter of 2005, respectively. Latin America Land revenues increased
$113.1 million primarily due to-price increases for drilling and workover services in Argentina and Colombia.

Operating Costs. Operating costs for 2006 increased $190.9 million, or 13.8%, compared with 2003, of which $49.0 million is due
to the operations of the Pride Portland and the Pride Rio de Janeiro, Offshore operating costs in 2006 include $15.0 million related to
termination of our agency agreement in Brazil. Labor costs, rental expenses and amortization of deferred mobilization costs were the
other primary reasons for overall increases in operating costs. Operating costs as a percentage of revenues were 63.3% and 68.3% for
2006 and 2005, respectively. The decrease as a percentage of revenue was primarily driven by the increase in dayrates.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense for 2006 increased $12.7 million, or 4.9%, compared with
2005 primarily due increased capital expenditures in 2006.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses for 2006 increased $31.2 million, or 31.9%, compared with 2005
primarily due to $20.0 million of expenses related to the ongoing investigation described under “~— FCPA Investigation™ above, an
increase of $13.8 million in compensation costs due to increased corporate staffing and stock compensation, and approximately
$2.7 million of corperate initiatives related to our Latin America Land and E&P Services businesses. General and administrative
expenses for 2005 include approximately $10.8 million of severance in connection with the termination of the employment of vartous
key employees and the retirement of a director.

Gain on Sale of Assets, Net, We had net gains on sales of assets of $31.4 millton in 2006 primarily due to the sale of the Pride
Rotterdam, resulting in a gain of $25.3 million, and the sale of four land rigs: We had net gains on sales of assets of $36.1 million in
2005 primarily due to the sale of one jackup rig, two tender-assisted barge rigs and six land rigs. ‘

Interest Expense. Interest expense for 2006 decreased by $9.7 million, or 11.0%, compared with 2005 primarily due to lower total
debt levels resulting from the repayment of our senior secured term loan and the conversion and retirement of our 2 4% convertible
senior notes during 2005 described under “— Liquidity and Capital Resources” below. Included in 2005 are charges of $3.6 million
related to the write-off of deferred financing costs as a result of the prepayment of our senior secured term loan.

Other Income, Net. Other income, net for 2006 decreased from $9.5 million for 2005 to $4.5 million for 2006. The decrease was
primarily due to a $5.3 million decrease in mark-to-market gains and cash settlements on interest rate swap and cap agreements.

Income Taxes. Our consolidated effective tax rate for 2006 was 37.1% as compared with 40.5% for 2005. The lower rate in 2006
was due to higher profitability in jurisdictions with statutory rates lower than the United States.

Minority Interest. Minority interest in 2006 decreased $15.6 million, or 79.2%, compared with 2005 primarily due to the purchase
of an additional 40% interest in our drillship joint venture in December 2005 described under “— Liquidity and Capitai Resources”
below.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

Revenues. Revenues for 2005 increased $321.1 million, or 18.8%, compared with 2004. Our significant operating segments
experienced increased revenues as demand for drilling and related services continued to increase. The commencement of the Pride
Portiand and the Pride Rio de Janeiro in 2005 resulted in $47.6 million of additional revenues as compared to 2004. Our jackup fleet
in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico continued to improve its revenues due to higher revenues from managed rigs and improved dayrates and
utilization. Revenues from our Latin America Land segment increased due to stronger demand and higher utilization and increased
pricing. Revenues increased in our E&P segment due to increased activity in Mexico, Brazil and Venezuela and a higher level of
integrated services work in Argentina and Brazil.

Operating Costs. Operating costs for 2005 increased $241.5 million, or 21.1% compared with 2004, primarily due to increased

utilization in our Latin America Land segment driven by stronger demand and increased activity in our E&P services segment. Higher
labor costs for oilfield personnel also contributed to the increase in operating costs, as the competition for experienced oilfield workers
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continued to drive up wages ’and salaries. Operating costs as a percentage of revenues were 68.3% and 67.0% for 2005 and 2004,

Iy
respectively. This increase results primarily from an increase in the amount of operations performed on managed rigs, as these
contracts typically have lower operating margins.

Operating costs for the ofishore fleet increased primarily due to increased utilization of the semisubmersible fleet and increased
costs from managed platforml rigs, incleding the Pride Portland and the Pride Rio de Janeiro, which commenced operations in 20035.
Operating costs for our jackup fleet increased primarily due to higher levels of activity.

Depreciation and Amornzmzan Depreciation and amortization expense for 2005 decreased $8.1 million, or 3.1%, compared with
2004 primarily due a decreaSt in the number of rigs we own. During 2005, we sold a jackup rig, two tender-assisted barge rigs and six
land rigs. J

General and Admzmstmtwe General and administrative expenses for 2005 increased $22.9 million, or 30.6%, compared with
2004. The increase was prlmarlly due to charges of $10.8 million related to severance in connection with the termination of the
employment of various key employees and the retirement of a director, increased audit and professional fees and increased
compensation costs due to incI:reased staffing. '}

{

Gain on Sale of Assets, N"t We had net gams on sales of assets of $36.1 million in 2005 primarily due to the sale of one jackup
rig, two tender-assisted barge rigs and six land rigs. We had net gains on sales of assets of $48.6 million in 2004 pnmanly due to the
sale of three jackup rigs. ; : I'

Interest Expense. Interest lexpense for 2005 decreased by $15.2 million, or 14.7%, compared with 2004 primarily due to lower total
debt levels resulting from the repayment of debt during 2004 and 2005, Included in 2005 are charges of $3.6 million related to the
write-off of deferred fi nancmg costs as a result of the prepayment of our senior secured term loan. . .} :

Other Income, Net. Other!mcome net for 2005 increased by $9.0 million from $0.5 million for 2004 to $9.5 million for 2005. The
increase was primarily due lto a $1.2 million increase in net foreign exchange gains in 2005 compared with 2004, a $4.5 million
increase in mark-to-market gains and cash settlements on interest rate swap and cap agreements and a $3.3 million increase in other
income.

Ll
Income Taxes. Our conso!lidated effective tax rate for 2005 was 40.5% as compared with 54.3% for 2004. The'lower rate in 2005
compared with 2004 was pri{mari]y due to debt refinancing charges in 2004 that reduced income without a proportional reduction to
income taxes, and an mcrea‘.e in 2005 taxable income in foreign jurisdictions with low or zero effective tax rates. These reductions
were pamally offset by an increase in 2005 taxable income in high effective tax rate countries, and an increase in U.S. tax on certain
foreign earnings. l' "

"

Minority Interest. Minority interest in 2005 decreased $4.8 million, or 19.6%, compared with 2004 primarily due to lower income
from our joint venture that owns the Pride Angola due to it being out of service for approximately 45 days to undergo its special
periodic survey and increasen::l interest expense on the joint venture’s debt which was refinanced and increased in 2004, partially offset
by an increase in minority interest related to the mark-to-market gains on interest rate swap and cap agreements.

Liquidity and Capital Resources ‘
|| _

Our objective in financing our business is to maintain adequate financial resources and access to additional liquidity. During 2006,
cash flows from operations,} borrowings under our senior secured revolving credit facility and proceeds from asset sales and stock
option exercises were the prmmpal sources of funding. We anticipate that cash on hand and cash flows from: operations will be
adequate to fund normal ongomg capital expenditures, working capital needs and debt service requirements in 2007. Qur
$500.0 million senior secured revolving credit facility provides back-up liquidity in the event of an unannenpated SIgmﬁcant demand
on cash that would not be fuhded by operations.

I

Our capital allocation precess is focused on utilizing cash flows generated from operations in ways that enhance the value of our
company. In 2006, we used cash for a variety of activities including working capital needs, repayment of indebtedness and purchases
of property and equipment. .

1
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Sources and Uses of Cash — 2006 Compared with 2005

Cash and cash equivalents, including restricted cash, totaled $65.9 million at December 31, 2006 compared with $46.9 miilion at
December 31, 2005. For 2006, net cash provided by operating activities was $611.7 million as compared with $321.9 million for 2005.
The increase in net cash provided from operations was primarily due to the increase in net income.

Purchases of property and equipment totaled $356.2 million and $157.2 million for 2006 and 2005, respectively. The majority of
these expenditures related to capital expenditures incurred in connection with new contracts and other sustaining capital projects.

Proceeds from dispositions of property and equipment were $60.5 million and $121.2 million for 2006 and 2005, respectively.
Included in the proceeds for 2006 was $51.3 million related to the sale of the Pride Rotterdam and four land rigs. Included in the
proceeds for 2005 was $40.0 million related to the sale of the Pride Ohio by one of our foreign subsidiaries, $49.5 million related to
the sale of the Piranha and the fle de Sein and $23.0 million related to three land rigs. :

In November 2006, we acquired the remaining 70% interest in the joint venture entity that owns the Pride Portiand and the Pride
Rio de Janeiro for $215.0 million in cash, plus earn-out payments, if any, to be made during the six-year period (subject to certain
extensions for non-operating periods) following the expiration of the existing drilling contracts for the rigs. The transaction also
resulted in the recording of approximately $284 million of debt, net of the fair value discount, of the joint venture companies to our
consolidated balance sheet. In addition, we paid $15 million to an affiliate of our partner for the cancellation of future obligations
under certain existing agency relationships related to five offshore rigs we operate in Brazil. We funded the purchase price and
cancellation payment with available cash and borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

In December 2005, we acquired an additional 40% interest in our joint venture companies that manage our Angolan operations
from our partner, the national oil company of Angola, for $170.9 million in cash. In addition, we paid $4.5 million to an affiliate of
our partner for termination of certain agreements related to the operation of the joint venture. We funded the purchase price and the
termination payment with borrowings under our senior secured revolving credit facility.

We received proceeds of $1.4 million and $124.9 million from the issuance of common stock in 2006 and 2005, respectively. The
proceeds for 2005 included $123.6 million (before offering costs) related to the public offering of 6.0 million shares of common stock.
We used the net proceeds from the offering to purchase an equal number of shares of our common stock from three affiliated
investment funds at a price per share equal to the proceeds per share that we received from the offering. The shares repurchased from
the funds were subsequently retired. We also received proceeds of $50.3 million and $91.2 million from the exercise of stock options
in 2006 and 2003, respectively.

Debt, including current maturities, totaled $1,386.6 million at December 31, 2006 compared with $1,244.8 million at December 31,
2005,

Sources and Uses of Cash — 2005 Compared with 2004

Cash and cash equivalents, including restricted cash, totaled $46.9 million at December 31, 2005 compared with $47.0 miltion at
December 31, 2004. For 2005, net cash provided by operating activities was $321.9 million as compared with $337.1 million for 2004.
The decrease in net cash provided from operations was primarily due to an $83.3 million increase in working capital, primarily driven
by an increase in accounts receivable, partially offset by an increase in net income.

Purchases of property and equipment totated $157.2 million and $136.7 million for 2005 and 2004, respectively. The majority of
these expenditures related to capital expenditures incurred in connection with new contracts and other sustaining capital projects. In
2004, we purchased the Pride Ivory Coast tender-assisted drilling rig for $16.0 million.

Proceeds from dispositions of property and equipment were $121.2 million and $73.5 million for 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Included in the proceeds for 2005 was $114.5 million related to the sale of one jackup rig, two tender-assisted rigs and six land rigs.
Included in the proceeds for 2004 was $71.0 million related to the sale of three jackup rigs.

As described above, in December 2005, we acquired an additional 40% interest in our Angolan joint venture companies for
$170.9 million and paid $4.5 million for termination of certain agreements related to the operation of the joint venture.
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We received proceeds of $124.9 million and $1.5 million from the issuance of common stock in 2005 and 2004 respectively. We
also received proceeds of $91. 2 m1lhon and $10.1 million from the exercise of stock options in 2005 and 2004, respectwely

Debt, including current matuntles totaled $1,244.8 million at December 31, 2005 compared with $1,725.2 mllhon at December 31,
2004. During 2005, we engaged in the following financing transactions: i|

» The holders of our 2 ‘/% Convertible Senior Notes due 2007 converted substantially all of the $300.0 mllllon outstanding
principal amount of the notes into approximately 18.2 million shares of our common stock. We redeemed the remammg principal
amount of the notes for cash. . .

‘

» We completed the repayment of the senior secured term loan in full and recognized charges of $3.6 mllhon to write off the
unamortized portion of the deferred finance costs at the time of the early repayment. 1,
I+
Working Capital ‘ y

As of December 31, 2006, we had working capital of $293.1 million compared with $213.8 million as of De'cember 31, 200s.
These amounts included an |[aggregate of short-term borrowings and current portion of long-term debt of $91 9 million and
$59.7 million, an aggregate of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash of $65.9 million and $46.9 million, accounts receivable,
net of $505.0 million and $43S 5 million and accounts payable of $189.9 million and $159.8 million. The increase 1n working capital
was attributable primarily to the increase in current deferred income taxes relating to reclassification due to our ablllty to utilize our
NOL carryforwards in 2007 and the increase in accounts receivable due to higher dayrates, partially offset by i mcreases in accrued
expenses due to the deferredlcontract liabilities from our joint venture acquisition and increases in accounts payable and accrued
expenses due to mcreased business activity. )

ll
Credit Ratings . i

Our 7 3/8% Senior Notes due 2014 are rated Ba2 by Moody’s Investor Service, Inc., BB- by both Standard& Poor’s Rating
Services and BB by Fitch Ratmgs Moody’s, S&P’s and Fitch’s ratings outlooks are stable. : i

Available Credir Facilities '

We currently have a $500 0 million senior secured revolving credit facility with a group of banks maturmg in July 2009.
Borrowings under the fac111tyl are available for general corporate purposes. We may obtain up to $100.0 million of letters of credit
under the revolving credit fauhty As of December 31, 2006, there were $50.0 million of borrowings and §19.2 mllhon of letters of
credit outstanding under the fa cility. Amounts drawn under the facility bear interest at variable rates based on LIBOR plus a margin or
prime rate plus a margin, The interest rate margin varies based on our leverage ratio. As of December 31, 2006 the lnterest rate on the

facility was approximately 5. 9% and availability was approximately $430.8 million. :

The facility is secured by first priority liens on certain of the existing and future rigs, accounts receivable, 1nventory and related
insurance of our subsidiary I’nde Offshore, Inc. {the borrower under the facility) and its subsidiaries, all of the equity of Pride
Offshore and its domestic sub51d1anes and 65% of the equity of certain of our foreign subsidiaries. We and certain of our domestic
subsidiaries have guaranteed the obligations of Pride Offshore under the facility. We generally are required to repay the revolving
lpans, with a permanent redueuon in availability under the revolving credit facility, with proceeds from a sale of or a casualty event
with respect to collateral. The facility contains a number of covenants restricting, among other things, redemption and repurchase of
our indebtedness; dlstnbunons dividends and repurchases of capital stock and other equity interests; acqu1smons and investments;
asset sales; capital expendltun.s indebtedness; liens; and affiliate-transactions. The facility also contains customary events of default,
including with respect to a change of control. #

i

Other Outstanding Debt

As of December 31, 2006, we had $500.0 million pnnc1pa1 amount of 7 3/8% Senior Notes due 2014 outstgndmg The notes
provide for semiannual interejt payments and contain provisions that limit our ability and the ability of our sub51d1ar1es to enter into
transactions with affiliates; p"ly dividends or make other restricted payments; incur debt or issue preferred stock;:incur dividend or
other payment restrictions affectlng our subsidiaries; sell assets; engage in sale and leaseback transactions;icreate liens; and
consolidate, merge or transfe1 all or substantlally all of our assets. Many of these restrictions will terminate if the notes are rated
investment grade by either S&IP or Moody’s and, in either case, the notes have a speelﬁed minimum rating by the other rating agency.
We are required to offer to repurchase the notes in connection with specified change in control events that result in a'ratings decline.

f
i
i
i

|i
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As of December 31, 2006, we had $300.0 million principal amount of 3 4% Convertible Senior Notes due 2033 outstanding. The
notes provide for semiannual interest payments and for the payment of contingent interest during any six-month interest period
commencing on or after May 1, 2008 for which the trading price of the notes for each of the five trading days immediately preceding
such period equals or exceeds 120% of the principal amount of the notes. Beginning May 5, 2008, we may redeem any of the notes at
a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest. In addition, noteholders may require
us to repurchase the notes on May 1 of 2008, 2010, 2013, 2018, 2023 and 2028 at a repurchase price of 100% of the principal amount
redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest. We may elect to pay all or a portion of the repurchase price in common stock instead of
cash, subject to certain conditions. The notes are convertible under specified circumstances into shares of our common stock at a
conversion rate of 38.9045 shares per $1,000 principal amount of notes (which is equal to a conversion price of $25.704), subject to
adjustment. Upon conversion, we will have the right to deliver, in lieu of shares of common stock, cash or a combination of cash and
common stock. '

As of December 31, 2006, we had $190.5 million principal amount outstanding under our drillship loan facility due in 2010. Our
drillship loan facility is collateralized by the two driliships, the Pride Africa and the Pride Angola, and the proceeds from the related
drilling contracts. The drillship loan facility matures in September 2010 and amortizes quarterly. The drillship loan facility ts non-
recourse to us and the joint owner. The drillship loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 1.50%. As a condition of the loan, we maintain
interest rate swap and cap agreements with the lenders. In accordance with the debt agreements, certain cash balances are held in trust
to assure that timely interest and principal payments are made. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, $1.8 million of such cash
balances, which amount is included in restricted cash, was held in trust and is not available for our use.

In February 1999, we completed the sale and leaseback of the Pride South America semisubmersible drilling rig with an
unaffiliated leasing trust pursuant to which we received $97.0 million. We consolidate the leasing trust’s assets and liabilities, which
comprise the Pride South America rig and the associated note payable. As of December 31, 2006 and 2008, the carrying amount of the
note payable was approximately $64.2 million and $72.3 million, respectively. The note payable is collateralized by the Pride South
America. The note payable bears interest at 9.35% and requires quarterly interest payments. In February 2007, we notified the note
holders that we will exercise our right to prepay the semisubmersible loan in August 2007.

In November 2006, we completed the purchase of the remaining 70% interest in the joint venture entity that owns the Pride
Portland and the Pride Rio de Janeiro. This transaction resulted in the addition of approximately $284 million of debt, net of fair
value discount, (representing 100% of the joint venture entity’s debt) to our consolidated balance sheet. The notes representing the
debt were used by the joint venture entity to finance a portion of the cost of construction of these rigs. Repayment of the notes is
guaranteed by the United States Maritime Administration (“MARAD”). The notes bear interest at a weighted average fixed rate of
4.33%, mature in 2016 and are prepayable, in whole or in part, at any time, subject to a make- whole premium. The notes are
collateralized by the two rigs and the net proceeds received by subsidiary project companies chartering the rigs.

Other Sources and Uses of Cash

Mobilization fees received from customers and the costs incurred to mobilize a rig from one geographic area to another, as well as
up-front fees to modify a rig to meet a customer’s specifications, are deferred and amortized: over the term of the related dritling
contracts. These up-front fees and costs impact liquidity in the period in which the fees are received or the costs incurred, whereas
they will impact our statement of operations in the periods during which the deferred revenues and costs are amortized. The amount of
up-front fees received and the related costs vary from period to period depending upon the nature of new contracts entered into and
market conditions then prevailing. Generally, contracts for drilling services in remote locations or contracts that require specialized
equipment will provide for higher up-front fees than contracts for readily available equipment in major markets. Additionally, we
defer costs associated with obtaining in-class certification from various regulatory bodies in order to operate our offshore rigs. We
amortize these costs over the period of validity of the related certificate.

We expect our purchases of property and equipment for 2007 to be approximately 3400 million. These purchases are expected to be
used primarily for various rig upgrades in connection with new contracts as contracts expire during the year and other sustaining
capital projects. g

We anticipate making income tax payments of approximately $145 million to $165 million in 2007.

We may redeploy additional assets to more active regions if we have the opportunity to do so on attractive terms. We frequently bid
for or negotiate with customers regarding multi-year contracts that could require significant capital expenditures and mobilization
costs. We expect to fund project opportunities primarily through a combination of working capital, cash flow from operations and
borrowings under our senior secured revolving credit facility.
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We may review from time to time possible expansion and acquisition opportunities relating to our business segments, which may
include the construction of rigs for our fleet and acquisitions of rigs and other business. While we have no definitive agreements to
acquire or construct additional equipment or to acquire any businesses, suitable opportunities may arise in the future. Any
determination to construct additional rigs for our fleet will be based on market conditions and opportunities existing at the time,
including the availability of long -term contracts with sufficient dayrates for the rigs and the relative costs of building new rigs with
advanced capabilities compar fed with the costs of retrofi itting or converting existing rigs to provide similar capabilities. The timing,
size or success of any acquisition or construction effort and the associated potential capital commitments are unprednctable We may
fund alt or part of any such efforts with proceeds from debt and/or equity issuances. "

We consider from time to time opportunities to dispose of certain assets or groups of assets when we believe the capital could be
more effectively deployed. We are actively pursuing options for maximizing the value of our Latin America Land and E&P Services
operations. All options are bng considered, including sales to strategic buyers and capital market alternatives. We may ultimately
decide to pursue a course of|act|0n other than a disposition of these operations; however, if we do pursue a disposition, we may be
unable to complete a transaction on terms we find acceptable or at alt. r

In addition to the matters fdescn’bed in this “— Liquidity and Capital Resources” section, please read “— Business Outlook™ and
“— Segment Review” for additional matters that may have a material impact on our liquidity. i

Contractual Obligations

In the table below, we set forth our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2006. Some of the figures we include in this table
are based on our estimates [and assumptions about these obligations, including their duration and other factors. The contractual
obligations we will actually pay in future periods may vary from those reflected in the table because the estimates and assumptions are

subjective. :
4

: . Less Than After

' _Total  _ 1 Year 1-3Years __4-5Years 5 Years

| ’ (In millions)
Principal payments on long-term debt(1).iiiciieicir e $ 1,3926 § 919 $ 264.1 $ 805 § 956.1
Interest payments on long- telm debt{2) ..o 655.3 73.7 191.5 107.2 2829
Operating lease obllgatlons(:-) ................................................... 20.6 3.2 47 43 8.4
Purchase obligations(4)........5 .o - 999 97.4 25 — —
Other long-term habllmes(S) ..... 2.3 1.0 1.2 0 1
TOAL e b e e et as e e e 3 2.1 ZQ,Z $_2612 3 464.0 5_1211 M&#

(1) Amounts represent th(i: expected cash payments for our total long-term debt and do not reflect any unamortized discount.

(2) Amounts represent the expected cash payments for interest on our long-term debt based on the interest rates in place and
amounts outstanding at December 31, 2006. p

(3) We enter into operatilllg leases in the normal course of business. Some lease agreements provide us with the option to renew
the leases. Our future operating lease payments would change if we exercised these renewal options and if we entered into
additional operating lase agreements.

(4) Amounts include cor{lmitted purchase obligations for major maintenance and upgrade projects and contracts for software
maintenance fees.

l

(5) Amounts represent other long-term liabilities, including the current portion, related to severance and termmatlon benefits and

capital leases. i‘

In the normal course of business with customers, vendors and others, we have entered into letters of credit and surety bonds as

security for certain performénce obligations which totaled approximately $223.0 million at December 31, 2006. These letters of credit

and surety bonds are 1ssua':i under a number of facilities provided by several banks and other financial institutions and are not
normally called as we typlcally comply with the underlying performance requirement. .

i
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New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes — an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 1G9 (FIN 48). This interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes.
FIN 48 will require companies to determine whether it is more-likely-than-not that a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax
return will be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical
merits of the position. FIN 48 also provides guidance on measurement, derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting
in interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006, We adopted
FIN 48 on January i, 2007. We are currently evaluating the potential impact, if any, to our consolidated financial statements. We
anticipate that the adoption of FIN 48 could introduce additional volatility into our effective income tax rate in future periods.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurement, which defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The standard also responds to investors’ requests for more information about {1) the extent to which companies measure assets and
liabilities at fair value, (2) the information used to measure fair value, and {3) the effect that fair-value measurements have on
earnings. SFAS No. 157 will apply whenever another standard requires (or permits) assets or liabilities to be measured at fair value.
The standard does not expand the use of fair value to any new circumstances. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. We are currently evaluating
the potential impact, if any, to our consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers ' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement
Plans. This statement requires employers to recognize on their balance sheets the obligations associated with single-employer defined
benefit pension, retiree healthcare, and other postretirement plans. SFAS No. 138 amends SFAS No. 87, Employers’ Accounting for
Pensions, SFAS No. 88, Emplovers’ Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for
Termination Benefits, SFAS No. 106, Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions, and SFAS No. 132R,
Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits, and will require employers 10 recognize on their balance
sheets the funded status of pension and postretirement benefit plans and will require fiscal year end measurements of plan assets and
benefit obligations. SFAS No. 158 will not impact most of the measurement and disclosure guidance nor will it change the amounts
recognized in the income statement as net periodic benefit cost. As of December 31, 2006, we adopted the recognition of the funded
status of plans subject to SFAS No. 158 (see Note 11 of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this
annual report). The requirement to measure plan assets and benefit as of fiscal year end is effective for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2008.

In June 2006, the FASB ratified the consensus reached by the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) on Issue No. 06-3, How Taxes
Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement (That is, Gross
versus Net Presentation). EITF Issue No. 06-3 addresses disclosure requirements for any tax assessed by a governmental authority that
is directly imposed on a revenue-producing transaction between a seller and a customer and may include, but is not limited to, sales,
use, value added and some excise taxes. EITF Issue No. 06-3 concludes that the presentation of taxes on either a gross basis (included
in revenues and costs) or a net basis (excluded from revenues) is an accounting policy decision that should be disclosed. In addition,
for any such taxes that are reported on a gross basis, a company should disclose the amounts of those taxes in interim and annual
financial statements for each period for which an income statement is presented if those amounts are significant. The provisions of
EITF Issue No. 06-3 should be applied to financial reports for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after Deceniber 15,
2006, with earlier adoption permitted. We adopted EITF Issue No. 06-3 effective January 1, 2007. We are currently evaluating the
impact of adopting EITF Issue No. 06-3 but do not expect its adoption to have a significant impact on our results of operations and
financial condition.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when
Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements” (“SAB 108"). SAB 108 requires a registrant to quantify the impact
of correcting all misstatements on its current year financial statements using two approaches, the rollover and iron curtain approaches.
A registrant is required to adjust its current year financial statemenits if either approach to accumulate and identify misstatements
results in quantifying a misstatement that is material, after considering all relevant quantitative and qualitative factors. SAB 108 is
requited to be considered for financial statements for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006, The adoption of SAB 108 had no
impact on our consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.
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In February 2007, the I ASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and F manc:al Liabiliries.
SFAS No. 159 permits compames to choose to measure, on an instrument-by-instrument basis, financial instruments and certain other
items at fair value that are not currently required to be measured at fair value. We are currently evaluating whether to elect the option

provided for in this standard i elected, SFAS No. 159 would be effective for us as of January 1, 2008. We are cunently evaluating
the potential impact, if any, to our conselidated financial statements.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEM ENTS

This annual report coma’ins forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and
Section 21E of the Securmes Exchange Act of 1934, All statements, other than statements of historical fact, included in this annual
report that address activities, events or developments that we expect, project, belicve or anticipate will or may occur in the future are
forward-looking statements. !Thcse include such matters as:

g

L]

+ market conditions, expansion and other development trends in the contract drilling industry;
- , . e e . oo
+ our ability to enter into new contracts for our rigs and future utilization rates and contract rates for rigs; '

« future capital expendllures and investments in the construction, acquisition and refurbishment of rigs (mcludmg the amount and
nature thereof and the ummg, y of completion thereof); .
1

+ future asset sales and r=payment of debt; ¢

+ potential sales of, or other capital market alternatives regarding, our Latin America Land and E&P Services segments;

'

+ adequacy of funds for fapital expenditures, working capital and debt service requirements;

. | e .
= future income tax payments and the utilization of net operating loss carryforwards; .
| )
* business strategies; |
I

. I .
» expansion and growth |of operations;

“

| . .
« future exposure to currency devaluations or exchange rate fluctuations; I
Ji
+ expected outcomes of legal and administrative proceedings, including our ongoing investigation into improper payments to
foreign government of ficials, and their expected effects on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows;
J.

1
'

+ future operating results and financial condition; and "

» the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting. L

We have based these statements on our assumptions and analyses in light of our expcrlence and perception’ of historical trends,
current conditions, expected future developments and other factors we believe are appropriate in the circumstances.
I

These statements are subject to a number of assumptions, risks and uncertainties, including those described in “Risk Factors” in
Item 1A of this annual rcp01:1 and the following:

! .
+ peneral economic and business conditions;
» prices of oil and natural gas and industry expectations about future prices;

I
* cost overruns related t:') our turnkey contracts;

. [ .
+ foreign exchange conllr'ols and currency fluctuations; |

+ political stability in the countries in which we operate;
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+ the business opportunities {or lack thereof) that may be presented to and pursued by us;
* the limited number of strategic buyers available for our Latin America Land and E&P Services segments;
+ changes in laws or regulations; and

+ the validity of the assumptions used in the design of our disclosure controls and procedures.
Most of these factors are beyond our control. We caution you that forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future
performance and that actual results or developments may differ materially from those projected in these statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to certain market risks arising from the use of financial instruments in the ordinary course of business. These risks
arise primarily as a result of potential changes in the fair market value of financial instruments that would result from adverse
fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates as discussed below. We may enter into derivative financial
instrument transactions to manage or reduce market risk, but do not enter into derivative financial instrument transactions for
speculative purposes. '

Interest Rare Risk. We are exposed to changes in interest rates through our fixed rate long-term debt. Typically, the fair market
value of fixed rate long-term debt will increase as prevailing interest rates decrease and will decrease as prevailing interest rates
increase. The fair value of our long-term debt is estimated based on quoted market prices where applicable, or based on the present
value of expected cash flows relating to the debt discounted at rates currently available to us for long-term borrowings with similar
terms and maturities. The estimated fair value of our long-term debt as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 was $1,486.8 million and
$1,397.1 million, respectively, which was more than its carrying value as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 of $1,386.6 million and
$1,244 8 million, respectively. A hypothetical 100 basis point decrease in interest rates relative to market interest rates at
December 31, 2006 would increase the fair market value of our long-term debt at December 31, 2006 by approximately $33.9 million.

As of December 31, 2006, we held interest rate swap and cap agreements relating to the drillship loan facility as required by the
lenders. We have not designated these interest rate swap and cap agreements as hedging instruments in accordance with
SFAS No. 133. Accordingly, the interest rate swap and cap agreements are marked-to-market with realized and unrealized gains and
losses recorded in our consolidated statements of operations. As of December 31, 2006, the fair value of the interest rate swap and cap
agreements was an asset of $4.0 million.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk. We operate in a number of international areas and are involved in transactions
denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, which expose us to foreign currency exchange rate risk. We utilize local
currency borrowings and the payment structure of customer contracts to selectively reduce our exposure to exchange rate fluctuations
in connection with monetary assets, liabilities and cash flows denominated in certain foreign currencies. We did not enter into any
forward exchange or option contracts in 2006 and 2005, but continue to monitor our exposure to foreign currency exchange risk. We
do not hold or issue foreign currency forward contracts, option contracts or other derivative financial instruments for speculative
purposes. -
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm |

The Board of Directors and Stockholders i
. . , I
Pride International, Inc.: : k

We have audited the accompanymg consoltdated balance sheets of Pride International, Inc as of December 31, 2006 and 20085, and
the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the.years in the two-year period
ended December 31, 2006, These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’ 5|management Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. o

We conducted our audits m accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the ﬁnancnal staternents are
free of material mlsstatement An audit includes cxammmg, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audlt also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall ﬁnancml statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis. for our
opinion. : !

In our opinion, the consollldated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Pride International, Inc. as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years
in the two-year period endedlDecember 31, 2006, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting pr1nc1ples“

As discussed in note 1 tolthe financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158,
Emplovers’ Accounting -for| Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, and Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment. ‘

H

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accountmg Oversight Board (Umted States), the
effectiveness of Pride lnternatlonal Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria
established in [nrernal Conrrol— Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsormg Orgamzanons of the Treadway
Commission (COS0), and our report dated February 28, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessmenl of, and
the effective operation of, internal control over financial reporting. ‘ ‘f ‘

: : |i
/s/ KPMG LLP

Houston, Texas
February 28, 2007
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Pride International, Inc.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting for the year ended December 31, 2006, that Pride International, Inc. maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Pride International, Inc.’s management is responsible
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinicn on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control, and petforming such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent- limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Pride International, Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2000, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by COSO. Also, in our opinion, Pride International, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in /nternal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Pride International, Inc. as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, stockholders® equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2006, and our report
dated February 28, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

/s KPMG LLP

Houston, Texas
February 28, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM !

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of . 1
Pride International, Inc: Ir

In our opinion, the consohdated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year er:1ded December 31,
2004 present fairly, in ali m.uenal respects, the results of operations and cash flows of Pride International, Inc. and its subsidiaries
(“the Company”) for the year ended December 31, 2004, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepzed in the United
States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our respon51b1Iny 15 1O express an
opinion on these financial sta'ternents based on our audit. We conducted our audit of these statements in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accoummg Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit mcludes examining, on
a test basis, evidence suppomng the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting pnnmples used and
significant estimates made b‘y management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We beheve that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. i

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ’ ' ‘ Ii

'
-

Houston, Texas

March 25, 2005, except for ithe restatement discussed in the third and fourth paragraphs of Note 2 to the consolldated financial
statements included in the 2004 Form 10-K/A (not presented herein) as to which the date is January 24, 2006, and except for the
realignment of the Company s reportable segments descrlbed in the fifth paragraph of Note 1 to the consolidated f' nancial statements
as to which the date is March! 1, 2007. 1
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Pride International, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,
2006 2005
{In millions,
except par value)

ASSETS \

Current assets:

Cash and Cash eQUIVBIENES. ...........oeeiriieiriterer e se s eres e et ss e sses e s e et e b sasaas et ets1seassererarssessensseeasanabes $ 641 % 451
RESIACIEA CASH .ottt e ae e e sae s ae st s s b s ae e neeaneeaneeene b ene st e s e rateaaeaans 1.8 1.8
Trade reCaiVADLES, THEL ..ot cccsrer e ir et e e e st b e s eee e ee e s s e e e e A bt aeansss s s tat s e b bmn e s s anteeataseaassseeserabas 505.0 4355
Parts and sSUPPIIES, NEL......coo ettt et ettt e e e e et eeaee £ et eb e e b st e e rann 75.3 70.2
Deferred INCOME LAKES ..ottt st e ettt eace e et s sy et b sbe bt e ee e s e eme e s e aeansasmargsasraeeutebeemsnreesaeeananen 154.5 39
Prepaid expenses and Other CUITENE @8SELS....u. ittt et et nen e 162.5 131.8

TOMAL CUITEIIE ASSELS .- vt ivetireitererirrereetes s e st et et st raesaetesaeseeaesbeseeaeteme e et e seene o b e e seeseesesene et e seensnt e st eneebe e snennabaseens 063.2 688.3
Property and @QUIPIMENE ............oiiiresenri e reeenentrc e rrasbemse sttt g ettt r it 5,8084  4,762.0
Less acouMUIated AEPTECIALION ........cviiviiiee e erariis s st see e e e et e e e et e s b e e e en et s sstsbesnesaeassemse et em s et g e e rrbeirens 1,808.3 1,580.3
Property and qQUIPIMENT, B ........ccoiiiriiiiiiier ettt ettt as st e sees e res s st sh et e b esesene e bnbnbnrabas 4,000.1 3.181.7
Investments in and advances t0 affTHAES ..ot e e 24 68.0
GOOAWIIL ...ttt s e e e b ae e sk s et ssa s b pesebe s e Rt s Rt e b e sa e b s e et s e basneae b e e R r bbb ra s 68.5 68.5
OhEr ASSEIS ......ceeiicieers ittt e tnce et et et et e s ta seebbesbe bt etnemeesmemsesmsoheabers s s £aban bbb oAb e b e beneeasenen st SR e eEanberbaabrattisses 63.3 80.0
TOUAl BSSELS.....oceeeeer ettt ettt et s e e e e e s e e eaaeeses s e asta bbb abaseresne s e e R e S e R SE e AR en s e bEeabesabesant re st ereeessseareeanes § 50975 3 408635

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY _

Current liabilities:

Current portion 0f Iong=term debl ........ ..ottt et s sbe s s $ 919 % 57.5
S ROTTEITI BOITOWIIES ...\viiviiteeeeee ettt ettt et e seee s ses e sR e b b et b e e b8 45t e b e e e seeaeem e b e eR e s e ea bt bebsssbs e — 22
ACCOUNLS PAYADLE ..ottt e e s esseses s erss s es e b b et sa st es e ns e s e snsessesarasasabas e eseabesessennnnsanan 189.9 159.8
Accrued expenses and other current HabilitIes.......c.oooreviiiiiiiirse e rnerans 3883 255.0

Total CULTENT HADILLIES ....e.vviiiii et et s et s b s se st eme e et ea e b s e re s e e s s e s esesneasns e s es et eneenasteaeanan 670.1 4745
Other long-term Habilities ... ..ot s s e ret e et s e sr s 1969 69.3
Long-term debt, Net Of CUITENT POTTION.....cicciririiriiii ettt ser e ee e et e e sesere e s e b b crebasas 1,204,7 1,187.3
Deferred INCOME LAXES ...oceioiiiieiiieteitiste e et e s et re it esebesebabnarese e s e smesbasbensses bt s ast et b asbebnbasmeesesmenbes e ansesnaa 273.6 1.7
IMINOTIEY IMEETESE coovciiiuiiiiee e e eie bbbttt bt e e et e e s s e ca g sh e b B RS b4 et et ae e e e e e sasaenesns e e s 4 e b0t bbb e neemn 283 243
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 50.0 shares authorized; none iSSUed ........ccocviiviinirriiirceccececcire e — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 400.0 shares authorized; 165.7 and 161.8 shares issued; 164.3 and
161.1 Shares QUISIANAINE ..ottt sttt b e sttt e e enae e s me e e e e eaeeac b e sssata e sheeaennean 1.7 1.6

PA-in CAPILAL .oeeueeiiriiiiiiie ettt ettt et e et se st emses et et e b e s e st e aeesereesens et e seeae et e e bestsatatebe st e seenrnren 1,817.9 1,738.5
TTEASUTY SEOCK, AL COST..c. vttt et e e e b et e e et st aab e 13 et bt e he e e s e e b e s e sanseadeREn R e bbb s e noeaen (8.0) (5.5)
REtAINed BATTUIES .....oiiiitisire ettt bbb b4t h e e h e et e b e e s deRe b b h s ba s s 819.0 522.5
Accumulated other COMPreRenSive INCOMIE ..veeeiiiieci e reevera ettt v ses e re et s eme s semnees 33 2.3

Total SEOCKROIAEIE’ COUILY ..iiviitiieiiiireice e e et arae s st sra s e sbe s e s e e ee st e eme et e rra e s b e vr s b s easesasasabeenssseemseemeasanresraenes 2,633.9 22594
Total liabilities and StOCKhOIAEIS” EQUITY .....ccccoiiirirrrereresensnererersses e rae e e rrensssssssesasesesss s e ssecncecnsarasarass $ 50075 $ 40865

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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‘ Pride International,.Inc. I

’ Consolidated Statements of Operations - 1.1

b

‘ Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(In millions, except per share amounts)

Revenues........ivevvvricineves b, e e e bt reaesibbeeatt e et e e s n et e et e et s erennreas $ 24954 § 2,0333 § 1,712.2

Costs and expenses: ;|
Operating costs, excluding ceprec:atlon and amMOTtiZAtION...ceervrrcoreneemrere e ree e e 1,579.2 1,388.3 1,146.8
Depreciation and amomzauon .................................................................................................... 2699 257.2 265.3
General and administrative, excluding depreciation and amortization ..............e.vereeereeeereeeennee 128.9 197.7 74.8
IMPAITMENE CRAIZES. ..ot e ea e e b e rbs e s r g sb s snesssens e 39 . 10 249
GAIN ON SAIES OF SSELS, MO, ..oeee oo e e e eeeseses e see e e eesesesesaesssssssssss s rasasetesaseseossemnene (31.4) (36.1) (48.6)
Earnings from operations o ettt e bttt s e 5449 325.2 249.0
Interest expense....................l ........................................................................................................ (78.4) (88.1) (103.3)
Refinancing charges.........‘...| ........................................................................................................ — ¢ —— (36.3)
TNLETESE INCOIMIE ... .o b s oot s s b bt et een st nnnsans 4.8 Fo21 39
Other INCOME, NEL.....v.vevvve e e b ee e et be bt aates s bn s asteaseba s e s snanrasrans 4.5 . 9.5 0.5
Income from continuing operations before income taxes and Minority INLETESt ..........cvewrrvverenne. 475.8 '248.7 113.8
IILCOMIE AKES cuviivvevrrevrterriereebressrreaireesrrerssessaanseraeemeeamseameamneemseeaseeasesmnesreemeabedebeaebssabsshn s shs b s o b e st et (176.4) (100.7) (61.7)
Minority interest .........couwe... I. ........................................................................................................ (4.1 {19.7) (24.5)
Income from continuing operatlons ............................................................................................. 2953 111283 27.6
Income (loss) from discontinued OPETrations, Nt OF tAX .......ovvvreveireerererermsrerereerercessmrsesescmeresnins 1.2 k0.3 (17.7)
Net income.........ccerruarennns, Dttt ettt sttt R AR § 2965 § 1286 $ 9.9

Basic earnings per share: "
Income from CONtNUING OPETALIONS ....cviivivieie it enssas s 3 1.81 & 084 § 020
Income (loss) from discontinued OPErALIONS .....c.ovvicriivniereecesie e e e se e saas 0.01 S {0.13)
NEEINICOME ovvvovececvererecc ettt st §_ 18 § .08 § 007

Diluted earnings per share: ‘ 4
Income from CONtiNUING OPETAONS ..o § 171 '§ 080 §$ 020
Income (loss) from discontinued OPErations ........ov e 0.01 T {0.13)
Net income. .o OO Os sSSP OTUO OO 3 172 $ 1080 $__ 007

Shares used in per share calculatlons i
BaSIC. ettt b e 162.8 "152.5 135.8
Diluted w..orovororr oo oo 1765 11726 137.3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. l:
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Pride International, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Accumulated

Other Total
Common Stock Paid-in Treasury Stock Retained Comprehensive Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Shares Amount Earnings  Income {Loss} Equity
{In millions)
Balance, December 31, 2003................. 135.8 513 $ 12611 0.4 $ (449) $ 4309 $ (0.2) $ 1,688.7
Comprehensi\ e income
Net income . e 99 9.9
Amumzanon of SFAS No 133
transition adjustment...........occoocveeene 0.1 0.1
Foreign currency translation .. — 3.0 3.0
Total comprehensive income .. — 9.9 3.1 13.0
Exercise of stock options... 1o 0.1 10.0 ] 10.1

Tax benefit on non-qua]lt'ed stock
OPLONS ..vorvrirees 1.7 1.7
Stock based compensauon under
employee and director incentive plans,

net...eceenone 0.2 2.0 . 2.0
Amomzanon of unearned
COMPENSALioN.uvcriaranes 0.6 0.6
Armortization of uneamed stoek
compensation... 0.2 — 0.2
Balance, Det.ember?:l 2004 137.0 i.4 1,275.6 0.4 (4.4) 440.8 2.9 1,716.3
Comprehenswe income X
Net income . 128.6 128.6
Foreign currency translatlon .. _ ’ (0.6) (0.6)
Total comprehensive income . _ 128.6 (0.6) 128.0
Exercise of stock options...........c........... 6.3 9]1.2 9i.2
Tax benefit on non—qua!lﬁed slock
options ............ 21.8 2.8
Conversmn of convemble debemures 18.2 0.2 297.6 297.8
Stock based compensation under
employee and director incentive plans,
6.3 124.9 (1.1 123.8
Repurchase and re |remem ofcommon
stock..ununs (6.0} (76.7) (46.9) (123.6)
Amomzanon of uneamed slock
compensation... 4.1 _ 4.}
Balance, December 3] 20()5 16i.8 1.6 1,738.5 0.4 (5.5) 522.5 23 22594
Compn:henswe income
Net incoine . 296.5 296.5
Foreign currency Iranslatlon ................ ’ 1.5 1.5
Adjustment o initially apply
SFAS No. 158, netoftax...... . {0.5) {0.5)
Total comprehensive income .. _ 296.5 1.0 297.5
Exercise of stock options... R 30 50.3 50.3
Tax benefit on non—quahﬁed slock
options ............ 14.0 14.0
Reclasmﬁcatmn ofrcstncted stock
awards from equity to liability............ 4.0) 4.0y
Stock based compensation under
employee and director incentive plans,
net.. 0.9 0:1 1.9 0.1 2.5) 0.5)
Amomzauon of unearned stock
compensation.............. 17.2 _ 17.2
Balance, DeCLmber 31 2006 165.7 $ 1.7 $_1,8179 0.5 3 (B0 5 8190 533 52,6339

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Pride International, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows a
X Year Engg'd December 31,
i 2006 1005 2004

i {In miltions)
Cash flows from operating a-‘i:tivities: ‘

Net income........covcovevvnrannne, e e s $§ 2965 § 1286 % 9.9
Adjustments to reconcile nef income to net cash from operating activities: b
Depreciation and amomzauon ........................................................................................................ 269.9 257.2 265.3
Discount amortization on ]ong—term AEDL. .o 0.3 - 0.2 {8
Amortization and write- off‘ of deferred finANCING COSIS...ouvivirrriiireie e 4.0 - 7.2 207
Amortization of deferred contract Habilities ..........u.ve.oiviivernrerorensieninss et 12.4 0.1
Impairment charges............ Do ee e es e en e eee e 39 Y10 24.9
(ain on sale of assets......... l ............................................................................................................ (31.49) 36.1) {48.6)
Equity in earnings of affiliates ...ttt et e ettt es (3.3) (1.6) —
Deferred income taxes........ et e et e e s st et s er e e b e s sttt R st E et ane 65.4 8.3 24
Excess tax benefit from stock-based COMPENSALION «eeeriiviieririeeir e ceis st e sreesbe e s sresesre s esesn e (14.0) 2] 8 1.7
Minority interest..........oouu OO OO OO OO OO YOO OT OO 4.1 19.7 24.5
Stock-based compensatlon.l. ............................................................................................................ 17.2 4.1 0.2
Amortization of SFAS No. 133 transition adjusStment .....eeoerererrimssseenesceeereeeseessnens — — 0.2
Loss (gain) on mark- 10-MATKEL O AETIVALIVES ..o ee s eeeseeese s 1.3 (5.1) (15.7)
Other non-cash items ......... Dttt 3.0 — —
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions: !
Trade receivables ......... L cetertrmmm s st (69.5)  (106.2) 422
Parts and supplies............... l. ............................................................................................................ (8.5) ~(3.5) 5.6
Prepaid expenses and other current BSSCES..vuiuiriviciciirsii bbb st bbbt (33.7) “(1.5) 36.9
OLHET BSSEES 1.viviiiiiiieiiie et bbb bbb st b bbb s b b et e b sk e bbb s bbb 7.1 . 4.0 15.0
Accounts payable .............. Dottt e et e et e e ettt 69.6 (12.9) . L4
Accrued expenses.............. l ............................................................................................................ 231 433.1 (28.0)
Other RABIIHES ..o Lot s 1.5 15.2 1.0
Increase (decrease) in deferred TEVETILIE eeevvviereeresterssiraistesssteessessasssssssssssssreensnnessssassssssssnsnsennsessssnins (14.5) AL (34.9)
Decrease (increase) in deferl @0 BXPEIISE ...oeiiiiiitiisee e itsereete s esbeiseerssbeesssarssssbess bt eseenereessessbasaans 7.3 (18.7) 12.3
Net cash flows from operatmg_., ACHIVITIES 1.t ceceee e reeete s eee e ene st e e e man e et eneae e 611.7 3219 337.1
Cash flows from investing actwmes .
Purchases of property and equlpment .............................................................................................. (356.2) (157.2) (136.7)
Proceeds from dispositions of property and eqUIPMENT .......cccccvvvrverveerrisnse e rerssascsseseseenens 60.5 121.2 73.5
Investments in and AdVANCES 10 AFFIHATES .........o.v.eeeeeneeereeees e s eesesesseseseeseesesseresesseeeneses s seereseseoe (5.3) {19.4) (12.9)
Purchase of net assets of acq‘mred entities, including acqulsmon costs, less cash acquired ............ (212.6) _ (170.9) —
Net cash flows used in mvestmg ACHIVILIES ..o e et e e e e s e e e e s e s esseae e e s s semnes (513.6) _ (226.3) (76.1)
Cash flows from financing activities: : L
Repayments of borrowings ..' ............................................................................................................ (568.7) (886.3) (2,472.0)
Proceeds from debt borrowmgs ....................................................................................................... 4239 698.8 2,170.7
Repayment of joint venture partner AEBL. e et — §— (10.0)
Debt finance costs................ L e ettt e et e et et e et et e et et e e e eseaeean e seanetnarentennas — 1(0.7) (22.2)
Decrease in restricted cash...I ............................................................................................................ — J 81 28.9
Repurchase of common stoc:( .......................................................................................................... — (123.6) —
Proceeds from exercise of stock OPHIOIIS ... ieeetee et es ettt e s e e e sm b er e e ereenes 50.3 91.2 10.1
Excess tax benefit from stock based COMPENSALION ......cuviiiiieieeeererieeie et e se e e e ene e 14.0 po— —_
Proceeds from issuance of common BEOCK .viieieteie et e e e e 1.4 1249 1.5
Net cash flows used in fINANCING ACHVILES .........ocvcvvieseieeeireins et ece s sssssss s e ssssnssnssares (79.1) (87.6) {293.0)
Increase (decrease) in cash ar::d cash equIVALENTS. ...... ..o 19.0 - 8.0 (32.0)
Cash and cash equivalents, be gmmng OF YOAT o s 45.1 371 69.1
Cash and cash equivalents, e Of YEa..........covuveoecerecrecessssssssssssssssssssse st s sssssssssess s sssssssenreens § 641 % 451 § 37.1
The |accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. ,
|




Pride International, Irc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations
Pride International, Inc. (“Pride”, “we,” “our,” or “us”) is a leading international provider of contract drilling and related services,
operating both offshore and on land. We provide contract drilling services to oil and natural gas exploration and production companies
through the operation and management of 63 mobile offshore rigs and 214 land-based drilling and workover rigs.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Pride and all entities that we control by ownership of a majority
voting interest as well as variable interest entities for which we are the primary beneficiary. All significant intercompany transactions
and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. Investments over which we have the ability to exercise significant influence over
operating and financial policies, but do not hold a controlling interest, are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Investments in which we do not exercise significant influence are accounted for using the cost method of accounting.

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 46R, Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 51 (revised December 2003}, we are the primary beneficiary of the unaffiliated trust with which
we completed the sale and leaseback of the Pride Sourh America semisubmersible drilling rig in February 1999. Accordingly, the
assets and liabilities and revenues and expenses of the trust have been included in the accompanying consolidated financial staternents.

Muanagement Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Segment Information

In September 2006, we reorganized our operations into three principal reportable segments: Offshore, Latin America Land, and
E&P Services. The realignment of our reportable segments was attributable to recent organizational changes, including the hiring of a
Chief Operating Officer responsible for all of our offshore drilling fleet. Our Offshore segment includes all of our offshore drilling
fleet and operations. Qur Latin America Land segment includes our all of our land-based drilling and workover services in Latin
America. Qur E&P Services segment includes our exploration and production services business in Latin America. “Other” includes
revenues and cost for land-based drilling and workover operations outside of Latin America (currently Chad, Kazakhstan and
Pakistan), labor contracts and engineering and management consulting services. All prior period information has been reclassified to
conform to the current period presentation. See Note 14. :

Conditions Affecting Ongoing Operations

Qur current business and operations are substantially dependent upon conditions in the oil and natural gas industry and, specifically,
the exploration and production expenditures of il and natural gas companies. The demand for contract drilling and related services is
influenced by, among other things, oil and natural gas prices, expectations about future prices, the cost of producing and delivering oil
and natural gas, government regulations and local and international political and economic conditions. There can be no assurance that
current levels of exploration and production expenditures of oil and natural gas companies will be maintained or that demand for our
services will reflect the level of such activities. :

Dollar Amounts

All dollar amounts {(except per unit amounts) presented in the tabulations within the notes to our financial statements are stated in
million of dollars, unless otherwise indicated.
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Revenue Recognition
We recognize revenue as serv1ces are performed based upon contracted dayrates and the number of operatmg days during the
period. Revenue from turnké Cy contracts is based on percentage of completion. Mobilization fees received and costs incurred in
connection with a customer contract to mobilize a rig from one geographic area to another are deferred and recognized on a straight-
line basis over the term of >uch contract, excluding any option periods. Costs incurred to mobilize a rig without a contract are
expensed as incurred. Fees I’“CC]VCd for capital improvements to rigs are deferred and recognized on a straight-line basis over the
period of the related drilling ¢ contract. The costs of such capital improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the useful lives of
the assets. ;
|
, . |
Rig Construction Contracts

We have historically constructed drilling rigs only for our own use. However, in 2001}, at the request of some of our significant
customers, we entered into fi; ted-fee contracts to design, construct and mobilize specialized drilling rigs through our technical services
group. We also entered into(separate contracts to operate the rigs on behalf of the customers. Construction contract revenues and
related costs were recognized under the percentage-of-completion method of accounting using measurements of progress toward
completion appropriate for the work performed, such as man hours, costs incurred or physical progress. Accordingly, we reviewed
contract price and cost estirnates periodically as the work progressed and reflected adjustments in income to recognize income
proportionate to the percenta'ge of completion in the case of projects showing an estimated profit at completion and to recognize the
entire amount of the loss in the case of projects showing an estimated loss at completion. To the extent these adjustments resulted in
an increase in previously rept')rled losses or a reduction in or an elimination of previously reported profits with respect to a project, we

|
recognized a charge against current earnings. We have discontinued our fixed-fee rig construction business. See Note 12.
]

I
Cash and Cash Equwalent;r

We COIlSlder all highiy liquid debt instruments having maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase to be cash

equivalents. i : i

I

Parts and Supplies I i
Parts and supplies consist of spare rig parts and supplies held in warehouses for use in operations and are valued at weighted
average cost. .,
'y
Property and Equipment
Property and equipmentjare carried at original cost or adjusted net realizable value, as applicable. Major renewals and
improvements are capltahzed and depreciated over the respective asset’s remaining useful life. Maintenance and repair costs are
charged to expense as mcum;d When assets are sold or retired, the remaining costs and related accumulated deprecnatlon are removed

from the accounts and any re:ultmg gain or loss is included in results of operations.

For financial reporting pL{rposes, depreciation of property and equipment is provided using the straight-line method based upon
expected useful lives of each!class of assets. Expected useful lives of the assets for financial reporting purposes are as follows:

: Years
Rigs and Fig EQUIPIMENT........lueiiiiiiiee ettt e e et semea e e e eets e s ebs e ts et st s et es e st erete e sbanetes v 5-25
Transportation equipment ... . ..o " 3-7
Buildings and improvements ; _ 10-20
Furniture And FIOUres . e ettt ec et et et eaee e et eae e e e s e s s eme e e sme e s et emeesae s amsnsn e e aiee e e rnentanen 5

]
| u

Rigs and rig equipment have salvage values not exceeding 20% of the cost of the rig or rig equipment. .

Interest is capitalized on construction-in—progress at the weighted average cost of debt outstanding during the petried of construction
or at the interest rate on debt{incurred for construction.
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We assess the recoverability of the carrying amount of property and equipment if certain events or changes occur, such as
significant decrease in market value of the assets or a significant change in the business conditions in a particular market. In 2006, we
recognized an impairment charge of $3.9 million related to two platform rigs and three land workover rigs. In 2005, we recognized an
impairment charge of $1.0 million related to damage a platform rig sustained in 2004. In 2004, we recognized an impairment charge
of $24.9 million related to retiring 16 stacked land rigs and nine shallow water platform rigs and a loss on impairment of an inactive
land rig and other equipment.

Investments and Advances to Affiliates

We periodically assess the recoverability of our investments in affiliates. If an identified event or change in circumstances requires
an impairment evaluation, we assess fair value based on valuation methods as appropriate, including discounted cash flows, estimates
of sales proceeds and external appraisals, as appropriate.

Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortized. All goodwill is assigned to reporting units, which we have determined are the same as our reporting
segments. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (*SFAS™) No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,
we perform an annual impairment test of goodwill in each of our reporting units as of December 31, or more frequently if
circumstances indicate that impairment may exist. Such tests include comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying
value, including goodwill. Impairment assessments are performed using a variety of methodologies, including cash flows analysis and
estimates of market value, There were no impairments in 2006, 2005 or 2004 at our reporting units related to the annual impairment
test.

Rig Certifications

We are required to obtain certifications from various regulatory bodies in order to operate our offshore drilling rigs and must
maintain such centifications through pericdic inspections and surveys. The costs associated with obtaining and maintaining such
certifications, including inspections and surveys, and drydock costs to the rigs are deferred and amortized over the corresponding
certification periods.

We expended $22.1 million, $17.2 million and $17.4 million during 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, in obtaining and
maintaining such certifications. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the deferred and unamortized portion of such costs on our
balance sheet was $43.8 million and $40.0 million, respectively. The portion of the costs that are expected to be amortized in the
12 month periods following each balance sheet date are included in other current assets on the balance sheet and the costs expected to
be amortized after more than 12 months from each balance sheet date are included in other assets. The costs are amortized on a
straight-line basis over the period of validity of the certifications obtained. These certifications are typically for five years, but in some
cases are for shorter periods. Accordingly, the remaining usefu! lives for these deferred costs are up to five years.

Derivative Financial Instruments

We have entered into derivative financial instruments to economically limit our exposure to changes in interest rates. Qur policies
do not permit the use of derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. As of December 31, 2006, we had not designated
any of our derivative financial instruments as hedging instruments as defined by SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities (as amended). Accordingly, the changes in fair value of the derivative financial instruments are
recorded in “Other income, net” in our consolidated statement of operations.

Income Taxes

We recognize deferred tax liabilities and assets for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in the
financial statements or tax retums. Deferred tax labilities and assets are determined based on the difference between the financial
statement and the tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the asset is recovered or the
liability is settled. A valuation allowance for deferred tax assets is established when it is more likely than not that some portion or all
of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Because of tax jurisdictions in which we operate, some of which are revenue based tax regimes, changes in earnings before taxes
and minority interest do not directly correlate to changes in our provision for income tax.
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Foreign Currency Translation i

We have designated the U.S. dollar as the functional currency for most of our operations in international locations because we
contract with customers, pur('-.hase equipment and finance capital using the U.S. dollar. In those countries where we have designated
the U.S. dollar as the functional currency, certain assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at historical exchange rates,
revenues and expenses in thc se countries are translated at the average rate of exchange for the period, and all translation gains or
losses are reflected in the perlod’s results of operations. In those countries where the U.S. dollar is not de51gnated as the functional
currency, revenues and expenses are translated at the average rate of exchange for the period, assets and liabilities are translated at end
of period exchange rates and' all translation gains and losses are included in accumulated other comprehensive i mcome (loss) within
stockholders’ equity.

Concentration of Credit Risk 'll

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents and
trade receivables. We place our cash and cash equivalents in other high quality financial instruments. We limit the amount of credit
exposure to any one financial institution or issuer. Qur customer base consists primarily of major integrated and government-owned
international oil-companies, :as well as smaller independent oil and gas producers. Management believes the cr_;edit quality of our
customers is generally high. We provide allowances for potential credit losses when necessary. |

Stock-Based Compensatian H

On January 1, 2006, we .1dopted the revised SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, using the modified prospectwe method.
SFAS No. 123(R) is a revxsu:m of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and supersedes Accountmg Prmcnples
Board Opinion No. 25, Accountmg Jor Stock Issued to Employees (“APB No. 25”). SFAS No. 123(R) reqmres that companies
recognize compensation expense for awards of equity instruments to-employees based on the grant-date fair valie of those awards.
That cost is to be recognized over the period during which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award. The
fair value is to be esumated using an option pricing model. SFAS No. 123(R) also requires that companies measure the cost of
liability-classifted awards based on current fair value. The fair value of these awards will be remeasured at each reportmg date through
the settlement date. Changes]in fair vatue during the requisite service period will be recognized as compensation cost over that period.
With respect to the determmauon of the pool of windfall tax benefits, we elected to use the transition election of SFAS No. 123(R)-3
(the “‘short-cut method™) as of the adoptlon of SFAS No. 123(R). Under the “short-cut method” the windfall tax beneﬁts recognized
for fully vested awards, as def'med in SFAS No. 123(R)-3, are recognized as an addition to paid-in capital and: are required to be
reported as a financing cash ﬂow and an operating cash outflow within the statement of cash flows. Windfall tax benef ts for pamal]y
vested awards should be rec ogmzed as if we had always followed the fair-value method of recognizing compensatlon cost in our
financial statements and would be included as a financing cash flow and an operating cash outflow within the statement of cash flows.
See Note 10 for the impact of the adoptmn of SFAS No. 123(R).

it

Prior to January 1, 2006! we accounted for stock-based compensation under APB No. 25 and provided pro forma disclosure
amounts in accordance wnh SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure, as if the fair
value method defined by SFAS No. 123 had been applied to our stock-based compensation. Under APB No. 25, no compensation
expense was recognized for|stock options or for our employee stock purchase plan (“ESPP”). Compensation expense was, however,
recognized for our restncted stock awards. Under APB No. 25, we established an accounting policy to use the tax ordering rules for
the excess tax benefits of stock-based compensation and we continue to use this accounting policy under SFAS No 123(R).

In 2006, we reevaluated our assumptions used in estimating the fair value of stock options granted. As part of, thlS assessment, we
determined that implied volat:lny calculated based on actively traded options on our common stock is a better mdlcator of expected
volatility and future stock pnce trends than one year historica! volatility we used in 20035. As a result, expected volauhty for the year
ended December 31, 2006 was based on a market-based implied volatility. We used the Black-Scholes option prlcmg mode! to value
the stock options. The expe'cted life Computatlcm is based on historical exercise patterns and post-vesting termmanon behavior over
the past 12 years. The risk- free interest rate is based on the implied yield currently available on U.S. Treasury zero coupon issues with
a remaining term equal to the expected life, Expected dividend yield is based on historical dividend payments. I
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New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes — an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (FIN 48). This interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes.
FIN 48 will require companies to determine whether it is more-likely-than-not that a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax
return will be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical
merits of the position. FIN 48 also provides guidance on measurement, derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting
in interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. We adopted
FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. We are currently evaluating the potential impact, if any, to our consolidated financial statements. We
anticipate that the adoption of FIN 48 could introduce additional volatility into our effective income tax rate in future periods.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurement, which defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The standard also responds to investors” requests for more information about (1) the extent to which companies measure assets and
liabilities at fair value, (2)the information used to measure fair value, and (3)the effect that fair-value measurements have on
earnings. SFAS No. 157 will apply whenever another standard requires (or permits) assets or liabilities to be measured at fair value.
The standard does not expand the use of fair value to any new circumstances, SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. We are currently evaluating
the potential impact, if any, to our consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers* Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement
Plans. This statement requlres employers to recognize on their balance sheets the obligations associated with single-employer defined
benefit pension, retiree healthcare, and other postretirement plans. SFAS No. 158 amends SFAS No. 87, Employers " Accounting for
Pensions, SFAS No. 88, Employers’ Accounting for Sertlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for
Termination Benefits, SFAS No. 106, Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions, and SFAS No. 132R,
Employers’ Disclosures abour Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits, and will require employers to recognize on their balance
sheets the funded status of pension and postretirement benefit plans and will require fiscal year end measurements of plan assets and
benefit obligations. SFAS No. 158 will not impact most of the measurement and disclosure guidance nor will it change the amounts
recognized in the income statement as net periodic benefit cost. As of December 31, 2006, we adopted the recognition of the funded
status of plans subject to SFAS No. 158 (see Note 11). The requirement to measure plan assets and benefit as of fiscal year end is
effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008.

In June 2006, the FASB ratified the consensus reached by the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) on Issue No. 06-3, How Taxes
Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement (That is, Gross
versus Net Presentation). EITF lssue No. 06-3 addresses disclosure requirements for any tax assessed by a governmental authority that
is directly imposed on a revenue-producing transaction between a seller and a customer and may include, but is not limited 1o, sales,
use, value added and some excise taxes. EITF Issue No. 06-3 concludes that the presentation of taxes on either a gross basis (included
in revenues and costs) or a net basis (excluded from revenues) is an accounting policy decision that should be disclosed. In addition,
for any such taxes that are reported on a gross basis, a company should disclose the amounts of those taxes in interim and annual
financial statements for each perfod for which an income statement is presented if those amounts are significant. The provisions of
EITF Issue No. 06-3 should-be applied to financial reports for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2006, with earlier adoption permitted. We adopted EITF Issue No. 06-3 effective January 1, 2007. We are currently evaluating the
itnpact of adopting EITF Issue No. 06-3 but do not expect its adoption to have a significant impact on our results of operations and
financial condition.

In September 2006, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission issued .Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108,
“Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements”
(“SAB 1087). SAB 108 requires a registrant to quantify the impact of correcting all misstatements on its current year financial
statements using two approaches, the rotlover and iron curtain approaches. A registrant is required to adjust its current year financial
statements if either approach to accumulate and identify misstatements results in quantifying a misstatement that is material, after
considering all relevant quantitative and qualitative factors. SAB 108 is required to be considered for financial statements for fiscal
years ending after November 15, 2006. The adoption of SAB 108 had no impact on our consclidated results of operations, financial
position or cash flows.
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In February 2007, the FAI.SB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.
SFAS No. 159 permits companies to choose to measure, on an instrument-by-instrument basis, financial instruments and certain other
items at fair value that'are not currently required to be measured at fair value. We are currently evaluating whether to elect the option

provided for in this standard. If elected, SFAS No. 159 would be effective for us as of January 1, 2008. We are curremly evaluating
the potential impact, if any, tolour consolidated financial statements. I'

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior years’ consolidated financial statements to conform wnh the current year
presentation.

NOTE 2. ACQUISITIONS - h

In December 2005, we acquired an additional 40% interest in the joint venture companies that manage our Angolan operations from
our partner Sonangol, the national oil company of Angotla, for $170.9 million in cash, bringing our total ownership interest to 91%.
Prior to the acquisition, we owned a 51% interest in the Jomt venture companies and fully consolidated the balance sheel and results of
operations of the joint ventun" companies, with a provision for the minority interest for the 49% owned by Sonangol The principal
assets of the joint venture compames include the two uitra- deepwater drillships Pride Africa and Pride Angola, the jackup rig Pride
Cabinda and management agrfeemenls for the deepwater platform rigs Kizomba A and Kizomba B. In addition, we pald $4.5 million to
an affiliate of Sonangol for termination of certain agreements related to the operation of the joint venture. - {

. 1

The purchase price was allocated based on the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed As lhe acilulsmon cost was
less than the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, we recorded no goodwill related to the acquisition. We recorded
$3.6 million as a contract- ba‘led intangible asset related to the management agreements for the Kizomba A and Kizomba B. This
intangible asset will be amortized over the lives of the contracts. Additionaily, as the current operating contracts for the Pride Africa
and. Pride Angola were unfa\:orable compared with current market rates, we recorded a deferred contract liability of $18.7 million
which will be amortized to revenues over the remaining lives of the contracts. We increased the carrymg values of-the drillships and
the jackup ng by $77.4 million to the fair values and we decreased our minority interest in the Jomt venture companies by
$108.6 million. i

In November 2006, we acqulred from our joint venture partner its 70% interest in a joint venture company the prmcnpal assets of
which are two deepwater semi-submersible drilling rigs, the Pride Portland and the Pride Rio de Janeiro. The acqulsmon increased
our ownership interest in the _]Olnt venture entity and the rlgs from 30% to 100%. Consideration consisted of $215.0 million in cash,
plus eamn-out payments, if any, to be made during the six-year period (subject to certain extensions for non-operating periods)
following the expiration of the existing drilling contracts for the rigs. Such earn-out payments will equal 30% of the amount, if any, by
which the standard operating |dayrate, excluding bonuses, for a rig (Jess adjustments to reflect certain capital additions and certain
increases in operating costs) exceeds $294,975 (or, in the case of Petrobras, which currently contracts with a 15% bonus opportunity,
$256,500). As a result of the transaction, the joint venture company, which was accounted for as an equity mvestmerlt is consolidated
in our financial statements, l"esultmg in the addition of approximately $284 million of debt, net of the fair va]ue discount of
$3.9 million, of the joint venture company to our consolidated balance sheet. Due to the termination of lease agreemems between us
and the joint venture compan) and because the related operating contracts for the Pride Portland and the Pride Rio,de Janeiro at the
time of acquisition were unfavorable compared with current market rates, we recorded a non-cash deferred contract liability of
$191.6 million to record the difference between stated values of the non-cancelable contracts and the current fair value of contracts
with similar terms. The deférred contract liability will be amortized to revenues over the remaining lives oﬂ the contracts of
approximately four years. The|allocation to assets acquired and liabilities assumed based upon preliminary fair values is as follows:

Current assetS....ovinreerrrerrenrnas e evtteisteerraaeateeateeeaateeteseseeeeieimeesetesietetersterteeiareereeateteane s bt rneeassernssanneenes JRTVOPRRTRN e
Property and equipment .........} l :
Investments in and advances to affiliates
Total assets acquired ........2..... |,

Current liabilities ................... L et s e OO OO
Long-termdebt ... b,
Deferred contract liability '
Total Habilities ASSUME. ...l e e e eacemceseeeees b reed b bbb iR s R bbb e s b b s b en e s e R e e ae s pers s enc s
Total consideration given, net; of cash acquired of $2.4 million

GOOTWIIE oo T . g
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In a related transaction, we cancelled future obligations under certain existing agency relationships related to five offshore rigs we
operates in Brazil, including the Pride Portland and the Pride Rio de Janeiro. For this cancellation, we paid $15 million in cash,
which we expensed during the fourth quarter 2006,

NOTE 3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31:

2006 2005
RIS AN T BQUIPITIENL ..ottt s e et s et sr e et e e sa b sas st asesnanessesnenseteseebasbesanssneasens $ 55291 § 45568
TranspPOrtation QUIPIIIEIE .......cooueii it ete st e e et estete st et s teseene et seesesasnaneeseseenebeseebessesensasesaeneatsseenerrasensassassaseneasn 385 36.1
BUIIINES ...ttt s et b bbb bbbt e bbb 46.3 432
CONSITUCTION-TN-PIOBIESS. ... o veveereierereeesresee e esestereseeaesreseeaesbe st e aereee et eberEeae s b e sa b s e raeat e b £ e e abnb et e aesane et et e e e e ene e 1273 633
58 T OO OO PO OO OO OO OOV URURUSTURTSP S 8.8 8.7
OBRET <.ttt et et s b b e e et ee 22 £t b e b e et £a £ £ A e e st ke ke eant et cre s sentasenes 58.4 53.9
Total property and EQUIPINENT ........coi ittt ettt e st e eese et eb et et s e s bememtebesa et et e se e e enees 5,808.4 4,762.0
Accumulated depreciation and amortiZation...........coocivivirveeieeeeeeeieee e e (1.,808.3) ___(1,580.3)
Property and eqUIPIMENt, DOt ...ttt et e eeed e e et e e et e eaeeaesaet e e e e e e e et e aeeaaeaen $ 40001 § 3,181.7

During 2006, we sold the Pride Rotterdam for $53.2 million, resulting in a pre-tax gain on the sale of $25.3 million. The proceeds
from this sale were used to repay debt.

During 2005, one of our foreign subsidiaries sold the jackup rig Pride Ohio and received $37.9 million in net proceeds, resulting in
a pre-1ax gain on the sale of $11.2 million. We also sold two tender-assisted barge rigs, the Piranha and the ile de Sein, for total net
proceeds of $45.6 million, resulting in a net pre-tax gain of $3.8 million. In addition, we sold six land rigs for net proceeds of
$31.0 million and recognized a pre-tax gain of $18.8 million. The proceeds from these sales were used to repay debt.

During 2004, we sold a jackup rig, the Pride West Virginia, for $60.0 million. Additionally, we sold two stacked jackup rigs, the
Pride illinois and the Pride Kentucky, for $11.0 million. Proceeds from these transactions were used to repay debt.

Depreciation and amortization expense of property and equipment for 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $268.7 million, $257.1 million and
$265.2 million, respectively.

We capitalize interest applicable to the construction of significant additions to property and equipment. For 2006, 2005 and 2004,
we capitalized interest of $2.4 million, $0.5 million and $1.2 million, respectively.

During 2006, 2005 and 2004, maintenance and repair costs included in operating costs on the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations were $156.2 million, $140.8 million and $115.7 million, respectively.

NOTE 4. INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES

We have a 30% interest in United Gulf Energy Resource Co. SAOC-Sultanate of Oman (“UGER™), which owns 99.9% of National
Drilling and Services Co. LLC (“NDSC”), an Omant company. NDSC owns and operates four land drilling rigs. As of December 31,
2006, our investment in UGER was $2.4 million. In addition we had $2.4 million in receivables due from NDSC at December 31,
2006. '

In 2005, investment in affiliates included our 30% interest in a joint venture entity that owned the Pride Portland and the Pride Rio
de Janeiro. We operated the rigs under lease agreements with the joint venture companies that required all revenues from the
operations of the rigs, less operating costs and a management fee of $5,000 per day for each rig, to be paid to the joint venture
companies in the form of lease payments. The lease agreements also required the joint venture companies to provide us with working
capital necessary to operate the rigs, to fund capital improvements to the rigs and to fund any cash deficits incurred. In November
2006, we acquired our partner’s interest in the joint venture companies, increasing our ownership to 100% (see Note 2). Effective with
the acquisition, we eliminated our investment in affiliate as part our purchase accounting.
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NOTE 5. INDEBTEDNES%
Short-Term Borrowings

As of December 31, 2006, we had agreements with several banks for uncollateralized short-term lines .of credit totaling
$28.6 million (substantially ail of which are uncommitted), primarily denominated in U.S. dollars. These facilities }enew periodically
and bear interest at variable r‘ates based on LIBOR. As of December 31, 2006, no borrowings were 0ulslandmg under these facilities
and $28.6 million was available for borrowings.

i

Long-Term Debt :I‘

] - i

Long-term debt consisted of the following at December 31: 3‘

. i

2006 2008

Senior secured revolving credit FACTTIEY v ieeieceer s e ee e et cereeen bbbt $ " 500 $ 1350

7 3/8% Senior Notes due 201 4 net of unamortized d1scount of $2.2 million at December 31, 2006 and {I
$2.4 millien at Decernber 3] 2005 RSOOSR U PP ST TORpOP l 497.8 497.6
3 Y% Convertible Senior NOLes QUE 2033 ettt e ean e e et s s bR RSt i 300.0 300.0
Drillship 10an faCility dUE 2010 ...ovvcuuvreemseerrrsseecreeeeceeaeserss s ssssinsssssss ssssss s eesss b s " 190.5 239.9
Semisubmersible loan.......... e o e e b ret et e et ettt ea et e bbb bbb bbb R et e e ! 64.2 72.3
MARAD notes, net of unamortized fair value discount of $3.8 million at December 31, 2006 .......cccvvrrrrn ' 284.1 —
Total debt ..........vrveversecraneeee b e e es e s st e ARt 1,386.6  1,244.8
Less current portion of long-term debt.............. ettt eet e eeeeeeeaeessisehtetereebereen et er et on et s en et e e en bAoA beE e e AR s e s ban s 91.9 537.5
Long-term debt..................... ST OO OO OT VSO OT T T O OOPUP PR $ I.ZLZ $ 11873

Senior Secured Credit Facilities o
]

In July 2004, we entered mto senior secured credit facilities consisting of a $300.0 million term loan and a $500 O million revolving
credit facility. Proceeds from the term loan and initial borrowings of approximately $95.0 million under the revolvmg credit facility
were used to refinance amouilts outstanding under our other credit facilities. N

t
'

Amounts drawn under the{revolving credit facility bear interest at variable rates based on LIBOR plus a margin or prime rate plus a
margin. The interest rate margm varies based on our leverage ratio. The revolving credit famllty expires in July 2009.
H
The facility is secured by, first priority liens on certain of lhe existing and future rigs, accounts receivable, mventory and related
insurance of our subsidiary, |Pride Offshore, Inc. (*Pride Offshore™) (the borrower under the facility) and its subsidiaries, ali of the
equity of Pride Offshore and its domestic subsidiaries and 65% of the equity of certain of our foreign subsuhanesj We and certain of
our domestic subsidiaries have guaranteed the obllgatlons of Pride Offshore under the facility. We generally are required to repay the
revolving loans, with a pen'nanent reduction in ava1lab|llty under the revolving credit facility, with proceeds from a sale of or a
casualty event with respect to collateral. The facility contains a number of covenants restricting, among other thmgs redemption and
repurchase of our mdebtedness distributions, dividends and repurchases of capital stock and other equity mlerests acquisitions and
investments; asset sales; capnal expenditures; indebtedness; liens and affiliate transactions. The facility also contains customary events
of default, including with res‘pect toa change of control. ]

t

During 2005, we repaid the senior secured term loan in full and recognized charges of $3.6 million to write off the unamortized
portion of the deferred finance costs at the time of the ear]y repayment. 't

Borrowings under Lhe revolvmg credit facility are available for general corporate purposes. We may obtain up to $100.0 million of
letters of credit under the facnllty As of December 31, 2006, there were $50.0 million of borrowings and $19.2 million of letters of
credit outstanding under the facility. As of December 31, 2006, the interest rate on the senior secured revo]vmg credit facility was
5.9%, and availability was $430.8 million. “

7 3/8% Senior Notes due 20114 0
4
In July 2004, we completed an offering of $500.0 million principal amount of 7 3/8% Senior Notes due 2014 The notes bear

interest at 7.375% per anm:lm The notes contain provmons that limit our ability to enter into transactions wnth affiliates; pay
dividends or make other restricted payments; incur debt or 1ssue preferred stock; incur dividend or other payment restrlcuons affecting
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our subsidiaries; sell assets; engage in sale and leaseback transactions; create liens; and consolidate, merge or transfer all or
substantially all of our assets. Many of these restrictions will terminate if the notes are rated investment grade by either Standard &
Poor’s Ratings Services or Moody’s Investors Service, [ne. and, in either case, the notes have a specified minimum rating by the other
rating agency. We are required to offer to repurchase the notes in connection with specified change in control events that result in a
ratings decline, The notes are subject to redemption, in whole or in part, at our option at any time on or after July 15, 2009 at
redemption prices starting at 103.688% of the principal amount redeemed and declining to 100% by July 15, 2012, Prior to July 15,
2009, we may redeem some or all of the notes at 100% of the principal amount plus a make-whole premium. Prior to July 15, 2007,
we may also redeem up to 35% of the notes from the proceeds of certain equity offerings at a specified redemption price. We pay
interest semiannually on the notes.

We used the net proceeds from the offering of the notes of $491.1 million (after discounts but before other expenses) to retire
$175.0 million aggregate principal amount of our 9 3/8% Senior Notes due 2007 and $200.0 million aggregate principal amount of our
10% Senior Notes due 2009, together with the applicable prepayment premium and accrued and unpaid interest, and to retire other
indebtedness, including $85.9 million of our 9% Senior Convertible Notes due 2004. In connection with the retirement of the 2007
notes and the 2009 notes, we purchased a total of $110.6 million aggregate principal amount of the 2007 notes and $127.6 million
aggregate principal amount of the 2009 notes at 37.5 basis points above their respective redemptions prices. The remaining notes were
redeemed August 6, 2004 at redemption prices of 101.563% of the principal amount of the 2007 notes and 105.000% of the principal
amount of the 2009 notes, in each case plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date.

In connection with the early retirement of the 2007 notes and the 2009 notes, including the redemption of the notes outstahding
following completion of the tender offer, we recognized refinancing charges of $30.8 million in 2004, consisting of the tender offer
premiurn, prepayment premiums and the write-off of unamortized deferred financing costs related to the retired debt.

3 %% Convertible Senior Notes Due 2033

In 2003, we issued $300.0 miilion aggregate principai amount of 3 %% Convertible Senior Notes due 2033. The notes bear interest
at a rate of 3.25% per annum. We also will pay contingent interest during any six-month interest period commencing on or after
May 1, 2008 for which the trading price of the notes for each of the five trading days immediately preceding such period equals or
exceeds 12(% of the principal amount of the notes. Beginning May 5, 2008, we may redeem any of the notes at a redemption price of
100% of the principal amount redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest. In addition, noteholders may require us to repurchase the
notes on May 1 of 2008, 2010, 2013, 2018, 2023 and 2028 at a repurchase price of 100% of the principal amount redeemed plus
accrued and unpaid interest. We may elect to pay all or a portion of the repurchase price in common stock instead of cash, subject to
certain conditions. The notes are convertible under specified circumstances into shares of our common stock at a conversion rate of
38.9045 shares per $1,000 principal amount of notes (which is equal to a conversion price of $25.704), subject to adjustment. Upon
conversion, we will have the right to deliver, in lieu of shares of our common stock, cash or a combination of cash and common stock.

Drillship Loan Facility

In April 2004, we completed a refinancing of our existing drillship loan facilities through our consolidated joint venture company
that owns the Pride Africa and the Pride Angola. The new drillship loan facility is collateralized by the two drillships and the proceeds
from the related drilling contracts and.provides for a total credit commitment of $301.4 million. Funds at closing, together with
$15.4 million of previously restricted cash held by the joint venture, were used to (1) refinance the outstanding principal balance on
the prior drillship loans of $172.6 million, (2) repay $103.6 million of loans due to us from the joint venture company, (3) repay
$10.0 million of indebtedness of the joint venture company to the joint venture partner, and (4) pay loan transaction costs of
$3.1 million. We used the funds paid to us to reduce our other outstanding debt and to improve liquidity. The drillship loan facility
matures in September 2010 and amortizes quarterly. The drillship loan facility is non-recourse to us and the joint owner.

The drillship loan facility bears interest at LIBOR plus 1.50%. As a condition of the loan, we maintain interest rate swap and cap
agreements with the lenders. The effective rate at December 31, 2006 was 6.87%. In accordance with the debt agreements, certain
cash balances are held in trust to assure that timely interest and principal payments are made. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005,
$1.8 million of such cash balances, which amount is included in restricted cash, was held in trust and is not available for our use.
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Semisubmersible Loans . - ' . \

In accordance with FIN No 46R, we consolidate the debt related to the unaffiliated trust with which we completed the sale and
leaseback of the Pride South Amer:ca semisubmersible drlllmg rig. The loan is collateralized by the Pride South Amenca which has a
carrying value of $81.1 mllhon as of December 31, 2006 and.is included in property and equipment on the consolidated balance sheet.
The loan bears interest at 9. 33% and requires quarterly interest payments. In February 2007, we gave notice that we will exercise our
right to prepay the debt in Auoust 2007. '

In 2004, we repaid the outstanding aggregate principal amount of $138.5 million due under the semtsubmersnble loans that had
originally financed the construction of the Pride Carlos Walter and Pride Brazil. In connection with the iretirement of the
semisubmersible loans, we rt'cogmzed a charge of $5.5 million, including a write-off of deferred .finance costs of $1.9 million and
$3.6 million for the settlement of related interest rate swap agreements. . ‘ ‘

. | . ,
MARAD Notes ' 1

In November 2006 we cumpleted the purchase of the remammg 70% interest in the joint venture entity that owns the Pride
Portland and the Pride Rio de Janeiro. This transaction resulted in the addition of approximately $284 million of debt, net of fair
value discount, (representing|100% of the joint venture entity’s debt) to our consolidated balance sheet. The notes representing the
debt were used by the joint venture entity to finance a portion of the cost of construction of these rigs. Repayment of the notes is
guaranteed by the United States Maritime Administration (“MARAD"). The notes bear interest at a weighted average fixed rate of
4.33%, mature in 2016 -and fare prepayable, in whole or in part, at any time, subject to a make-whole premlum The notes are
collateralized by the two rigs and the net proceeds received by subsidiary project companies chartering the rigs.

" Future Maturities

Future maturities of long-term debt were as follows at December 31: "

NOTE 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair Value of Financial Instruments |]
i
Our financial instruments mclude cash, receivables, payables and debt. Except as described below, the estimated fair value ‘of such
financial instruments at December 31, 2006 and 2005 approximate their carrying value as reflected in our consol:daled balance sheets.
The fair value of our debt has|been estimated based on year-end quoted market prices. i

i

The estimated fair value (I)f our debt at December3l, 2006 and 2005 was $1.486.8 million and $1,397.1 mi!llion, respectively,
which differs from the carrying amounts of $1,386.6 million and $1,244.8 million, respeéctively, included in our consolidated balance
sheets. : . ‘ g

4

We are subject to the risk 1I)f variability in interest payments on our ﬂoatmg rate debt, which includes the semor'secured revolving
credit facility and the drillship loan facility at December 31, 2006. The drillship loan facility requires us to maintain interest rate swap
and cap agreements. The drillship loan facility generally restricts our ability to transfer, settle, sell, offset or amend the interest rate

A
swap and cap agreements without the consent of the lenders. I

Interest Rate Swap and Cap Agreements
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As of December 31, 2006, we had not designated any of the interest rate swap and cap agreements as hedging instruments as
defined by SFAS No. 133. Accordingly, the changes in fair value of the interest rate swap and cap agreements are recorded currently
in earnings. We included the changes in the fair value on our interest rate swap and cap agreements of $(1.3) million, $4.0 million and
$(0.3) million in our consolidated statements of operations for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Also included in our consolidated
statements of operations is $(0.2) million for 2004 related to the amortization of the SFAS No. 133 transition adjustment. The total
aggregate fair vaiue of the interest rate swap and cap agreements at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was an asset of $4.0 million and
$5.3 million, respectively.

Foreign Exchange Risks

Our operations are subject to foreign exchange risks, including the risks of adverse foreign currency fluctuations and devaluations
and of restrictions on currency repatriation. We attempt to limit the risks of adverse currency fluctuations and restrictions on currency
repatriation by obtaining contracts providing for payment in U.S. dollars or freely convertible foreign currency. To the extent possible,
we seek to limit our exposure to local currencies by matching its acceptance thereof to its expense requirements in such currencies.
Prier to 2004, we entered into forward exchange contracts and option contracts to manage foreign currency exchange risk principally
associated with our Euro denominated expenses. We did not enter into any forward exchange or option contracts in 2006 or 2005, but
continue to monitor our foreign exchange risk.

NOTE 7. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes on income from continuing operations is comprised of the following for the years ended
December 31:

2006 2005 2004

U.S.:

CUITEIIE 1ottt ettt e et e e e e e seeb b se st s et etb et e bt e b e e e s e s e et e e ee et aene et a2eeRse 14 st emaee et ene et et et neesneeeatenrenaes $ 35 % — % -
DIETRITEA oottt bttt e et e e ee e et e e e e eeeeeeeeeeeeeaat e et e s e e nreeemtemeee e e en e e e eaeeeate s e rreneereeaseenseranes 74.5 293 _ (19.7)
TORAL UL S oottt et e e et et e et e s e e eeeatatesaansasasenreas s s eeases s eenaeeestersresaessneaeaaareeneaaanss 78.0 293 (19.7)
Foreign: _

CCUITEIE ..ottt es e te e e bt et e e b e e b e re b onseanseaneshn e be et e eabasasa s sonsen s ernsebs s ssersssstoassnanssasaasesanesbeenbenan 108.4 71.0 47.0
Deferred...... et reeeheieeeeebeeeiateaaseeeinteebeenhrtehteatteaeseeee e AL e hYesebesenee e eeennt e e AL aRES e nhSe b s e eOn e e sarteeeeeerneeeeneenneen (10.0) 0.4 34.4
Total fOreign ..o e b ee eSS bt nnsereees 98.4 714 _ B8l4
INICOIMIE BAXES 1.vvivieviiisiiietest e e essssessesrssssts s esssestsb et e ese b ebe s s e sem e mees et et e e et aA e b e R eube et eat et e e et eenamneeeneatesereansane $ 1764 § 1007 § 617

A reconciliation of the differences between our income taxes computed at the U.S. statutory rate and our income taxes from
continuing operations before income taxes and minority interest as reported is summarized as follows for the years ended
December 31;

2006 2005 2004
Amount Rate Amount Rate  Amount _ Rate
ULS. STAIULOTY TALE .c.eonireirieretiesesirte e eesie e e re e e s s s s snsas e et ee e anesnenes $ 1665 350% § 87.0 350% $ 39.8 35.0%
Taxes on foreign earmings. ... vveereicereoeiinnieres e iare e seseeens e eerrenes 120 25 170 6.8 21.8 19.2
Change iN ESHIMALE ..........viiversceere ettt esen e b e sse bbb bs s st e s enes s saeans (2.1) (0.4) 3.1y (1.3) . — —
L0 (T SO OO U OUSUUUUUUPTTSUTOVRRT —— 02) _— 0.1 0.1
TNCOIMIE LAKES co.ovoeiiceerete it eeeeeee e e e e secsessase et sttt seeenet et et anasnessnsnsersromseos § 1764 37.1% § 1007 40.5% § 61.7 54.3%

The 2006 and 2005 effective tax rates are above the U.S. statutory rate due to non deductible expenses and U.S. tax on certain
foreign earnings offset by the impact of taxable income in low tax jurisdictions. In 2004, we had an effective tax rate above the
U.S. statutory rate for taxes on foreign earnings due to the following: debt refinancing charges reducing income without a proportional
reduction to income taxes; an increase in taxable income in high effective tax rate countries; lower taxable income in foreign
jurisdictions with low or zero effective tax rates; and U.S. tax on certain foreign eamings.

¥
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The domestic and foreign! components of income from continuing operations before income taxes and minori'ty interest were as

fotlows for the years ended December 31: ] - b
, . 0 . _
_ oL 2006 1t 2005 2004
| 5SSO OO, OO OO OO PO YOT TP TORPPY $ 22273 603 $ (166.6)
ST PO l ............ 253.1 4 1884 _ 2804
Income from continuing operatlons before income taxes and Minority iNErest .......ooveieieiennnieeeccininn § 4758 § 2487 §_ 1138
Il
_The tax effects of temporary dlfferences that give rise to significant pomons of the deferred tax liabilities and. deferred tax assels
were as follows at December|31 |
r 2006 2005
Deferred tax assets: : i
Operating loss carryforwards ........cooevinnins ettt ereoreri et eteaensieeaeeteketsaisehra bR e e E R e R eR iR e bbb bR e s s eran $ 2274 $ 3143
Tax credit carryforwards.....L..coooooomeeene., e ettt na sttt bbb s taes etereer sttt eren e rananes f 315 28.0
O SR SR 1 272 _ 113
RTINS ) ORI N SOOI SO OO O I 2861 3536
Valuation allowance............ b e et et st ee s e b ed e AR RS EeE A aE R b R w (68.1) _ (66.3)
TO]..ernrerniene e oo oo e e s s asas e oA R AR 1 2180  287.]
Deferred tax liabilities: i : i
Depreciation................... et ettt et s e e 3332 3342
L0731 S SO0 OO0 OO OO OT O R O {07 17.4
TOtal.c...ecveveeermsererererererns t .................................................................................................................................... i 3339 _ 3516
Net deferred tax BABTIEYCTY Dottt R $ 1159 § 645

(1) The change in net deferred tax liability of $51.4 million between December 31, 2006 and 2005 differs by $13.1 million from
the deferred tax expense of $64.5 million reported for 2006. This difference is caused primarily by net tax retum benefits from
the exercise of non- q'uahf ed stock options and the tax impact of defined benefit pension plans that were charged 10 equity
accounts. | ) -~

Applicable U.S. deferred mcome taxes and related foreign dividend withholding taxes have not been prov1ded on approximately
$804.8 million of undlsmbuted earnings and profits of our foreign subsidiaries. We consider such earnings 'to be permanently
reinvested outside the Unitéd States. It is not practicable to estimate the amount of deferred income taxes assocnated with these
unremitted earnings. ‘ '

il

In December 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 109-2 (“FSP 109-2"), Accounting and Disclosuie Guidance for the
Foreign Earnings Repamanon Provision within the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004, which prowdes guidance under
SFAS No. 109, Accounting f‘or Income Taxes, with respect to recording the potential impact of the repatnauo'r'u provisions of the
American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the *Jobs Act™) on enterprises’ income tax expense and deferred tax |lablllly The Jobs Act was
enacted on QOctober 22, 2004. FSP 109-2 states that an enterprise is allowed time beyond the financial reporting penod of enactment 1o
evaluate the effect of the iJobs Act on its plan for reinvestment or repatriation of foreign earnings for purposes of applying
SFAS No. 109. We have eleted not to repatriate capital in this manner. i

i

As of December 31, 2006, we had deferred tax assets of $227.4 million relating to $684.6 million of net operatmg loss (“NOL™)
carryforwards and had $31. ‘7 million of non-expiring Alternative Minimum Tax (“AMT") credits. The NOL carryforwards and AMT
credits can be used to reduce our federal and foreign income taxes payable in future years. Qur ability to realize ‘the entire benefit of
our deferred tax assets requ'lre that we achieve certain future earnings levels prior to the expiration of its NOL('carryforwards Our
NOL carryforwards in thel United States total $447.8 million and could expire starting in 2020 through 2024. Foreign NOL
carryforwards include $89.7 million that do not expire and $147.1 million that could expire starting in 2007 throlugh 2016. We have
recognized a $68.1 million valuation allowance on substantially all of these foreign NOL carryforwards due to the uncertainty of
realizing certain foreign NOL carryforwards. We could be required to record an additional valuation allowance agamst certain or all of
our remaining deferred tax assets if market conditions deteriorate or future earnings are below current estimates.
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In connection with the acquisition of Marine Drilling Companies, Inc. in September 2001, we determined that certain NOL
carryforwards and AMT credits are subject to limitation under Sections 382 and 383 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code as a result of
the greater than 50% cumulative change in our ownership. Although the timing of when we can utilize NOL carryforwards may be
limited, we have determined that such limitations should not affect our ability to realize the benefits of the deferred tax assets
associated with such NOL carryforwards and AMT credits.

From time to time, our periodic tax returns are subject to review and examination by various tax authorities within the jurisdictions
in which we operate. We are currently contesting several tax assessments and may contest future assessments where we believe the
assessments are in error. We cannot predict or provide assurance as to the ultimate outcome of existing or future tax assessments;
however, we believe the ultimate resolution of outstanding tax assessments will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated
financial statements.

In July 2006, we received tax assessments from the Mexican government related to our operations for the tax years 2002 and 2003.
These assessments contest our right to claim certain deductions in our tax returns for those years. We anticipate that the Mexican
government will make additional assessments contesting similar deductions for other tax years. While we intend to contest these
assessments vigorously, we cannot predict or provide assurance as to the ultimate outcome, which may take several years. However,
we do not believe that the ultimate outcome of these assessments will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
As required by local statutory requirements, in September 2006, we provided standby letters of credit valued at $41.3 million as of
December 31, 2006, to contest these assessments.

NOTE 8. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferred Stock

We are authorized to issue 50.0 million shares of preferred stock with a par value $0.01 per share. Our Board of Directors has the
authority to issue shares of preferred stock in one or more series and to fix the number of shares, designations and other terms of each
series. The Board of Directors has designated 4.0 million shares of preferred stock to constitute the Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock in connection with our stockholders® rights plan. As of December 31, 2006, ne shares of preferred stock were
outstanding.

Common Stock

In May 2005, we completed a public offering of approximately 6.0 million shares of our commaon stock. We used the net proceeds
of approximately $123.6 million (before offering expenses) to purchase an equal number of shares of our common stock from three
affiliated investment funds at a price per share equal to the proceeds per share that we received from the offering. The shares
repurchased from the funds were subsequently retired. There was no increase in the total number of shares outstanding of our common
stock resulting from the transactions. :

In March and April 2005, the noteholders converted substantially all of the $300.0 million principal amount of our 2
%% Convertible Senior Notes due 2007 into approximately 18.2 million shares of our common stock, with the remaining principal
amount redeemed for cash.

Stockholders’ Rights Plan

We have a preferred share purchase rights plan. Under the plan, each share of common stock includes one right to purchase
preferred stock. The rights will separate from the common stock and become exercisable (1) ten days after public announcement that a
person or group of affiliated or associated persons has acquired, or obtained the right to acquire, beneficial ownership of 15% of our
outstanding common stock or (2) ten business days following the start of a tender offer or exchange offer that would result in a
person 5 acqumng beneficial ownership of 15% of our outstanding ‘common stock. A 15% beneficial owner is referred to as an

“acquiring person” under the plan.

Our Board of Directors can elect to delay the separation of the rights from the common stock beyond the ten-day periods referred to
above. The plan also confers on the board the discretion to increase or decrease the level of ownership that causes a person to become
an acquiring person. Until the rights are separately distributed, the rights will be evidenced by the common stock certificates and will
be transferred with and only with the common stock certificates.
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After the rights-are sepamtely distributed, each right will entitle the holder to purchase from us one one- hundredth of a share of
Series A Junior PartICIpatmcr Preferred Stock for a purchase price of $50. The rights will exprre at the close of business on
September 30, 2011, unless we redeem or exchange them earlier as described below. l; '

if a person becomes an aequmng person, the rights will become rights to purchase shares of our common stock for one-half the
current market price, as deﬁned in the rights agreement, of the common stock. This occurrence is referred to as a “flip-in event” under
the plan. After any flip-in event, all rights that are beneficially owned by an acquiring person, or by certain related parties, will be null
and void. Our Board of Dlre'ctors has the power to decide that a particular tender or exchange offer for all outstanding shares of our
common stock is fair to and otherwise in the best interests of our stockholders. If the board makes this determination, the purchase of
shares under the offer wrll notbe a flip-in event l
_ .. A . , :

If, after there is an acquiring person, we are acquired in a merger or other business combination transaction or 510% or more of our
assets, earning power or cash flow are sold or transferred, each holder of a right will have the right to purchase shares of the common
stock of the acquiring comp: I1ny ata prlce of one-half the current market pnce of that stock. This occurrence is referred to as a “flip-

over event” under the plan, An acquiring person will not be entitled to exercise its rights, which will have become vlmd

Until ten days after the announcement that a person has become an acquiring person, our Board of Directors may decide to redeem
the rights at a price of $0.01 per right, payable in cash, shares of common stock or other consideration. The] rights will not be
exercrsable after a flip-in event until the rights are no longer redeemable. '

At any time after a flip-i in event and prior to either a person’s becoming the beneficial owner of 50% or more of the shares of
common stock or a fllp-ovel event, our Board of Directors may decide to exchange the rights for shares of common stock on a one-
for-one basis. Rights owned by an acquiring person, which will have become void, will not be exchanged.

NOTE 9. EARNINGS PER SHARE .' o o : =

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations has been computed based on the weighted average nfumber of shares of
common stock outstanding during the applicable period. Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations has been computed
based on the weighted averz'uge number of shares of common stock and common stock equivalents outstanding during the applicable
period, as if stock options,l convertible debentures and other convertible debt were -converted into commonistock, after giving
retroactive effect to the elimination of interest expense, net of income taxes. |1

The following tab]e presents information necessary to Calculate basic and diluted earnings per share from contmumg operations for
the years ended December 31: ‘ i

i

_ 2006 |_ 2005+ _ 2004

Income from continUINg OPETALIONS .....c.c.cciiiiiiiimiii s AT S § 29535 1283 § 276
Interest expense on CONVETTIBIE MOES .......cooiiiiiiiie it et enes 10. 7 13.4 _
Income taxes ......covvvrrernrnins Dottt eb Sttt et 3.7, (4.7 —
Income from continuing operatlons as adjusted.......oivinii U $ 3023 ;' $ 1370 &8 276
Weighted average shares of common stock OULSLANAINE ..ot 162.8 152.5 135.8
Convertible notes................. OOV 1.7, 172 —
Stock oplions.......cceevneiene, et este st e RSt sttt 10 2.0 i 29 1.5
Weighted average shares of common stock outstandmg, as adjusted............... et e C 1765y 1726 137.3
Eamings from continuing operatlons per share _ ‘ o

BASIC......eerrrerressssseer s srereee e bttt ARt $ 181'S 084 $ 020
Diluted «ooovvvevrierrirrirereen ' ....................................................................................................................... $ L71S 080 $ 020

The calculation of weighted average shares of common stock outstanding, as adjusted, excludes 0.6 million, 0.2 million and
4.2 million of commeon stock issuable pursuant to outstanding stock options for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The calculatlon of weighted average shares of common stock outstanding, as adjusted, also excludes 32.1 million shares
of common stock issuable pursuant to convertible debt for the year ending December 31, 2004. These shares were excluded from the
calculation because their effect was antidilutive or the exercise price of stock options exceeded the average price of our commen stock
for the applicable period. N

I
|
il
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NOTE 10. EMPLOYEE STOCK PLANS

Our employee stock-based compensation plans provide for the granting or awarding of stock options, restricted stock, restricted
stock units, stock appreciation rights, other stock-based awards and cash awards to directors, officers and other key employees. As of
December 31, 2006, only two of our plans had shares available for future option grants or other awards. The number of shares
authorized and reserved for future issuance under the 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan is limited to 10% of total issued and outstanding
shares, subject to adjustment in the event of certain changes in our corporate structure or capital stock. No new awards may be made
under the plan after May 12, 2008. As of December 31, 2006, a total of approximately 0.2 million shares had been reserved for
issuance pursuant to awards granted under the 2004 Directors’ Stock Incentive Plan.

Stock-based compensation expense related to stock options, restricted stock and the ESPP was allocated as follows:

2006
Operating costs, excluding depreciation and aMOITIZALION ........c.ociiiiiririiie et ee s see e ese e e eeaen $ 82
General and administrative, excluding depreciation and amOrtiZation ..........cocccovcivvireeriiresvesesnin oo sns e e rens 9.0
Stock-based compensation expense before IMCOME TAXES .....v.vviiiririrr e e nn s ae s nns srsnares 17.2
INCOME TAX BENETIL ...ttt ettt et e bt e e s e st £ se e e eE e saeae e r et et eh £ 1R et e R e sa e e et ket ebeeE et nEereere e enerere s (5.4)
Total stock-based compensation expense after INCOME TAXES ......o..oocreiiree e e e $ 118

The adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) resulted in a change in our method of recognizing the fair value of stock-based compensation
and estimating forfeitures for all unvested awards, Specifically, the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) resulted in our recording
compensation expense for employee stock options and our ESPP. The following table shows the effect of adopting SFAS No. 123(R)
as of January 1, 2006 on selected financial information for the year ended December 31, 2006:

2006
Decrease in income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interest.............coooiiciiiiinrccciicnenn $ 82
DIECTEASE 1N TEL ITICOMIE .....oiteeeiit ettt ettt b oot b sttt e s b s£ et e b e et e st et e b e rE et nb e e em et em e me e st e st et nbereenenrone eeeceerenees 54
Decrease in Basic €arnings PeT SHarS ...t et e e e s e e e e e s et b e 0.03
Decrease in Diluted eamings per Share ..o e e e 0.03
Decrease in cash flows from OPErating ACHVILIES ......ciiiiiriiiriieeis et eie e seee e b b s se et s ke e e st ese b e st e bnsaas et areeneebeseans 58
Increase in cash flows from fIBANCING ACTIVILIES ... ii ittt e ese e em et e e e e e emeeeesaes e e eme e e e e eneeans 14.0

Under the modified prospective method, stock-based compensation expense for 2006 includes compensation expense for all stock-
based compensation awards granted prior to, but not yet vested as of, January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in
accordance with the original provision of SFAS No. 123. Stock-based compensation expense for all stock-based compensation awards
granted after January 1, 2006 is based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R). We recognize these
compensation costs net of a forfeiture rate and recognize the compensation costs for only those shares expected to vest on a straight-
line basis over the requisite service period of the award, which is generally the option vesting term.

Had compensation expense for stock options been determined based on fair value at the grant date consistent with SFAS No. 123,
our net income and earnings per share for 2005 and 2004 would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

2005 2004
INEt INCOME, A8 TEPOTLEL ... e.ceer ittt et e b bbb bR e se A s st b ek se s b b st sn e s $ 1286 § 99
Add: Stock-based compensation included in reported net income, net 0f taX .....ocoovvveviiiincrrre e 27 0.1
Deduct: Stock-based employee compensation expense determined under the fair value method, net of tax ........... (12.5) _ (12.6)
Pro forma Net iNCOME (JOSS) ..o ittt e ne st s sn e s e ebe s a e tesseesseesneasneerneeaesennenneensenesens 3 J188 § (2.6)
Basic earnings per share:
AS TEPOTTEA. ....eeeiitiie ettt re et ns e s e s s a e A e A e R e e A £ RE R RR SRR Ra AR £ R e b e R s n et e e eren s $ 084 § 0.07
PO FOTITIA .ottt ettt et ettt et st et et e ebebe e ta e a4 s2embeds et eb e b ea bt o444 am b ek s o4 ab e b ea a4 440404 s s e Rt bbb et s e ea b en b anntnbn $ 078 % (0.02)
Diluted earnings per share:
A TEPOTIEW ..ottt et e et e et eb e s e s esn s ee s e aese s es e ses s e se e en s e ettt s e s srn s et ete e e $ 08 $ 007

PO FOTTIIA oottt ettt et e et es et eseese s ese s saseseemameseassnsesessessesmasessneansnsensanensessassasnsans sensnreantnsesen $ 074 % (0.02)
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The fair valiue of stock- blised awards is estimated ‘on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the
following weighted average assumptions: : !

Stock . I
Options | ESPP
2006 2005 , 2004 | 2006
Dividend yield..........ccocoonnkovcs rereeerensssse s rrerererene 0% 0% : 0%" 0%
Expected volatility ................ s, S _ 326% - 30.7% ©56.4%) 32.1%
Risk-free interest rate............] e 4.6% - 3.7% 33%,. . 45%
Expected life .......cccooovee D e 6.3 years 5.0 years 5.0 years ﬂ 1.0 year
Weighted average grant-date fair value of stock ) ' [ ‘
options granted”................ S A 1379 §% 699 % 9.28 | 10.08
The following table summarizes activity in our stock options:
I
' Welghted
Weighted Average
' Average Remammg Aggregate
Number of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price per Share ITerm _ Value
' : - (In thousands) (In years) -
Qutstanding as of December 31, 2005..... oo sressece e ST S - 6,953 - $ 17.78-
Granted ......ooovcoorrrerrree SS— R s 623 32.38 ‘
Exercised.... ...rmmenrvennens L e e (2,955) . 17.05 ]
FOrfetted..oovvvrrreeerierere e ee ettt ettt (162) 22.92
Cancellations............ccoveevene, e S SR P : (8) - 18.43
Outstanding as of December 31 2006 4,451 $ 2020 . J 6.1 $ 45
Exercisable as of December 31,2006 ......coooveeeeeeeeere. e et et e e e et eentens 3,523 $ 18.12 li 5.4 $ 41.

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pretax intrinsic value (the dlfference between our closmg stock
price on the last trading day 'of the year and the exercise price, multiplied by the number of in-the-money stock optlons) that would
have been received by the stock option holders had all the holders exercised their stock options on the last day of the year. This
amount changes based on the fair market value of our stock. - . . ']

The exercise price of stock .options is equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the option grant date. The stock
options generally vest over p-’rlOdS ranging from two years to four years and have a contractual term_of 10 years. Vested options may
be exercised in whole or in p'art at any time prior to the expiration date of the grant. Awards of restricted stock and‘of restricted stock
units consist of. awards of |our common stock, or awards denominated in common stock, that are subject ito restrictions -on
transferability. Such awards are subject to forfeiture if employment terminates in certain circumstances prior tolthe release of the
restrictions and vest two to four years from the date of grant. . . -

Other information pertaining to option activity was as follows: : ' i}

)

' - ‘ . _2006_ _2005  _2004
Total fair value of stock optlc:ns vested .o bt e et et bttt h e Ae bbb et bes e ra b e ae e $ 77 7*7 $ 1748 142

Total intrinsic value of stock Dptions eXercised... ... .....oc.cooervermsrrrrinenes e ursresssssiasenisimissessan s sesiass $ 46 78 75 6 $ 10.1

During 2006, 2005 and 2004 we received cash from the exercise of stock options of $50.3 mlllmn $91.2 mllllonl 'and $10.1 million,
respectively. Income tax benc fits of $14.1 million, $21.2 million, and $1.7 million were realized from the exercise of stock options for
2006, 2005 and 2004, respeetlvely As of December 31,,2006, there was $8.1 million of total stock option compensatron expense
related to nonvested stock opflons not yet recognized, whrch is expected to be recognized over a weighted average perlod of 1.9 years.

I
We have awarded restncted stock and restricted stock units (collectively, “restricted stock awards™) to certain key employees and
directors. We record unearned compensation as a reduction of stockholders’ equity based on the closing price of our common stock on
the date of grant. The unearned compensation is being recognized ratably over the applicable vesting period. The following table

summarizes the restricted stot k awarded during the years ended December 31 - ) “

: 2006 2005 _2004
Number of restricted stock awards (I thOUSANAS) ..o et se e bt tsens 839 345 149
Fair value of restricted stock awards at date of grant (i MIlLONS) ............covvveeerevverorersssssesssseeinesssssneesssssessssssanns $ 2698 7.1 $ 238
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The following table summarizes activity in our nonvested restricted stock awards:

Weighted
Average
- . Grant Date
Number of Fair Value
Shares per Share
(In thousands) .

Nonvested at December 31, 2003 ... icoviirerieieiiaesiairrireererreesraesrremresssssasameeeseaseesasesasesasemmeeseeseasseemsessessnesmness 331 $ 20.24

GEANEEA ...ttt sttt cbe s s b e s e re e e se e eb e e b e b e es b bt em e e RS aat SR e e s e b e me e Rt eh e et e RS Re R e b e b s R e e em s 839 32.01
Vested ................ e eeeeeneteeedeiesieEtessitieieesstesisssisssesteseissesstsiessesinteraresesnerinrisieeeanteisteesinteiareeseasineeiateeaaetiasaesaaencn (111 -~ 2030
FOPTRIEEM. ..ot et ee et e e v e e s seets e e ete s et e et ae s bt es s e s s s es s e b e entaareeaseasseaneensennrear e e ssasnsaanearnerneensessrnennenn (62) 29.78

Nonvested at DECemMBET 31, 2000 .......oooooiie ittt ittt ces s ts st e st sbe st et s s e e seesaessae s rssesasaessasnsasnsernserrnsraes 997 $ 29.36

As of December 31, 2006, there was $26.8 million of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to nonvested
restricted stock awards. That cost is expected to be recognized over.a weighted average period of 3.0 years. Prior to the January 1,
2006 adoption of SFAS 123(R), we accounted for restricted stock awards under APB No. 25. APB No. 25 required the full value of
restricted stock awards to be recorded in stockholders’ equity with a deferred compensation balance recorded within equity for the
unrecognized compensation cost. SFAS 123(R) does not consider the equity to be issued until the stock award vests. Accordingly, the
deferred compensation balance of $5.1 million at December 31, 2005 was reclassified to additional paid in capital on January 1, 2006.

In December 2006, we changed the procedures regarding personal income tax withholding with respect to outstanding restricted
stock awards held by our officers, including all of our executive officers. The changes permitted such officers to request that, for
purposes of satisfying the federal income tax withholding obligations with respect to certain taxes required to be withheld with respect
to the vesting of the awards, the amount withheld be greater than the statutory minimum with respect to federal income tax
withholding but no more than the highest federal marginal income tax rate applicable to ordinary income at the time of vesting. For
restricted stock awards that vested through February 14, 2007, the withholding of the statutory minimum and the increased amount
was net settled by the plan administrator’s delivery of share of common stock to us with a fair market value equal to the amount of the
withholding, with the remaining shares delivered to the officer. As a result of the change in procedures and the net settlement feature,
these awards were reclassified from equity to liability awards under SFAS No. 123(R) in the fourth quarter of 2006. We reclassified
$4.0 mitlion from stockholders’ equity and accrued a total of $5.2 million in accrued expenses and other long-term liabilities for the
fair value of the share-based payment liabilities at December 31, 2006, Expense of $1.2 million was recognized in 2006 in connection
with the modification of these awards. As of February 15, 2007, we further amended our procedures for additional withholding and
settlement of vested awards which resulted in the reclassification of the affected restricted stock awards back to’equity classified
awards. The February 15, 2007, modification did not result in any material incremental compensation cost and will result in the
reclassification of the full amount of the recorded liability to équity in the first quarter of 2007.

During 2006, 2005 and 2004, we recognized $0.4 million, $0.6 million and $0:2 million, resﬁectively, of stock-based compensation
in connection with the modification of the terms of certain key employees’ stock options and restricted stock.

Our ESPP permits eligible employees to purchase shares of our common stock at a price equal to 85% of the lower of the closing
price of our common stock on the first or last trading day of the calendar year. A total of 0.5 million shares remained available for
issuance under the plan as of December 31, 2006. Employees purchased approximately 83,000, 82,000 and 83,000 shares in the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

NOTE 11. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Defined Benefit Pension Plans.

We have a non-qualified Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (the “SERP”) that provides for benefits, to the extent vested, to
be paid to participating executive officers upon the officer’s termination or retirement. No assets are held with respect to the SERP;
therefore, benefits will be funded when paid to the participants. We account for the SERP in accordance with SFAS No. 87,
Emplovers Accounting for Pensions. We recorded expenses of $4.3 million, $3.9 miltion and $0.4 million related to the SERP in 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the unfunded accrued pension liability was $10.5 million and
$4.3 million, respectively.
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We adopted the recogmuon provisions of SFAS No. 158 as of December 31, 2006, which requires that the funded status of defined
benefit pension plan and olher postretirement plans be fully recognized in the balance sheet. Based on the funded status of our plans as
of December 31, 2006, the adopuon of SFAS 158 increased total assets by approximately $1.1 million, mcreased the unfunded
accrued liability by approxlmately $1.9 million and reduced tota shareholders’ equity by approximately $0.5 million, net of taxes. The
adoption of SFAS 158 did not affect our results of operations. . :

. I
Defined Contribution Plan :*

We have a 401 (k) defined contributiod plan for generally all of our U.S. employees that allows eligible emp]o%/ees to defer up to
50% of their eligible annual Icompensatlon with certain limitations. At our discretion, we may match up to 100% of the first 6% of
compensation deferred by participants. Our contributions to the plan amounted to $5.8 million, $4.3 million and $3 4 million in 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively. ;" 'i

In addition, we have a dleferred compensation plan that provides our senior officers with the opportunity 1o participate in an
unfunded, non-qualified plan. Eligible employees may defer up t6 100% of compensation, including bonuses and:net proceeds from
the exercise of stock options. ‘ '

: )

Other e - : . :i

In 2004, we applied to the French Labor Ministry for a Progresswe Retirement Plan (the “PRP”). The PRP was approved by the
French Labor Ministry in 2005. Pursuant to thie PRP, 56 employees of our subsidiary in France have electedqto accelerate their
retirement with us funding :'n portion of the benefits. The cost of the PRP will be recognized over the estimated' remaining service
penod of the employees. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, we have accrued balances of $4.5 million and $4.7 m:l]:on respectively.

I

NOTE 12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS : ' ' "

In 2001 and 2002, our Techmcal Services group entered into fixed-fee contracts to design, engineer, manage construcuon of and
commission four deepwater platform drilling rigs for installation on spars and tension leg platforms. The first rig was completed and
delivered in 2003, and the re'mammg three rigs were completed and delivered in 2004. In 2004, we discontinued this business and do
not currently intend to enter into additional business of this nature. Accordingly, we have reported our fixed-fee rig construction
business as discontmued operatlons on our consolldated statements of operauons i

We recorded loss provisions of $27.3 million in 2004 relating to_the construction of the rigs. The loss prov1510n principally
consisted of additional prowsmns for higher commissioning costs for the rigs, the costs of settling certain commercial disputes and
renegotiations of commercmf terms with shipyards, equipment vendors and other subcontractors, completion 1ssues at the shipyard
constructing the final two nos and revised estimates for other cost items. In 2006 and 2005, we reduced our estimates for other cost
items and recognized a gain of $1.9 million and $0.5 million, respectively. :

The operating results of the discontinued fixed-fee construction business were as follows for the years ended December 31;

i
1
. - 2006 * _ 2005 2004
REVEIIUES .....eitetetctctitites it ettt e et bbb b bbbt e et et eeesesssesessasasaeaeenasesseessssasababeb bbbt sn s enm e esaresennann 3 —'% 13 % 678

Income (loss) before income taxes................ et — e et nes s esend TR $ 1948 05 % (27.3)
INCOME FAXES ....vevoevereeeeeseesbesescreres i eraeseesesessessessssese s ssesesssemeeeseseesaeee s ees e s et 0N _(02) 9.6

NOTE 13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leases
. F

At December 3i, 2006, we had entered into long-term non- ~cancelable operating leases covering certain facnlmes and equipment.

The minimum annual rental commitments are as follows for the years ending December 31;

Amount
00T ettt et eaer et r e ar—eaaar et aa———teiabeeeaaateeesaratea it eeaeabetesatns e raneaeaaR et e aaRnee e e heeeeantteaantettaarntanrenehbaarnesraeaeans $ 3.2
2008 oo Dttt s s et e e et et a e e e e e s ee s s e s ee st ee s et b ee et en e eeaesaeeran e e s s b aneen 2.4
P11 L JOS D et e et e et et s e e At e At et e s s et na et e et an s termereren e e ee e 2.3
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2010 2.1
2011 2.1
Thereafter 34

3 205

FCPA Investigation

During the course of an internal audit and investigation relating to certain of our Latin American operations, our management and
internal audit department received allegations of improper payments to foreign government officials. In February 2006, shertly after
and as a result of certain statements that were made by an employee during the investigation, the Audit Committee of our Board of
Directors assumed direct responsibility over the investigation and retained independent outside counsel to investigate the allegations,
as well as corresponding accounting entries and internal control issues, and to advise the Audit Committee.

The investigation, which is continuing, has found evidence suggesting that payments, which may violate the U.S. Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act, were made to government officials in Latin America aggregating less than §1 million. The evidence to date regarding
these payments suggests that payments were made beginning in early 2003 through 2005 (a) to vendors with the intent that they would
be transferred to government officials for the purpose of extending drilling contracts for two jackup rigs and one semisubmersible rig
operating offshore Venezuela; and (b) to one or more government officials, or to vendors with the intent that they would be transferred
to government officials, for the purpose of collecting payment for work completed in connection with offshore drilling contracts in
Venezuela. In addition, the evidence suggests that other payments were made beginning in 2003 through early 2006 (a} to one or more
government officials in Mexico in connection with the clearing of a jackup rig and equipment through customs or the movement of
personnel through immigration; and (b) with respect to the potentially improper entertainment of government officials in Mexico.

The Audit Committee, through independent outside counsel, has undertaken a review of our compliance with the FCPA in certain
of our other international operations. This review has found evidence suggesting that in 2004 and 2005 payments may have been made
to government officials in Saudi Arabia and Kazakhstan, aggregating less than $175,000, in connection with clearing rigs or
equipment through customs or reselving outstanding customs issues in those countries. The investigation of the matters related to
Saudi Arabia and Kazakhstan and the Audit Committee’s compliance review are ongoing. Accordingly, there can be no assurances
that evidence of additional potential FCPA violations may not be uncovered in Saudi Arabia, Kazakhstan or other countries.

Our management and the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors believe it likely that members of our senior operations
management either were aware, or should have been aware, that improper payments to foreign government officials were made or
proposed to be made. Our former Chief Operating Officer resigned as Chief Operating Officer effective on May 31, 2006 and has
elected to retire from the company, although he will remain an employee, but not an officer, during the pendency of the investigation
to assist us with the investigation and to be available for consultation and to answer questions relating to our business. His retirement
benefits will be subject to the determination by our Audit Committee or our Board of Directors that it does not have cause (as defined
in his retirement agreement with us) to terminate his employment. On December 1, 2006, our Vice President — Western Hemisphere
Operations resigned. On December 2, 2006, our former Country Manager in Venezuela and Mexico was terminated. We have placed
another member of our senior operations management on administrative leave pending the outcome of the investigation,

We voluntarily disclosed information relating to the initial allegations and other information found in the investigation and
compliance review to the U.S. Department of Justice and the Securities and Exchange Commission and are cooperating with these
autharities as the investigation and compliance reviews continue and as they review the matter. If violations of the FCPA occurred, we
could be subject to fines, civil and criminal penalties, equitable remedies, including profit disgorgement, and injunctive relief. Civil
penalties under the antibribery provisions of the FCPA could range up to $10,000 per violation, with a criminal fine up to the greater
of $2 million per viclation or twice the gross pecuniary gain to us or twice the gross pecuniary loss to others, if larger. Civil penalties
under the accounting provisions of the FCPA can range up to $500,000 and a company that knowingly commits a violation can be
fined up to $25 million. In addition, both the SEC and the DOJ could assert that conduct extending over a period of time may
constitute multiple violations for purposes of assessing the penalty amounts. Often, dispositions for these types of matters result in
modifications to business practices and compliance programs and possibly a monitor being appomted to review future business and
practices with the goal of ensuring compliance with the FCPA.
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- We could also face fines, sanctions and other penalties from authorities in the relevant foreign jurisdictions, including prohibition of
our participating in or curtaillment of business operations in those jurisdictions. Our customers in those jurisdictions could seek to
impose penalties or take other actions adverse to our interests. In addition, disclosure of the subject matter of the investigation could
adversely affect our reputatlo'n and our ability to obtain new business or retain existing business from our current clients and potential
clients, to attract and retain employees and to access the capital markets. No amounts have been accrued related to gny potential fines,
sanctions or other penalties. . : ‘i

We cannot currently predu,t what; 1f any, actions may be taken by the DOJ, the SEC, the appllcable government or other authorities
or our customers or the effect the actions may have on our results of operations, financial condition or cash flows, on our-consolidated
financial statements or on our business in the countrles at issue and other jurisdictions. |1

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, our operations in Venezuela provided revenues, of approximately
$156.9 million, $172.6 m1ll|rm and $167 1 million, or approximately 6.3%, 8.5% and 9.8% of our total consolrdated revenues,
respectively. Qur Venezuela |operations provided earnings (loss) from opérations of approxtmalely £6.9 million, ;$l6 8 million, and
$(6.7) million or approximate ly 1.3%, 5.2% and (2.7)% of our total consolidated earnings from operations for 2006 2005 and 2004,
respectively. As of December 31, 2006 and. 2005, we had accounts receivable from Petroleos de Venezuela, S.A. totaling
$27.6 million and $33.4 m1ll|on respectively. - : . . . : i;

Litigation . S :1

In August 2004, we were notified that certain of our subsidiaries have been named, along with other deftlrlndants in several
complaints that have been ﬁ]ed in the Circuit Courts of the State of Mississippt by several hundred individuals that allege that they
were employed by some of ‘the named defendants between approximately 1965 and 1986. Additional suits have been filed since
August 2004. The complalnts allege that certain drilling contractors used products containing asbestos in offshore drlllmg operations,
land-based drilling operatrono and in drilling structures, drilling rigs, vessels and other equipment. The plaintiffs aissert claims based
on, among other things, neglrgence and strict liability and claims under the Jones Act. The complaints name as delll'endants NUMErous
other companies that are not laffiliatecl with us, including companies that allegedly manufactured drilling related products containing
asbestos that are the subject |of the complaints. The plaintiffs seek, among other things, an award of unspecnﬁed|c0mpensatory and
punitive damages. Eight individuals of the many plaintitfs in these suits have been identified as allegedly having worked for us or one
of our affiliates or predeces'sors Currently, discovery and investigation is ongoing to determine whether these individuals were
employed in our offshore opll*ratlons during the alleged period of exposure. We intend to defend ourselves v1g0r0usly and, based on
the information available to us at this time, we do not expect the outcome of these lawsuits to have a material adverse effect on our
financial position, results of dperatlons or cash flows; however there can be no assurance as to the ultimate outcome of these lawsuits.

I

Paul A. Bragg, our former President and Chief Executive Officer, filed suit against us in State District Court.rof Harris, Coumy,
Texas in early October 2005; seeking a declaratory judgment that the non-competition provisions of his employment agreement are
unlawful and unenforceable. Shortly thereafter, Mr. Bragg filed a second lawsuit against us alleging that.we breached written and oral
employment agreements with him and seeking damages aggregating more than $17.0 million. The suits were consohdated

" We filed counterclaims agamst Mr. Bragg related to his non-competition claim seekmg a declaratory ]udgment that the non-
competition provisions of his employment agreement are enforceable and restitution of certain amounts paid toer Bragg should
there be a finding that the noi- -competition provisions of his employment agreement are unenforceable. On February 1, 2007, the trial
court granted Mr. Bragg’s mdtlon to dismiss, without prejudice, his declaratory judgment claim related to his covenant not to compete.
We, in turn, are seeking to dismiss, without prejudlce our counterclaims in connection with Mr. Bragg’s covenant not to compete
declaratory judgment claim.

f

We filed counterclaims agamst Mr. Bragg related to his claims for breach of contract cla1mmg, among other thmgs (i) breach of
fiduciary duty seeking disgorgement of certain amounts previously paid to Mr. Bragg stemming from actions that may have been
taken by Mr. Bragg relating to his employment compensation claims, {ii} declaratory judgment that we did not breach his contract and
(iii) breach of contract. On O(Ltober 25, 2006, the trial court granted summary judgment in our favor dismissing Mr. Bragg s claims for
damages related to an alleged breach of written and oral employment agreements. On December 20, 2006, thettrral court granted
summary judgment against u5 on our counterclaim for breach of fiduciary duty. We subsequently filed a notice of appeal with respect
to the trial court’s drsmlssalI of our counterclaim for breach of fiduciary duty. We are seeking to dismiss, wrthout prejudlce our
remaining counterclaims, and we have obtained a tolling agreement allowing us to resuscitate these counterclaims llt a later date if we
so choose.
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Currently, the only matter outstanding before the trial court is Mr. Bragg’s motion for reconsideration of the trial court’s order
dismissing his breach of contract claims. We intend to defend ourselves vigorously and, based on the information available to us at
this time, we do not expect the outcome of this lawsuit to have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations
or cash flows; however, there can be no assurance as to the ultimate outcome of this lawsuit.

We are routinely involved in other litigation, claims and disputes incidental to our business, which at times involve claims for
significant monetary amounts, some of which would not be covered by insurance. In the opinion of management, none of the existing
litigation will have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. However, a substantial
settlement payment or judgment in excess of our accruals could have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows. '

Other

In the normal course of business with customers, vendors and others, we have entered into letters of credit and surety bonds as
security for certain performance obligations that totaled approximately $223.0 million at December 31, 2006. These letters of credit
and surety bonds are issued under a number of facilities provided by several banks and other financial institutions. We also had
commitments outstanding for obligations under a software license agreement of approximately $1.2 million at December 31, 2006.

NOTE 14. SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

We operate through three principal reporting segments: QOffshore, which includes all of our offshore drilling fleet and operations;
Latin America Land, which includes all our land-based drilling and workover services in Latin America; and E&P Services, which
includes our exploration and production services business in Latin America. . ‘

The accounting policies of our segments are the same as those described in Note 1 of our Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements. We evaluate the performance of our segments based on earnings (loss) from operations.

Summarized financial information is shown in the following tables. “Other” includes revenues and costs for land-based drilling
operations outside of Latin America (currently Chad, Kazakhstan and Pakistan), labor contracts and engineering and management
consulting services. :

Latin
America E&P
Offshore Land Services Other Corporate Total

2006 !

REVEINUES ...cereeiietii et e SRR $ 1,580.8 3 6083 § 1956 3 10L.7 § — § 24954
Earnings (10ss) from operations ...........ccooeeciinnneiceecciceccereeeae 5043 1129 26.8 226 (121.7) 544.9
Total assets..ccccvrervnnnes eereresaiatetTatTerie e e YT LeTrar YTt Tee n b an Y e Yy aeaearnneseeeennnn . 3,981.5 5592 2027 140.9 2132 5,097.5
Capital expenditurEs........cocovoevir e 2895 . 358 15.2 20 21.2 +363.7
Depreciation and amortization ..........ev e ecrinnerensrsrerse e 193.5 49.6 9.8 133 37 269.9
2005 : . ‘
REVEIUES ..i..oovceceeceteeiiesistae b bets e ess e e s sebas e s s e b e b et s s s s eab s et sresesnnnis $ 1,2559 8% 4952 5 1881 § 94.1 % — § 2,0333
Eamings (loss) from operations ..., 296.2 65.1 20.6 25.0 (B1.7) 3252
TOAl ASSELS .eoeee s 3,161.6 4831 173.2 95.5 173.1 4,086.5
Capital expentditlres.......coovoreirii e 119.8 29.9 6.3 1.4 10.7 168.1
Depreciation and amortization ..............coc.o.oceeeeerereeeeeeees e venseesans 178.5 49.2 10.5 16.5 2.5 2572
2004

RIEVEIUES ... eereveeeiarmteiesinrerersisenseseesseeeeseseecrseasnsessesnsemsemesnsnenesnsenas § 1,069.1 3 3808 5 15535 980 % — § 1,712.2
Earnings (loss) from oOperations .........cococcovevivcciiinennnnnennene e 2918 5.8 14.9 11.5 (75.00 249.0
TOUAL ASSEES evrirrrrererrreirerisinrersesessesrernreresssensssreeseiesarnressesaesarnsnsesssessnsees 29836 4980 1785 2937 88.2 4,042.0
Capital expenditures............ OSSOSO UUURUURP PRSP 99.0 31.1 0.6 2.8 1.7 135.2
Depreciation and amortization .............c.owemrrresereererseisassersssosnns 175.5 529 - 111 229 29 2653
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f

For the year ended December 31, 2006, one customer, Petroleo Brasileiro S.A. (“Petrobras™), accounted for 16.7% of consolidated
revenues and is included in the Latin America Land and Offshore segments. For the year ended December 31 2005, Petrobras
accounted for 14.4% of con",olldated revenues and is included in the Latin America Land and Offshore segments and an additional
customer, Petroleos Mex:canos S.A. (“PEMEX"), accounted for approximately 10.7% of consolidated revenue and is included in the
Offshore segment. For the yc’ar ended December 31, 2004, Petrobras for 16.6% of consolidated revenues and is included in the Latin
America Land and Offshore' segments, and PEMEX accounted for 13.9% of consolidated revenue and is mcluded in the Offshore
segment. .

|

‘

For the year ended December 31, 2006, we derived 81.2% of our revenues from countries outside of the United, States. As a result,
we are exposed to the nskiof changes in social, political and economic conditions inherent in foreign operatlons Revenues by
geographic area are presentelli by attributing revenues to the individual country where the services were performed.

Revenues by geographic a!rea where the services are performed are as follows for years ended December 31: ‘
2006 2008 2004
Argenting .....oo.oeveeeeeeennne, e ettt ettt e ettt e e ettt s s ae st b bt r et et b rae e e s e erarne et re s $ 52083% 4195% 3323
F 7] T e R 3405 3022 27510
Brazil..........oucuwermmmmmimineneneeen ettt 2788 | 2384 1759
MeEXICO el e cemer et e et b e aet s a e r et b e e nn s et e s e nern SR ‘ 2327 ¢ 2195 2534
Venezuela ... D et masteteset AR SRR 1569 - 1726  167.1
Other countries. .........o..o...... eeessssmesttessts s AR R 496.0 v 4147 ___ 371.1
All Intemnational............... O EE USSP O TP OTOTTOT 20257 41,7669  1,574.9
United States.........cccoceerernn, e ere e R s Rt b RR R s R b 469.7 _* 266.4 137.3
TOALccceevrmerrrrrreseneressseseesdeesmseeses s peess s sss s snssssesns ettt $ 24954 ,g;;,g § 17122

Long-lived assets by geog raphic area as presenled in the following table were attributed to countries based on tlhe physical location
of the assets. A substantial portlon of our assets is mobile. Asset locations at the end of the period are not necessanly indicative of the
geographic distribution of the revenues generated by such assets during the periods. . N

Long-hved assets, which Imclude property and equipment and goodwill, by geographic area are as follows at December 3L

II
I : 2006 __ 2005
ATZENEING ..o et a bbbkt b sSeae s b b e bR as s ed b eE s e e b ae b $ 2679% 2765 .
ADZOM oo | eeeeeecemmemssesesesesseseeses e sessseneneee e eeeeereeeremeracaees s eeseeeesesesereene |: 7117 9266
Brazil......coueerorecrinvecieernene OO OO0 OO OO 00T OO TO U OO TSSOSO (12778 4793
MEXICO w.vvvvrvmrmrisesrc L sttt e L 4126 3604
Venezuela ... ettt e n e et e es et s e e s e e s er e ;o 74.0 93.5
Other countries.......ccccr....... Dot e e ettt et eeeese s ereaesee s e eee s ereeeeees 11.031.0 814.1
All' International .........ceooc.e. e et eeeteeeeteeteeeaateetereeteesteeesteseseesteiateseastanneeaetteiteiaeenannenans L 3,7750 29504
United States...........cc.oc.c..... et v sttt e 2936 __ 2993
TOtal oo ettt et Ao ettt ar et st enns $.4,068.6 § 3,249.7
; :
NOTE 15. OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION _ Ii
.. . : I
Prepaid expenses and other current assets consisted of the following at December 31:; g
|
i it __2006 2005
Prepaid eXpenses.........ocovbvevevvciriniceenseenons erereriaesesraresateres O OSSP PO PSSV SOOI 1% 5588 304
Deferred mobilization and iNSPECLION COSLS ........vvvvwreeerssssesssessisssssssississsssssssssassssssssssssssssssssnsisssesssssssssnsesssssssssssssss '! 43.9 48.0
Other TECRIVADIES ...oveiviihev bbb bbb s X 357 25.4
Insurance receivables.......... Lttt ee e et ene e neeen e e : 12.0 1.2
Deferred fINANCING COSES ... | ...ovvviveiirosrcssss e esesieesessss e seesaneen: ettt et b eseanns ﬂ 4.0 39
Derivative asset................... L rtee et ts it rss RS R s e es s et sar s y 1.9 2.1
671115 SO ettt eSS SRR ! 9.2 108
Total....ooeceeeeeeceeeenn ) OO TSRO : | $ 1625 % 1318
, . I
I
|
[
71 i
| I
I, N




Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consisted of the following at December 31:

2006 2005
Deferred MODIIZAtION FEVEIUES ...ooooeotevoeesreesssessseeeeeeeeeereeareeaesssessressssnsssesasessssesseeseesseeeeseesseetesnessasssassssesssesssssssssees $ 1106 § 388
|23 s I o1 T - U PO OSSP U PP 84.4 68.6
CUTTENT INCOIME TAXES 1vievveiiiemeeeesssreessisasessreserstasssrsnresssrsassssinsssasaseesssinsss 1atasesasessesnsnrasssabasessaessasnsasssmnmensansreesseneesaeseas 543 36.2
TAXES OTHET THAN IMCOIMIE ..eti ittt eceeee e e ettt e s s b et et n e e e e e teessesmase smeeaaaatnesssstabssstmsmeeareeeseansesssasnaess s saranasasesnrsnnss 3700 251
oS (. USRS 23.6 20.0
T SUITATICE ... . eeeeieite e e et esvtates e e e esssssesssabmeeassabessssa e e eeambeee e smbeersremees st aessabm e e eRAaba e aaneeea 442 annses s amrmras s e besemsasssaosanassatansrres 4.4 9.8
CONSITUCHION PROJECE COSESevvurrrvrrivrieisrrarsiseisessesessessessassssasassasssssesasssssessrssssesesssbasrssssesssssnsessssnsassssasssstessstessemsmsnnsersoss 1.1 33
HBBE ettt et e ettt ee e s et e e s eaaa e e b besse e e aneaeeeanneeeann Ceveeas bt e e s e e aeasanes 72.9 53.2
TOUAL 1ttt ce ettt ettt ettt et e st e st e st e eeeeeeeeeabe s besaaeeat s ret e eat e s et s ane e e e eae e eeen < aateaEe Ae e A e eas ekttt e een e nneeeeeemeemmenneeinan 3 3883 § 2550

Supplemental consolidated statement of operations information is as follows for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004

RENEAL EXPEIISE ..iuverireriris et sa st s st s et £ 1 £ S e b e bbb ad 44 b e e e e e nE R R e rE e s b e b ek st abeen b eans $ 1244 § 729 % 508

Other income, net )

Foreign exchange AN (LOSS) . .oocei ettt e ea s be e sk eb e et e e e e e s eera e ete e 23 3.0 1.8

Realized and unrealized changes in fair value of deriVALIVES.....ccvvvviriviese e srrsne e (1.3) 4.0 (0.5)
Equity eamings in unconsolidated SubSIGIAMNIES .......ccccocoiiiiiiiiiririernses e re oo ecst oo resseras 33 1.6 —
011173 O OO OO OO TSP O OO O O TSRO 0.2 0.9 _ (0.8)
TORAL ..ottt et e e e eee et e e et e et e At et eat et e Rt aA e te A et R e e et et et e s et essan st et e e e teanat et antanens £ 45 § 9358 0.3

Supplemental cash flows and non-cash transactions were as follows for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004
Cash paid during the year for: '
TIHEETEST 1.evveveserssineeeeemen e eenae st aeeaeaeesene st et e e sasas e b et b s e s e s ae e sa e emeet s s 2 e es s sa s e b e saras e ee4heeeer s e snt <t e e neasabnteennnr1s $ 740 $ 841 §$ 1087
INCOME TAXES =r LS., MEL 1ottt sttt et e e te s e etreestn s et s st aestasessbes e srarbeesatsesbassantasabeassnserane 4.1 — R,
INCOME 1AXES — FOFCIRI, BT ...ivoieieiieieeeee ettt ettt ettt ee e e e eseeanen b e b b e b et s aebe s s e emeeeennnsoe 101.6 57.6 49.0
Change in capital expenditures in accounts Payable ... e raresens (12.5) (10.8) (1.6)
Non-cash interest accreted to principal balance of debt................coiiiriiie, USRRUT 0.3 02 0.1

NOTE 16. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter _Quarter Quarter _Quarter

2006

RIEVEIUES ...coveeeeiteteti i ee et et et se et et e s e ebeasasa s s6ss b e s s e s e b e s se s st et es s ee s eaeas et et emesseeA e st bes e e s s annan $ 5669 % 6165 $ 6428 § 669.2
Earmnings from Operations ... s e en e 1298 1252 1556 1343
Income from CONLINUING OPErAtIONS o.ecvieiirirrriris et erate st sresers s rrass e esseesesss s saenes 69.7 67.8 89.3 68.5
Net iIncome......o.oveveeccececcceccnnn, OSSOSO TS USTROOUPPPRON 70.5 67.8 89.3 68.9
Basic earings per share: . _

Income from CONtINUINE OPETALIONS ....eoevveivieiiii et icse st re e er s se e besneas 0.43 0.41 0.55 0.42
INEE INMCOIMIE ....cueriiiiriir ittt re e e et rare et a4 e e rarenres e r s e e s nE e sa e e e b e e aA et ar 4 sa st ermamene s 0.44 041 0.55 0.42
Diluted earnings per share:

Income from CONtinUNG OPETALIONS ........ccviirierireresrertim st s sr et ene st sas s s m e ee s 0.40 0.39 0.52 0.40
INEE IMICOME .....oeieerercreeier et et e et a et et ke s e smer e rr e s e b et et b e s e n b bnteat ke st e e me s e e e e s e nns 0.41 0.39 0.52 0.40
2005

REVETILES .....ovtiiisnt et et e $ 4662 $ 4773 § 538.8 % 551.0
Earnings from OPerations .........coviririiiircersr s e reresesnerase e rs e sasses et esssrnssseseenesesiananns 69.9 493  119.8 86.2
Income from CONtINUINE OPETAtIONS .......iveviiiirieietetsreterivi ettt sen e eb b b neeeas 18.3 0.8 68.9 40.3
NEE IICOMIE ..ot ittt b ettt b e ee s e e e e ae b n s e e e et as e e st b e s b s st se s e er et e e rnanns 18.3 0.8 68.9 40.6
Basic earnings per share:

Income from CONLINUING OPELALIONS ........iciirerrecececvreeesretet e s eecees sttt es st s eesesnsebebseses 0.13 0.01 (.44 0.25
INEE TCOMIE ettt et eenb s eat oot et e bt et e se e e sae e s e s e e e enen e TR 0.13 0.01 0.44 0.25
Diluted earnings per share: ‘

Income from CONUNUING OPELALIONS .......e..oevieeeeeeeeceeeieeteeeis e sites ettt e ere et e sesee e e seaneesesaesbaasensenbess 0.12 0.01 041 0.24
INEE INCOIMIE ..ttt et r et r R E b b et e bt e b e sb e st et et e st ne e e e enbe re bt eaneasss it e s 0.12 0.01 0.41 0.24
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN 'AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE |l

~ None. !

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES . . J
{a) Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our President and
Chief Executive Officer and our Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as of the end of the period covered by this annual
report. Based upon that evaluanon our President and Chief Executive Officer and our Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that our dlsclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2006 were effective, in all matenal respects, with
respect to the recording, pro|cessmg, summarlzmg and reporting, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, of
information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act. . '

- 1
1

(b) Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting !

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reportmg, as that term is
defined under Rule 13a—]5(t) promulgated under the Exchange Act. In order to evaluate the effectiveness of our mtemal control over
financial reporting as of D=cember31 2006, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, management has
conducted an assessment, lrllcludmg testing, using the criteria set forth in fnternal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway Commission (the “COSO Framework”). Because of its mherent limitations,
internal control over ﬁnanc'lal reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. In addition, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future perlods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in condmons or that the
degree of .compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. k

Based on its assessment, management concluded that our internat control over financial reporting was effective based on the criteria
set forth in the COSO Framework. 3

|
KPMG LLP, our mdependent registered public accounting firm, has audited management’s assessment of the eﬂ'ecnveness of our
internal control over ﬁnanmal reporting as of December 31, 2006 as stated in their report, which appears m» “Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplement'u'y Data” contained herein. . ' [

li
I
i

There were no changes i in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth quarter of 2006 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. Y

(¢) Changes in Our Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

(d) 2005 Material Weakness P

1
i

In connection with the preparatlon of our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, management assessed
the effectiveness of our mtemal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005. Based on that assessment management
identified a material weakness in our intemnal controls and concluded that we did not maintain effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December al 2005 based on criteria set forth in the COSO Framework. The material weakness identified as of
December 31, 2005 was that we did not maintain a control environment in which our operations management effectwely set a proper
ethical tone wlthm our ope'ratlons organization to instill an attitude of compliance and control awareness: More specifically, these
conditions resulted in an ex'mronmem in which it is likely that certain members of our senior operations manzfgemem either were
aware, or should have been aware that improper payments to foreign government officials were made or proposed to be made through
collusion by company persc‘mnel and outside vendors to circumvent controls designed to prevent the mlsapproprlatlon of assets. This
material weakness resulted|in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of our annual or interim consolidated
financial statements would not be prevented or detected. ~ -
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As described in our 2005 annual report and in our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q for the quarterly periods ended March 31, 2006,
June 30, 2006, and September 30, 2006, we implemented certain measures to improve our internal control over financial reporting and
to remediate the material weakness described above, including the following:

* we have terminated one member of our senior operations management and have placed another on administrative lcave pending
the outcome of the ongoing audit committee investigation described in Item 7 of this annual report;

» our former Chief Operating Officer resigned as Chief Operating Officer effective on May 31, 2006 and has elected to retire from
the company, although he will remain an employee, but not an officer, during the pendency of the ongoing audit committee
investigation to assist us with the investigation and to be available for consultation and to answer questions relating to our
business; his retirement benefits will be subject to the determination by our Audit Committee or our Board of Directors that it
does not have cause (as defined in his retirement agreement with us) to terminate his employment;

= our Vice President, Western Hemisphere Operations resigned on December 1, 2006;

* in September 2006, we hired a new Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer respons1ble for our worldwide
offshore operations and Eastern Hemisphere land assets;

* we have continued to enhance our training of management, including our operations managers, to emphasize further the
importance of setting the proper tone within their organization to instill an attitude of integrity and control awareness and the use
of a thorough and proper analysis of proposed transactions;

* we have determined that our bonus-eligible employees complete in-person and online training on the Foreign Corrupt Practices
Act and our Code of Business Conduct and Ethical Practices as a prerequisite to receiving their bonuses for 2006; :

*. we now require our management, including our operations managers, to reconfirm that they are not aware of any violations of
law and confirm with greater specificity that they are not aware of any improper payments to foreign government officials made
by us or on our behalf or any other violation of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethical Practices and to recertify their
commitment to the Code prior to the filing of our annual report on Form 10-K;

* we have established an executive compliance committee, consisting of our executive officers and other management-level
employees who are responsible for supervising our antibribery compliance committee, our internal controls steering committee
and our compliance efforts in general; and

« we have established a separate position of, and appointed, a chief compliance officer.

The actions described above have significantly improved our internal control over financial reporting by creating and maintaining a
conirol environment in our operations management that effectively sets a proper ethical tone within our operations organization to
instill an attitude of compliance and control awareness. Our management concluded that, as of December 31, 2006, these changes in
our internal control over financial reporting remediated the material weakness identified as of December 31, 2005,

ITEM 9B, OTHER INFORMATION

None. N
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PART III )

ITEM 10, DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE , T

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our definitive proxy statement, which is to be filed with the
SEC pursuant to the Securm«’s Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year
on December 31, 2006. Informatlon with respect to our executive officers is set forth under the caption “Executive Officers of the
Registrant” in Part I of this annual report. . L
Code of Business Conduct ind Ethical Practices I}

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethical Practices, which applies to, among others, our prmcnpal executive
officer, principal financial off' icer, principal accounting officer and persons performing similar functions. We have posted a copy of
the code under “Corporate (Jovemance in the “Investor Relations” section of our internet website at www. pndemrernanonal com.
Copies of the code may be obtamed free of charge on our website or by requesting a copy_ in writing from our. Chief Compliance
Officer at 5847 San Felipe, Sulte 3300, Houston, Texas 77057. Any waivers of the code must be approved by our ‘Board of Directors
, or a designated board commmee Any amendments to, or waivers from, the code that apply to our executive ofﬁcers and directors will
be posted under “Corporate Governance” in the “Investor Relations” section of our internet website at www. pr:demtemanonai com.

i
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION ' '
. ' L

The information required!by this item is incorporated by reference to our definitive proxy statement, which is!'to be filed with the

SEC pursuant to the Exchange Act within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year on December 31, 2006. !

,‘
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMEN T AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 1{,

The information requnred by this item is incorporated by reference to our definitive proxy statement, which i 1s to be filed with the

SEC pursuant to the Exchange Act wnhm 120 days of the end of our fiscal year on December 31, 2006, B
ITEM 13. CERTAIN REL!A TIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

" The information requnred by this item is incorporated by reference to our definitive proxy statement; which ls|to be filed with the
SEC pursuant to the Exchange Act within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year on December 31, 2006. N

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES : . : |1

The information requlred by this item is mcorporatecl by reference to our definitive proxy statement, which is;to be filed with the
SEC pursuant to the Exchange Act within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year on December 31, 2006. _ Wi

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES ‘ ' f
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this annual report: . ‘ . i

(1) Financial Statements i
3 It
All financial statements of the Registrant as set forth under Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. ||

(2) Financial Statement Schedules . . '1'

All financial staternent schedules have been omitted because they are not apphcable or not required, or the information
required thereby is included in the consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto included in this annual report.
Ji .
| .
H
I
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(3) Exhibits

Each exhibit identified below is filed with this annual report. Exhibits designated with an “*” are filed herewith. Exhibits
designated with a “*{”" are management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements.

Exhibit
No, Description
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Pride (incorporated by reference to Annex D to the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus
included in the Registration Statement on Form S-4, Registration Nos. 333-66644 and 333-66644-01 (the “Registration
Statement’)).

32 Bylaws of Pride (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Pride’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2003, File No. 1-13289).

4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.13 to the Registration Statement).

42 Rights Agreement, dated as of September 13, 2001, between Pride and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as
Rights Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
September 28, 2001, File No. 1-13289 (the “Form 8-K™)).

4.3 Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock of Pride (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.3 to the Form 8-K).

4.4 Credit Agreement dated July 7, 2004 by and among Pride Offshore, Inc., the guarantors named therein, the lenders party
thereto, Calyon New York Branch and Natexis Banques Populaires, as issuing banks, Calyon and Natexis, as swingline
lenders, Citicorp North America, Inc., as administrative agent, and Citibank, N.A., as collateral agent (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Pride’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004, File No. 1-
13289).

45 First Amendment dated May 10, 2005 to Credit Agreement dated July 7, 2004 by and among Pride Offshore, Inc., the
guarantors named therein, the lenders party thereto, Calyon New York Branch and Natexis Banques Populaires, as issuing
banks, Citicorp North America, Inc., as administrative agent, and Citibank, N.A., as collateral agent (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Pride’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2005, File No. 1-
13289).

4.6 Second Amendment dated November 17, 2005 to Credit Agreement dated July 7, 2004 by and among Pride Offshore,
Inc., the guarantors named therein, the lenders party thereto, Calyon New York Branch and Natexis Banques Populaires,
as issuing banks, Citicorp North America, Inc., as administrative agent, and Citibank, N.A., as collateral agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 23,
2005, File No. 1-13289).

4.7* Third Amendment Agreement, dated as of October 25, 2006, to Credit Agreement dated July 7, 2004 by and among Pride
Offshore, Inc., the guarantors named therein, the lenders party thereto, Calyon New York Branch and Natexis Banques
Populaires, as issuing banks, Citicorp North America, Inc., as administrative agent, and Citibank, N.A., as collateral agent.

4.8 Indenture dated as of July, 1, 2004 by and between Pride and JPMorgan Chase Bark, as Trustee {incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Pride’s Registration Statement on Form S-4, File No, 333-118104),

49 First Supplemental Indenture dated as of July 7, 2004 by and between Pride and JPMorgan Chase Bank, as Trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Pride’s Registration Statement on Form S-4, File No. 333-118104).

Pride and its subsidiaries are parties to several debt instruments that have not been filed with the SEC under which the
total amount of securities authorized does not exceed 10% of the total assets of Pride and its subsidiaries on a consolidated
basis. Pursuant to paragraph 4(iii} (A) of ltem 601(b} of Regulation S-K, Pride agrees to furnish a copy of such
instruments to the SEC upon request.

10.1F Pride International, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporatéd by reference to Exhibit 4A to Pride’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8, Repistration No. 33-26854).

10.2% First Amendment to Pride International, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to
Pride’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration Ne. 333-35089).

10.31 Second Amendment to Pride International, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 10
Pride’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 333-35089).

10.4% Third Amendment to Pride International, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to
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Pride’s Annual Report on Form 10-K- for the year ended December 31, 1997, File No.*1-13289), :i

Summary of Pnde International, Inc. Group Life Insurance and Accidental Death and- Dnsmemberment Insurance Plan
{incorporated by reference to Exhlblt 10(j) to Pride’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration Nn 33-33233).

Pride International, Inc. 1993 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(]) to Pride’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the vear ended December 31, 1992, Filé No. 0-16963). -

First Amendment to Pride International, Inc. 1993 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (incorporated by referénce to Exhibit 4.7
to Pride’s Reglstrauon Statement on Form S-8, Reglstratlon No. 333-35093). il

Second Amendment to Pride International, Inc. 1993 Directors” Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.10 to Pride’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997, File No. 1- 13289)!

Third Amendment to Pride International, Inc. 1993 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (incorporated by relferenee to Exhibit
10.11 of Pride’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998, File No. 1- 13289)

Fourth Amendment to Pride International, Inc. 1993 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.12 to Pride’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, File No. 1- 13289)

Fifth Amendment to Pride lntemauonal Inc. 1993 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.13 to Pride’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, File No. I- 13289)

Sixth Amendment to Pride Intemnational, Inc. 1993 Directors’ Stock Option Plan {incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.5 to Pride’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003, File No. 1- 13289)

Pride [ntemauonnl Inc. 401(k) Restoration Plan (1neorp0rated by reference to Exhibit 10(k) to Pnde s‘ Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year énded December 31, 1993, File No. 0-16963).

1
Pride Internauonal Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as amended and restated (‘SERP*) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10,15 to Pride’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 '{2004 File No. 1-
13289).

i
Amended SERP Participation Agreement dated January 28 2005 between Pride and Louis A. Raspm(‘) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Pride’ 's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 2, II 2005, File No. 1-
13289).

SERP Pamcapatu)n Agreement effective January 28, 2005 between Pride and Lonnie D. Bane (1ncorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.5 to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 2, 2005, File No' 1-13289).

SERP Participation Agreement effective January 28, 2005 between Pride and W. Gregory Looser (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 2l 2003, File No. 1-
13289). . |

o
Pride International, Inc. 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.21 to Pride’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, File No. 1-13289).

Form of 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan Non-Qualified Stock Option- Agreement (incorporated by rfi:ference to Exhibit
10.1 to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 29, 2006, File No. 1- 13289)

Form of 1998 ‘Long -Term Incentive Plan Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (with addmonal provisions)
(incorporated byt teference to Exhibit 10.4 to the amendment to Pride’s Current Report on Form §- K/Aiﬁled with the SEC
on February 16, 2007, File No. 1-13289).

Form of 1998 Long -Term Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Pride’s

" Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 29, 2006, File No. 1- 13289) |

Form of 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement (with additional provrsrons) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the amendment to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A fi ]ed with the SEC on February 16,
2007, File No. 1- 13289) _ '

Form of 1998 Long-Term [ncentlve Plan Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (incorporated by reference}to Exhibit 10.3 to
Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 29, 2006, File No. 1-13289). il '

Form of 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (with additional provisions) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the amendment to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed with the SEC on February 16,
2007, File No. 1-13289). . p

|
|
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Pride International, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (as Amended and Restated effective January 1, 2006).

Pride International, Inc. 2004 Directors’ Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix C to Pride’s Proxy
Statement on Schedule 14A for the 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, File No. 1-13289).

Form of 2004 Director’s Stock Incentive Plan Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 6, 2005, File No. 1-13289).

Form of 2004 Director’s Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 104 to
Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 6, 2005, File No. 1-13289). ,

- Employment/Non- -Competition/Confidentiality Agreement November 22, 2003 between Pride and’Louis A. Raspino

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to Pride’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2003, File No. 1-13289).

Employment/Non- Competition/Confidentiality Agreement dated June 10, 2004 between Pride and Lonnie D. Bane
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Pride’s Quarterly Report for the quarter ended June 30, 2004 File No. 1-
13289).

Employment/Non- Competition/Confidentiality Agreement dated March 23, 2004 between Pride and W. Gregory Looser
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Pride’s Quarterly Report for the quarter ended March 31, 2004 File No, 1-
13289).

~ Employment/Non- Competition/Confidentiality Agreement dated February 28, 2005 between Pride and Kevin C. Robert

{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Pride’s Currem Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 11, 2005,

. File No. 1-13289).

Employment/Non- Competition/Confidentiality Agreement between Pride and Brian C. Voegele dated November 21,
2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10.1 to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
November 28, 2003, File No. 1-13289).

Employment/Non- Competition/Confidentiality Agreement between Pride and Rodney W, Eads effective as of September
18, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8 K filed with the SEC on;,
September 21, 2006, File No. 1-13289).

Employmenthon— Competition/Confidentiality Agreement between Pride and K. George Wasaff effective as of January
17, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 29, 2007, File
No. 1-13289).

Retirement Agreement, effective as of May 31, 2006 between Pride and John R. Blocker, Jr. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 31, 2006, File No. 1-13289).

Summary of certain executive eofficer and director compensation arrangements.

‘.

.

Purchase Agreement dated as of November 8, 2006 by and among Pride, Westville Management Corporation, Drillpetro
Inc., Techdrill Inc., Synergy and Pride Amethyst 11 Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Pride’s Current
Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on November 15, 2006, File No. 1- ]3289) .

Computation of ratio of earnings to ﬁxed charges

Subsidiaries of Pride. ‘ ‘

Consent of KPMG LLP. ,

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Certification of Chief Executive Ofﬁeer of Pride pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Pride pursuant to Section 302 of the Sgrbanes-O'xl'ey Act 0f 2002.
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and. the Chief Financial Officer of Pride pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

L

*  Filed herewith. |

¥ Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES 'i
|

Pursuant to the requ:rements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the reglstrant has duly
caused this report to be s:gned on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Houston, State of Texas, on

M_arch 1, 2007.

o

PRIDE INTERNATIONAL, INC. ;
. : ' h
/s/_LOUIS A; RASPINO i
Louis A. Raspino | A
President and Chief Executive Officer i

Pursuant to the requtrem#nts of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, thls report has been SIgned below by the

following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on March 1, 2007.

Signatures . tle

/s/ LOUIS A, RASPINO l

President, Chief Executive Offtcer and Director

(Louis A, Raspino)
/s/ BRIAN C. VOEGELE

(principal executive ofﬁcer)

+ Senior Vice President and Chief Financ1al Officer

(Brian C. Voegele)

/s’ LEONARD E. TRAVIS

(principal financial officer),

Vice President and Chief Accountin'!g Officer

(Leonard E. Travis)

/s/ DAVID A. B. BROWN

(principal accounting officer)

Chairman of the Board ,!*

(David A. B. Brown)

/s/f KENNETH M. BURKE | - Director N
(Kenneth M. Burke) j
/s/ J.C. BURTON : Director . .
(J. C. Burton) :
/s/ ARCHIE W. DUNHAM ' Director I
{Archie W. Dunham) I
v !
/sl FRANCIS S. KALMAN Director Y
(Francis S. Kalman) I
/s/ RALPH D. MCBRIDE Director o
{Ralph D. McBride) "
/s/ DAVID B. ROBSON - Director [

{David B. Robson)

- k!
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Exhibit
No.

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Description

3.1

32

4.1
4.2

43

44

4.5

4.6

4.7*

48

49

| 10.1%
10.2¢
10.3%

10.4+

Certificate of Incorporation of Pride (incorporated by reference to Annex D to the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus
included in the Registration Statement on Form 5-4, Registration Nos. 333-66644 and 333-66644-01 (the “Registration
Statement’)).

Bylaws of Pride (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Pride’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2003, File No. 1-13289).

Form of Common Stock Certificate {(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.13 to the Registration Statement).

Rights Agreement, dated as of September 13, 2001, between Pride and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as
Rights Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
September 28, 2001, File No. 1-13289 (the “Form 8-K™)).

Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock of Pride (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.3 to the Form §-K).

Credit Agreement dated July 7, 2004 by and among Pride Offshore, Inc., the guarantors named therein, the lenders
party thereto, Calyon New York Branch and Natexis Banques Populaires, as issuing banks, Calyon and Natexis, as
swingline lenders, Citicorp North America, Inc., as administrative agent, and Citibank, N.A., as collateral agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Pride’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September
30, 2004, File No. 1-13289).

First Amendment dated May 10, 2005 to Credit Agreement dated July 7, 2004 by and among Pride Offshore, Inc., the
guarantors named therein, the lenders party thereto, Calyon New York Branch and Natexis Banques Populaires, as
issuing banks, Citicorp North America, Inc., as administrative agent, and Citibank, N.A., as collateral agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Pride’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September
30, 2005, File No. 1-13289).

Second Amendment dated November 17, 2005 to Credit Agreement dated July 7, 2004 by and among Pride Offshore,
Inc., the guarantors named therein, the lenders party thereto, Calyon New York Branch and Natexis Banques
Populaires, as issuing banks, Citicorp North America, Inc., as administrative agent, and Citibank, N.A_, as collateral
agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
November 23, 2005, File No. 1-13289).

Third Amendment Agreement, dated as of October 25, 2006, to Credit Agreement dated July 7, 2004 by and among
Pride Offshore, Inc., the guarantors named therein, the lenders party thereto, Calyon New York Branch and Natexis
Banques Populaires, as issuing banks, Citicorp North America, Inc., as administrative agent, and Citibank, N.A., as
collateral agent.

Indenture dated as of July, 1, 2004 by and between Pride and JPMorgan Chase Bank, as Trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Pride’s Registration Statement on Form S-4, File No. 333-118104).

First Supplemental Indenture dated as of July 7, 2004 by and between Pride and JPMorgan Chase Bank, as Trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Pride’s Registration Statement on Form S-4, File No, 333-118104).

Pride and its subsidiaries are parties to several debt instruments that have not been filed with the SEC under which the
total amount of securities authorized does not exceed 10% of the total assets of Pride and its subsidiaries on a
consolidated basis. Pursuant to paragraph 4(iii) {A) of ltem 601(b) of Regulation S-K, Pride agrees to furnish a copy of
such instruments to the SEC upon request.

Pride International, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4A to Pride’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 33-26854).

First Amendment to Pride International, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to
Pride’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 333-35089).

Second Amendment to Pride International, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to
Pride’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 333-35089).

Third Amendment to Pride International, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to
Pride’s Annuai Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997, File No. 1-13289).
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- Summary of Bride International, Inc. Group Life Insurance and Accidental Death and Dismemberment Insurance Plan

(incorporated Py reference to Exhibit 10(j) to Pride’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 33-33233).

Pride Imernatlonal Inc. 1993 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhlb:t 10(j) to Pride’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1992, File No. 0-16963).

First Amendmient to Pride International, ]nc 1993 Directors’: Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.7 to Pnde’s Reglstranon Statement on Form $-8, Registration No. 333-35093).

|
Hl

'I
Second Amendment to Pride International, Inc. 1993 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (mcorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.10 to Pride’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997, File No 1-13289).

Third Amendment to Pride International, Inc. 1993 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.11 of PrldeI s Annual Report on Form 10 K for the year ended December 31, 1998, File No. I- 13289)

Fourth Amendment to Pride Intemauonal Inc. 1993 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.12 to Pride’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, File No. |- 132189)

Fifth Amendment to Pride International, Inc. 1993 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (incorpor;;ted by r.::eference to Exhibit
10.13 to Pride’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, File No. l-]3289)

Sixth Amendment to Pride International, Inc. 1993 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.5 to Pride’s | Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2005, File No. 1- 13289)

Pride International, Inc. 401(k) Restoration Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit i0(k) to Pnde s Annual Report

on Form 10-K: for the year ended December 31, 1993, File No. 0-16963). ﬁ

Pride International, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as amended and restated (‘SERP’) (incorporated by
reference to Exhlblt 10.15 to Pride’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 3] 2004, File No. 1-

13289). , i

|
Amended SERP Participation Agreement dated January 28, 2005 between Pride and Louis A. Raspino (incorporated by
referencé to Exhibit 10.3 to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 2, 2005, File No. I-
13289).

SERP Participation Agreement effective January.28, 2005 between Pride and Lonnie D. Banie (incorporated by -
reference to E‘lxhlbl( 10.5 to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 2, 2005, File No. 1-
13289). !;

SERP Participation Agreement effective January 28, 2005 between Pride and W. Gregory Looser (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February % 2005, File No. 1-
13289). !

Pride lntemattonal Inc. 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (incorporated by Teference to Exhibit
10.21 to Pride’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, File No. 1- 13289)

Form of 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to Pride’ |sCurrent Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 29, 2008, Flle No. 1- 13i289)

Form of 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (with additional provisions)
(incorporated|by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the amendment to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8 K/A filed with the
SEC on February 16, 2007, File No. 1-13289). o §

* F
Form of 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement’ (mcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 29, 2006, File No. 1-13289). |t

Form of 1993 Long-Term Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement (with additional provrsmns) (incorporated by
_ reference to Exh:bn 10.5 to the amendment to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed with the SEC on February

16, 2007, FnleI No. 1-13289). -.'

Form of ]99E. Long-Term Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhlbrt 10.3
to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 29, 2006, File No. 1- 13289)

Form of 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (with additional prov151ons) (incorporated
by reference [to Exhibit 10.6 to the amendment to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A fi led with the SEC on
February 16, 2007, File No. 1-13289).

. !,
Pride International, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan {as Amended and Restated effective January' 1, 2006).
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-Pride International, Inc. 2004 Directors’ Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix C to Pride’s

Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A for the 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, File No, 1-13289),

Form of 2004 Director’s Stock Incentive Plan Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference. to
Exhibit 10.3 to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 6, 2005, File No. 1-13289).

Form of 2004 Director’s Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to
Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 6, 2005, File No.. 1-13289),

Employment/Non- Competition/Confidentiality Agreement November 22, 2003 between Pride and Louis A. Raspino
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to Pride’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2003, File No. 1-13289).

Employment/Non- Competition/Confidentiality Agreement dated June 10, 2004 between Pride and Lonnie D. Bane
(incorporated by reference to Exh:blt 10.1 to Pride’s Quarterly Report for the quarter ended June 30, 2004, File No. 1-
13289).

Employment/Non- Competition/Confidentiality Agreement dated March 23, 2004 between Pride and W. Gregory
Looser (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Pride’s Quarterly Report for the quarter ended March 31, 2004,
File No. 1-13289),

Employment/Non- Competition/Confidentiality Agreement dated February 28, 2005 between Pride and Kevin C.
Robert (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March
11, 2005, File No, 1-13289). .

Employment/Non- Competition/Confidentiality Agreement between Pride and Brian C. Voegele dated November 21,
2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10.1 to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
November 28, 2005, File No, 1-13289).

Employment/Non- Competition/Confidentiality Agreement between Pride and Rodney W. Eads effective as of
September 18, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on September 21, 2006, File No. 1-13289).

Employment/Non- Competition/Confidentiality Agreement between Pride and K. George Wasaff effective as of
January 17, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 29,
2007, File No. 1-13289).

Retirement Agreement, effective as of May 31, 2006 between Pride and John R. Blocker, Jr. (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1-Pride’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 31, 2006, File No. 1-13289).

Summary of certain executive officer and director compensation arrangements.

Purchase Agreement dated as of November 8, 2006 by and among Pride, Westville Management Corporation,
Drillpetro Inc., Techdrill Inc., Synergy and Pride Amethyst I Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Pride’s
Currént Report on Form 8-K f led with the SEC on November 15, 2006, File No. 1-13289).

Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges.

Subsidiarir:s of Pride.

Consent of KPMG LLP.

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Certlﬁcatlon of Chlef Executive Officer of Pride pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Pride pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of Pride pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

‘

*  Filed herewith.

¥  Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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RECONCILIATION OF NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES (UNAUDITED)

We use Adjusted EBITDA (as defined below), which is a “non-GAAP financial measure’ under Regulation G of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as a supplemental disclosure because our management believes that it provrdes investors an
additional measure of operlatmg cash flow and ability to service debt. It is also useful for comparing our operating performance
with the performance of other companies that have different financing and capital structures and tax rates.

Adjusted EBITDA as dLﬁned consists of net income (loss) before interest expense (net), income taxes, deprecratron and amor-
tization, impairment charges {gain) loss on sale of assets, refinancing charges, minority interest, pooling and merger costs, and
(income) loss from discontinued operations. Adjusted EBITDA is not a measure of financial performance under gcnerally accepted
accounting principles. You should not consider it in isolation from, or as a substitute for, net income or cash ﬂow measures
prepared in accordance wrth generally accepted accounting principles or as a measure of profitability or lquIdlty Additionally,
Adjusted EBITDA as defined may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures of other companies. :

The following tables reconcile Adjusted EBITDA, as defined, with our net income (loss) and net cash flows from operating
activities, as derived from 'our audited financial information: . |

Year Ended December 31, ||
2006 2005 2004 2003 if 2002
Net Income (loss) $ 2965 % 1286 % 98 % (6. 0) $ a7.n
Plus: Interest expense, net: 73.6 86.0 934 112 8 122.0
Plus: Income taxes 1764 100.7 61.7 34. 0 34
Plus: Depreciation and amortization ' 269.9 257.3 265.3 250.9 231.5
EBITDA 8164 572.5 436.3 381.8I[ 339.7
. i ,
Plus: Impairment charges 39 1.0 24.9 i -
Plus: (Gain) loss on sale of assets 31.4) (36.1) (48.6) 0.3 (0.4)
Plus: Refinancing charges - - 36.3 64 1.2
Plus: Minority interest 4.1 19.7 24.5 22.5II 16.0
Plus: Pooling and merger costs . . - - - (0.8) -
Plus: (Income) loss from discontinued operations ) (0.3} 17.7 64.0 (2.0}
Adusted EBITDA 791.8 556.8 491.1 4742 354.6
| |
Year Ended December 31, i
2006 2005 2004 2003 ii 2002
Adusted EBITDA ' 791.8 556.8 491.1 474. 2 354.6
Less: Interest expense, nel ‘ 73.6 86.0 99.4 112. 8 122.0
Less: Income taxes 176.4 100.7 61.7 34. 0 34
Less: Refinancing charges - - 36.3 6. 4 1.2
Less: Stock-based comperflsation ' (17.2) (4.1) (0.2) (3. 4) -
Less: Increase (decrease) i'n assets & liabilities 10.4 71.8 (714.2) 107.7“ 12.6
Less: Increase (decrease) _'1.n deferred revenue 14.5 7.0) 349 74.4% (23.2)
Less: Decrease (increase) Iin deferred expenses (7.3) 18.7 (12.3) (80. }) 75.1
Less: (Income) loss from discontinued operations . (1.2} (0.3) 17.7 649 2.0
Less: Pooling & merger crl)sts - - - (O.Eii) -
Plus: discount amortization 0.3 0.2 0.1 l.ié ‘ 11.1
Plus: Amortization and wr’rte offs of deferred financing costs 40 7.2 20.7 8.2 9.1
Plus: Amortization of deferred contract labilities 124 0.1 - {f -
Plus: Excess tax benefit frlom stock-based compensation (14.0) 21.8 1.7 O.ﬁ 2.7
Plus: Equity in earnings of affiliates 3.3) (1.6) - i -
Plus: Deferred income taxes 654 83 24 (41.!}:) (33.6)
Plus: (Gain) on mark—to-rr:lark derivatives 1.3 . B.n (15.7) _ (9.%) 8.7
Plus: Other non-cash itemls ' 3.0 - - ﬁ : -
Plus: Amortization of SFA:S No. 133 transition adjustment - - 0.2 0.2_ 0.9
Net cash flows from operz;ting activities $611.7 .$321.9 $337.1 $118.8 $164.4

| - |
I
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CORPORATE II%FORMATION
/
‘f
Corporate Hcadquan ers
Pride International, lnc
5847 San Felipe :
Suite 3300
Houston, Texas 77057
Telephone: (713) 782-1400 or (800) 645-2067
Fax: {713) 789- 1430
WWW. prldemternanonal com
Registrar and Transfer Agent
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company
59 Maiden Lane H
New York, New York 10038

Telephone: (212) 93;\, -5100
I

Stockholder Retumpl’erformance Presentation
Presented at right is a line graph comparing for the
last five years the yearly change in our common stock
against the Simmorfrls & Company International
Upstream Index (which includes the upstream oil
service and equipment companies in the January 2007
SCY Monthly [’erfoi‘:mancc & Valuation Guide), the

Simmons & Comp;}my International Offshore Drillers
Index {which currﬂlitly includes us, Atwood Qceanics,
Inc., Diamond Offshore Drilling, Inc., ENSCO
International Incorporated, Fred.Olsen Energy ASA,
GlobalSantaFe C01 'poration, Hercules Offshore Inc.,
Noble Corporatlon, Parker Drilling Company, Rowan
Companies, Inc., T“ODCO and Transocean Inc.) and
the S&P 500 Index:. The graph assumes that the value
of the investment in our common stock and each
index was $100 at December 31, 2001 and that all
dividends were reinvested.

Indexed Value

Annual Meeting

The 2007 Annual Meerting of Stockholders will be
held on Thursday, May 17, 2007 ar 9:00 a.m. {CDT)
at The Granduca Hotel, Salone Rialto Room,

1080 Uptown Park Boulevard, Houston, Texas.

Company Information
Information concerning the Company, mc]udmg filings
with the Securities and Exchange Commission and
current news releases, is available on Pride’s website
at www.prideinternational.com, or upohn request from
the Company’s Investor Relations department ar the
above address or phone number. .

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
KPMG LLP _ ,

700 Louisiana Street ‘
Suite 3100

Houston, Texas 77002

CompartsoN OF CUMULATIVE FIve YIAR RETURNS
December 31, 2001-December 31 2006

.
$300 B Pride lsternational, Inc.
$250—A SCI Upstream I e
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$200 2 S&P 500 /__._
$150 4
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01 02 03 04 | 0S 06

B[ 51000 | $98.7 | $123.4 | $136.0 | $203.6 | $198.7
A | $1000 | $95.8 | $1t04 | $S159.4 | $225.6 | $300.4
® | 51000 | 5883 | $96.4 | 51479 | $238.1 | $266.7
® | 51000 | $77.9 | 81003 | S111.27| $116.6 | $135.0
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